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20YRLFIR 20 Year Liquid Fuels Infrastructure Roadmap

AEEP Africa-EU Energy Partnership

AG Auditor General

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

APPO African Petroleum Producer Organisation

ASSAf Academy of Science of South Africa

AU African Union

B-BBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

BEE Black Economic Empowerment

BFP Basic Fuel Price

BRICS Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa

BRRR Budgetary Review and Recommendation 
Report

BW Bid Window

CEF Central Energy Fund

CEM Clean Energy Ministerial

CHIETA Chemical Industries Education and Training 
Authority

COD Commercial Operation Date

CoGTA Department of Cooperative Governance and 
Traditional Affairs

DDG Deputy Director-General

DG Director-General

DIRCO Department of International Relations and 
Cooperation

DM Deputy Minister

DoE Department of Energy

DoRA Division of Revenue Act

1.2 	list  of abbreviations/acronyms

DPME Department of Monitoring and Evaluation

DPSA Department of Public Service and 
Administration

DST Department of Science and Technology

EE Energy Efficiency

EEDSM Energy Efficiency and Demand Side 
Management

EHWP Employee Health and Wellness Programme

EU European Union

EVTs Evacuated Vacuum Tubes

EWSETA Energy Water Service Sector Education and 
Training Authority

EXCO Executive Management Committee

FOSAD Forum of South African Directors-General 

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GHG Green House Gas

HDI Historically Disadvantaged Individual

HDSA Human Development in South Africa

HR Human Resources

IAEA International Atomic Energy Agency

IBT Inclining Block Tariff

ICT Information and Communication Technology

IEC Integrated Energy Centre

IEP Integrated Energy Plan

INEP Integrated National Electrification Programme

IOP Institutional Operation Plan

IPP Independent Power Producer

IRBA Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors

IRENA International Renewable Energy Agency



8 DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

IRP Integrated Resource Plan

ISC Interim Steering Committee

IT Information Technology

ITAC International Trade Administration Commission

IYM In-year Management

JODI Joint Oil Data Initiative

LPG                                        Liquefied Petroleum Gas

M&E Monitoring and Evaluation

MANCO Management Committee

MISA Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent

MoA Memorandum of Agreement MoU

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

MP Member of Parliament

MPAT Management Performance Assessment Tool

MTSF Medium-Term Strategic Framework

MV Medium Voltage

MW Megawatts

NDP National Development Plan

NECSA Nuclear Energy Corporation of South Africa

NEDLAC National Economic, Development and Labour 
Council

NEES National Energy Efficiency Strategy

NERSA National Energy Regulator of South Africa

NFC Nuclear Fuel Cycle

NNBP Nuclear New Build Programme

NNR National Nuclear Regulator

NRWDI National Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute

NSWHP National Solar Water Heater Programme

NTI New-To-Industry

NTP NTP Radioisotopes SOC Ltd

PASA Payments Association of South Africa

PCE Portfolio Committee on Energy

1.2 	list  of abbreviations/acronyms
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1.3 	 Foreword by Minister

Despite the recent merger of the Department of Energy and 
the Department of Mineral Resources this Annual Report 
provides audited performance and financial information 
only for the Department of Energy because it operated on a 
separate budget vote in the period under review. 

As the leading Government Department in the energy space, 
we have always indicated that our objectives are premised 
on improved energy security, the diversification of our 
energy mix, including regional integration, increasing access 
to modern energy carriers, reducing our greenhouse gas 
emissions, reducing our water usage, developing the skills 
necessary for job creation, improving our energy efficiency, 
and lowering the cost of energy. The Department of Energy 
of South Africa, like its sister government departments, as 
well as affiliated state owned entities, operate in a dynamic 
global and African context. South Africa faces the triple threat 
of poverty, unemployment, and inequity in a complex policy 
environment, and aims to transition to a low-carbon future and 
a more diverse and inclusive economy.  The NDP’s envisioned 
critical actions of public infrastructure investment at 10% of 
GDP financed through tariffs, public-private partnerships, taxes 
and loans, and focused on transport, energy and water, as well 
as interventions to ensure environmental sustainability and 
resilience to future shocks gain additional importance under 
such circumstances. 

Since the advent of democracy in 1994 we increased the usage 
of electricity, especially in the residential sector through the 
proliferation of appliances as the standard of living gradually 
improved. We are still amongst the highest per capita users of 
electricity around the world, notwithstanding that there are 
still around 3-million households without access to a modern 
energy carrier. The electricity crisis of 2008 and other recent 

Mr SG Mantashe, MP
Minister of Mineral Resources and Energy

The NDP’s envisioned 

critical actions of 

public infrastructure 

investment at 10% of 

GDP financed through 

tariffs, public-private 

partnerships, taxes 

and loans, and focused 

on transport, energy 

and water, as well 

as interventions to 

ensure environmental 

sustainability and 

resilience to future 

shocks gain additional 

importance under such 

circumstances

 1	 NDP, 2012, pp. 75-96, 197-98.
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developments exposed institutional weaknesses related to state-owned companies responsible for power 
generation and transmission infrastructure. In response the Department of Energy produced The Integrated 
Resource Plan of 2019 (IRP 2019) in this fiscal year, which serves as the preeminent policy for the South African 
electricity sector. The IRP 2019 provides for Installed capacity of electricity generation by fuel type is as follows: 
38 GW from coal, 1.8 GW from nuclear, 2.7 GW from pumped storage, 1.7 GW from hydro, 3.8 GW from diesel, 
and 3.7 GW from renewable energy.  Sizable contributions to electricity production are also made currently by 
nuclear energy, which helps to reduce carbon emissions. Nuclear utilisation goes well beyond being a source 
of electricity. South Africa’s SAFARI-1 nuclear research reactor is one of the three largest producers of medical 
radioisotopes in the world, used in millions of medical procedures.

Through the Renewable Energy Independent Power Producer Procurement Programme (REIPPPP) it has 
been shown that sustainable clean electricity at an affordable price can be provided to our communities and 
the people living around these projects. The programme is delivering real economic growth through direct 
investment, creation of direct and indirect jobs, and stimulating a green economy as per the Green Economy 
Accord of 2011.

South Africa remains a net importer of refined petroleum products like petrol and diesel, and because these 
commodities are US dollar denominated, they affect local prices due to variable exchange rates. Investing in a 
new crude oil refinery and an associated petrochemical plant is therefore necessary to reduce the amount of 
refined petroleum products that are imported. It would also assist in meeting our obligations with respect to 
Agenda 2063 of the African Union, which enjoins us to develop Africa’s energy infrastructure. 

In closing this final report of the Department of Energy, I would like to extend my deep appreciation to the 
Honourable President Cyril Ramaphosa for his decisive leadership concerning energy and related matters, 
and Team Energy without whom implementation of the NDP, electoral manifesto, and implementation plans 
would not have been possible.

1.3 	 Foreword by Minister (cont.)
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1.4 	 Report of the Accounting Officer

Advocate Thabo Mokoena 
Accounting Officer

According to DPME, 

departments should strive 

for a 100% achievement 

of the planned targets in 

the Annual Performance 

Plan (APP). If achievement 

is lower than 80%, it is 

indicative of the quality 

of plans the Department 

may have and brings 

doubt as to whether 

the Department is 

using the plan to guide 

implementation.

Performance is comprised of both financial and non-
financial performance. I provide an overview of these 
two aspects of performance here, and more detailed 
information in Part E of the report which contains the 
Department’s audited financial statements, and in Part 
B which details the Department’s actual performance 
against its 2019/20 Annual Performance Plan. 

In carrying out its mandate, DoE formulates energy 
specific policies, legislation, regulations, programmes, 
projects, and oversees their implementation to 
ensure energy security, promotion of environmentally 
friendly energy carriers, and access to affordable and 
reliable energy for all South Africans. DoE executes 
its mandate by means of six budgetary programmes: 
(1) Administration; (2) Energy Policy and Planning; (3) 
Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation; (4) 
Electrification and Energy Programme and Project 
Management; (5) Nuclear Energy; and (6) Clean Energy.

Six state-owned enterprises: National Energy Regulator of 
South Africa (NERSA); National Nuclear Regulator (NNR); 
National Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute (NRWDI); 
Nuclear Energy Corporation of South Africa (NECSA); 
Central Energy Fund (CEF); and South African National 
Energy Development Institute (SANEDI) contribute 
to the Department’s pre-determined objectives as 
implementation agents. In addition, the Independent 
Power Producers Office under the direction of the 
Department of Energy and National Treasury ensures a 
competitive, open, fair, and transparent process in the 
procurement of renewable and other sources of energy 
from the private sector.  
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1.4.1 	 Overview of the Operational Perfomance of the Department:

Out of a total of 33 APP targets in 2019/20, the Department achieved 17 (52 %), partially achieved 9 (27 %), 
and did not achieve 7 (21 %). Table 1 below is a summary of the annual targets achieved, partially achieved, 
and not achieved during the 2019/20 fiscal year at the short-term output level. It is also important to note 
that the household electrification target under the Programmes and Project branch was achieved, and to do 
so, it received in round numbers 90% of the Department’s budget, with the remaining +10% being equally 
distributed between all other achieved targets (half of 10%), and the combined total of partially achieved and 
not achieved targets (half of 10%). These indicative figures provide an overall view of the funds expended 
relative to the achievement of targets, while the audited financial statements in Part E provide the detailed 
financial profile of the department for the year under review, and Part F the financial statements of the  
IPP Office.

Table 1: Summary of DoE 2019/20 Annual Performance Plan Results.  

Branches/Units Number of Annual 
targets in  the APP

Achieved Annual 
Targets

Partially Achieved 
Annual Targets

Not Achieved 
Annual Targets

Policy and Planning 8 2 3 3

Petroleum & Petroleum Products Regulation 3 3 0 0

Nuclear Energy 4 1 2 1

Clean Energy 5 3 1 1

Programmes and Projects 5 4 0 1

Corporate Services (Administration) 2 1 1 0

Financial Management Services (Administration) 2 0 1 1

Governance and Compliance (Administration) 4 3 1 0

Total 33 17 9 7

Table 2: Standards for Annual Targets

Progress Description Percentage Attained Annual Report Status

Activity not initiated on time or progress slower than planned 0-49% Not Achieved

In-year progress slower than planned 50-79% Partially Achieved

Annual delivery on track to meet 5 year target 80-100% Achieved

According to DPME, departments should strive for a 100% achievement of the planned targets in the Annual 
Performance Plan (APP). If achievement is lower than 80%, it is indicative of the quality of plans the Department 
may have and brings doubt as to whether the department is using the plan to guide implementation. 

In addition to APP targets, the Department maintained an Institutional Operational Plan (IOP) that addresses 
support services and operational activities. In the period under review, out of 133 targets, the Department 
achieved 62 (%), partially achieved 15 (%), and did not achieve 23 (%).
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1.4.2 	 Overview of the Financial Performance of the Department:

1.4.2.1 		 Department Receipts 

Table 3: Departmental Receipts

Departmental receipts 2019/2020 2018/2019

Estimate

Actual (Over)/ 
Under 

Collection
Estimate

Actual (Over)/ 
Under 

Collection
Amount 

Collected
Amount 

Collected

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Tax receipts - - - - - -

Sale of Goods and Services other 
than Capital Assets

4,036 4,121 (85) 3,916 4,409 (493)

Transfers Received 1,750 764 986 1,750 1,617 133

Fines, Penalties and Forfeits - - - - - -

Interest, Dividends and Rent on Land 2 3 (1) 30 12 18

Sale of Capital Assets - - - - - -

Financial Transactions in Assets  
and Liabilities

205 142 63 474 48,642 (48,168)

Total 5,993 5,030 963 6,170 54,680 (48,510)

Departmental revenue is mainly derived from the receipt of administration fees for petroleum license 
applications processed in terms of the Petroleum Products Amendment Act, 2003 (Act No. 58 of 2003).  The 
total revenue collection target for 2019/20 was R6.31 million from three (3) main sources as follows:

•	 R4.04 million or 67.35% from the sale of goods and services produced by the department, other than 
capital assets, is inclusive of R3.75 million of administrative fees for petroleum license fees;

•	 R1.75 million or 29.20% of transfers from Departmental agencies, is mainly grants from affiliated energy 
SETAs;

•	 R205 thousand or 3.42% from transactions in financial assets which includes debt receivables, recovery of 
previous year/s expenditure and unallocated credits; and

•	 The balance was expected from miscellaneous sales, i.e. interest received and sale of waste paper. 

For the 2019/20 financial year, total revenue collected was R5.03 million against a projection of R5.99 million 
resulting in an under collection of R963 thousand, mainly due to receipts from SETAs, which were R986 thousand 
less than anticipated. This is attributable to a reduction in the training and development grants from EWSETA 
and CHIETA.  Receipts from financial assets were R63 thousand less than anticipated, thereby contributing to 
the total under collection.

Receipts relating to petroleum licenses were more by R81 thousand with R3.83 million collected against a target 
of R3.75 million.

Comparative to the 2018/19 financial year, departmental revenue in 2019/20 is R49.65 million lower than 
revenue collected in 2018/19, mainly because of a reduction of R48.5 million in receipts relating to the recovery 
of previous year expenditure. During March 2019, revenue increased significantly due to the receipt of a  
once-off amount of R48.5 million from Eskom representing unspent funds from its tenure as the implementing 
agent of the National Solar Water Heater Programme (NSWHP).  The receipt was surrendered to the National 
Revenue Fund in terms of PFMA requirements in 2018/19. 
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1.4.2.2 		 Budget Variance per Economic Classification 

Table 4: Budget Variance per Economic Classification 

Classification 2019/20

Budget Expenditure Unspent  
Funds

Variance as a %
of Final Budget2019/20 31 March 2020

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Compensation of Employees 375,454 356,438 19,016 5.06%

Goods and Services 284,986 258,770 26,216 9.02%

Transfers and Subsidies 6,518,602 6,309,774 208,828 3.20%

Payments for Capital Assets 4,504 2,237 2,267 50.34%

Interest and Rent on Land - - - 0.00%

Payments for Financial Assets 11 11 0 0.00%

Total 7,183,557 6,927,230 256,327 3.57%

By the end of the financial year, R7.18 billion had been withdrawn from the National Revenue Fund (NRF) to fund 
DoE’s planned operations and transfers, 96.43% of this cash was utilised resulting in a budget underspending of 
R256.33 million or 3.57%, representing the variance between planned and actual expenditure. The contributors 
to the variance are as follows:

1.4.2.3 	  Compensation of Employees (CoE)

The budget underspending of R19.02 million or 5.06%, is attributable to delays in filling vacant priority 
positions in anticipation of the pending merger of the Department with the Department of Mineral Resources.  
By the close of the 2019/20 financial year, the Department had in its employment 498 (500 in February 2020) 
permanent employees and 36 (36 in February 2020) additional employees, inclusive of 15 interns as well as 63 
vacant funded posts.

1.4.2.4 	  Goods and Services

Planned expenditure in this classification was R284.99 million while actual expenditure was R258.77 million 
resulting in a net budget underspending of R26.22 million or 9.20% mainly in the following items:

•	 Consultants: Business and advisory services:  Underspending attributable to delayed projects as 
follows:

	 -	   Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation – delayed commencement 
	  	      of the 	LPG Audit in the Petroleum and Liquid Fuel Industry project as well as the B-BBEE Monitoring.

	 -	  	Programme 4: Electrification and Energy Programmes and Project Management – delayed  
		   	finalisation of procurement processes for the Non-grid Monitoring and Evaluation and the  
			   Electrification Master Plan projects.

	 - 		 Programme 5: Nuclear Energy – delay in the commencement of the study to stress-test the  
		   	NECSA Turnaround Strategy.

	 - 		 Programme 6:  Clean Energy – delayed finalisation of the feasibility studies related to implementation  
		   	of SWH project as well as the delayed installation of procured units. 

•	 Operating Leases: Underspent due to payments for Head Office accommodation paid lower than 
budgeted for, as per agreement reached by the Department (DoE) and Department of Public Works (DPWI), 
pending the finalisation of DPWI assessment of a Forensic Audit Report presented by the Department. 
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1.4.2.5 	 Transfer Payments 

The net budget underspending of R208.83 million or 3.20% is due to:

•	 	INEP Non-Grid Households: R199.83 million underspending due to the delayed procurement process. 

•	 	INEP Municipalities: R3.51 million underspending due to the withholding of payments to JS Moroka 
municipality in Mpumalanga as a result of non-compliance to DoRA requirements.

•	 	International Membership fees: R4.89 million underspending mainly because of delayed invoices for 
subscription fees to multilateral international organisations. 

•	 	Households: R603 thousand underspending is as a result of outstanding payments relating to early 
retirement applications and pension liability payable to the GEPF.

1.4.2.6	 Payments for Capital Assets

The net budget underspending of R2.27 million is due to less requests than anticipated for office furniture and 
computer equipment attributable to the merger of DoE and DMR.

1.4.2.7	 Programme Expenditure 

Table 5: Programme Expenditure

Programme Name

2019/20 2018/19

Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under  
Expenditure

Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under  
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 293,583 279,383 14,200 305,329 304,017 1,312

Energy Policy and Planning 47,568 39,945 7,623 46,073 40,066 6,007

Petroleum and Petroleum Products 
Regulation

88,355 80,710 7,645 79,242 77,044 2,198

Electrification and Energy Programme 
and Project Management

5,274,825 5,064,328 210,497 5,380,591 5,364,511 16,080

Nuclear Energy 1,050,143 1,039,907 10,236 875,486 875,285 201

Clean Energy 429,083 422,956 6,127 476,811 429,317 47,494

Total 7,183,557 6,927,230 256,327 7,163,532 7,090,239 73,293

During the 2019 Adjusted Estimates of National Expenditure (AENE) budget process, the Department’s budget 
was revised downwards by R256.46 million of budget reductions implemented by National Treasury, from 
R7.44 billion to R7.18 billion. 

The reductions were implemented in Programmes as follows:

1.4.2.7.1 	Programme 1: Administration (R1.781 million) - R1.5 million of unspent funds was declared on compensation  
		  of employees due to the moratorium on the filling of vacancies, particularly in the Administration programme,  
		  pending the finalisation of the announced merger of the Department of Energy (DoE) and the Department  
		  of Mineral Resources (DMR) to the Department of Mineral Resources and Energy (DMRE).  In addition, R281  
		  thousand was declared as unspent funds on capital assets due to a reduction in the procurement of assets in  
		  anticipation of the merger and the associated transfer of existing assets to the newly established DMRE.

1.4.2.7.2 	Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning (R3 million) - R1.5 million of unspent funds was declared on  
		  compensation of employees due to the number of vacancies within the programme resulting from a  
		  moratorium on the filling of vacancies pending the finalisation of the merger. The balance of R1.5 million  
		  came from the goods and services classification mainly from funds allocated for the second phase of the  
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		  Footprint and Savings Potential project following a decision by UNIDO to fund this phase as well as from savings  
		  achieved as a result of cost containment measures implemented on items such as communication, consumable  
		  and travel and subsistence.

1.4.2.7.3 	Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum Product Regulation (R0.914 million) - Unspent funds declared on  
		  compensation of employees due to the number of vacancies, which could not be filled, within the programme.

1.4.2.7.4 	Programme 4: Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management - R250 million of unspent  
		  funds was declared on transfer payments to Eskom for the implementation of electricity connections  
		  to households under the INEP programme. Due to higher than expected fiscal pressures within government,  
		  slow spending items were identified by National Treasury and as a result, conditional grant payments in respect  
		  of the INEP - Eskom grant were reduced. This resulted in a reduction of 13 500 grid connections to households.

1.4.2.7.5 	Programme 5: Nuclear Energy - R0,769 million of unspent funds was declared on goods and services due to  
		  slow spending emanating from delayed planned projects within the Branch.

		  Further reasons for the net budget underspending of R256.33 million or 3.57% between projected and actual  
		  expenditure per Programme are as follows:

1.4.2.7.6	Programme 1: Administration

		  The Programme spent R279.38 million from the projected spending of R293.58 million resulting in a net budget  
		  underspending of R14.20 million or 4.84%, mainly due to the following cost items:  

		  Compensation of Employees: R3.66 million underspending mainly as a result of vacant positions. 

		  Operating Leases: underspending due to payments for Head Office accommodation paid lower than budgeted  
		  for, because of an agreement reached by the Department and DPWI, pending the finalization of DPWI’s  
		  assessment of the Forensic Audit Report presented by the Department.

		  Training & Development: underspending due to planned training, which could not take place before year-end.

		  Travel & Subsistence: budget saving were as a result of less official trips undertaken than projected.

		  Households:  underspending due to outstanding payments relating to early retirement applications and  
		  pension liability payments to the GEPF.

		  Payments for capital assets: budget underspent due to less requests than anticipated for office furniture and  
		  computer equipment attributable to the merger of DoE and DMR.

1.4.2.7.7 	Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning

		  The Programme spent 39.95 million from the projected spending of R47.57 million, resulting in a net budget  
		  underspending of R7.62 million or 16.03%. The underspending is due to:

•	 Compensation of employees: R6.34 million underspending as a result of vacant positions.

•	 Travel and subsistence:  budget saving due to less official trips undertaken than projected.

1.4.2.7.8	Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation

The Programme spent R80.71 million from the projected spending of R88.36 million, resulting in a net 
underspending of R7.65 million or 8.65%. The contributors to the underspending are:

•	 Compensation of employees: R3.58 million underspending mainly as a result of vacant positions.
Consultants Business and Advisory services: underspending due to outstanding invoices relating to the 
Fuel Sampling and Testing project, as well as the PPALS System Maintenance and Development project. 
Delayed procurement processes for the LPG Audit in the Petroleum and Liquid Fuel Industry project as 
well as the B-BBEE Monitoring Evaluation and Reporting System project. The delayed projects will be 
carried over to the 2020/21 financial year.
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1.4.2.7.9	 	Programme 4: Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management

The Programme spent R5.06 billion of the projected spending of R5.27 billion, resulting in a net budget 
underspending of R210.50 million or 3.99%. The underspending is attributable to the following:

•	 Compensation of employees:  R2.54 million mainly as a result of vacant positions.

•	 INEP Non-Grid Households: R199.83 million underspending due to delays in finalising procurement 
processes for the 2019/20 implementation plan.

•	 	INEP Municipalities: R3.51 million underspending due to the withholding of payments to JS Moroka 
municipality.

•	 Consultants: Business and Advisory Services: underspending due to the delayed commencement of 
procurement processes for the Non-Grid M&V and the Electrification Master Plan projects.  

1.4.2.7.10 	Programme 5: Nuclear Energy

The Programme spent R1.04 billion of the projected spending of R1.05 billion, resulting in a net budget 
underspending of R10.24 million or 0.97%. The underspending is mainly due to:

•	 	Compensation of employees:  R965 thousand as a result of vacant positions.

•	 	Consultants: Business and Advisory Services:  underspending due to the delayed project to stress-test the 
NECSA Turnaround strategy.

•	 International Membership fees: underspending as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates which 
resulted in the foreign exchange rate being lower than anticipated during the time of disbursing payments 
to the IAEA for membership fees.

1.4.2.7.11 	Programme 6: Clean Energy

The Programme spent R422.96 million from the projected spending of R429.08 million resulting in the net 
budget underspending of R6.13 million or 1.43%. The underspending is due to:

•	 Compensation of employees:  R1.94 million as a result of vacant positions. 

•	 Consultants: Business and Advisory Services: due to the delayed commencement of the SWH feasibility 
studies and the EEDSM M&V project. 

•	 	International Membership fees: underspending as a result of the non-payment of a voluntary contribution 
to the International Partnership on Energy Efficiency Cooperation (IPEEC).

1.4.2.8	  	Virement Approvals before the 2019 AENE Process

Section 43(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA) stipulates that an Accounting Officer of 
a department may utilise a saving in the amount appropriated under the main division within a vote towards the 
defrayment of excess expenditure under another main division within the same vote, unless the relevant Treasury directs 
otherwise.  However, section 43(2) and section 43(4) of the PFMA respectively places limitations on the utilisation of these 
savings and on the Accounting Officer’s approval.

1.4.2.8.1	Virement Approvals Granted during the 2019/20 Financial Year  

No virement approvals were granted by the Accounting Officer or National Treasury during the first half of the 
reporting period, therefore, no virement adjustments were included in the 2019 Adjustments Budget (AENE).

The following virement approvals were granted after the conclusion of the 2019 AENE budget process and 
were included in the Department’s final appropriation for the 2019/20 financial year:

1.4.2.8.1.1 Approval 1: Additional Funding to the Clean Energy Programme and Align Budgets with Actual  
			   Expenditure in the Administration Programme 

On the 19th of March 2020, the Accounting Officer granted a virement approval in terms of section 43(1) of 
the PFMA to shift funds within the vote as follows:
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Table 6: Virement Approval 1

From Programme To Programme

Standard Item and Amount Standard Item and Amount

Item R’000 Item R’000

Programme 1: Administration, Item Goods and Services -5,900 Programme 6: Clean Energy, 

Item:  Goods and Services (SWHP)

12,000

Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning, Item: Goods 
and Services

-4,100

Programme 3: Petroleum & Petroleum Products 
Regulation, Item: Goods and Services

-2,600

Programme 1: Administration, Compensation of 
Employees

-4,910 Programme 1: Administration, Item: Transfers & 
Subsidies (Households - Leave Gratuities)

1,050

Programme 1: Administration, Item: Transfers and 
subsidies (households – Severance Package)

2,925

Programme 1: Administration, Item: Transfers and 
subsidies (households – Claims against the State)

889

Programme 1: Administration, Item: Transfers and 
subsidies (households – Refund & Act of Grace)

6

Programme 1: Administration, Item: Transfers 
and subsidies (households – Donations & Gifts - 
Condolence Policy)

40

Programme 1: Administration, Item Goods and Services -11 Programme 1: Administration, Item Payments for 
financial assets (theft & losses)

11

TOTAL FROM -18,921 TOTAL TO 18,921

The aim of the virement request was to enable the implementation of adjustments to ensure that the Department align 
budgets with actual expenditure and prevents an overspending of a main division of a vote, Programme 1: Administration, 
as well as Programme 6: Clean Energy for the payment of Solar Water Heaters’ storage fees which were not budgeted for 
in the current financial year.

1.4.2.8.1.2 Approval 2: Additional Funds for Expenditure associated with the National Solar Water Heater 
Programme

On the 23rd of March 2020, National Treasury granted approval in terms of section 43(4) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 6.3.1(c), to lift the earmarking on funds allocated towards the monitoring and verification 
of Non-grid electrification connections and the development of an electrification master plan in INEP and 
redirect these funds towards Programme 6: Clean Energy, as follows:

Table 7: Virement Approval 2

From Programme To Programme

Item R’000 Item R’000

Programme 4: Electrification and Energy Programme 
and Project Management.

-816 Programme 6: Clean Energy.

Item: Goods and Services (SWH service providers – 
Storage, Transport Contractors, Installation, Insurance).

R7,000

Item: Goods and Services (Earmarked funds for the 
Electrification Master Plan).

R3,000

TOTAL FROM R7,000 TOTAL TO R7,000
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The objective of the virement was to enable the transfer of savings in INEP, emanating from the delayed 
commencement of the monitoring and verification of Non-grid electrification connections and the 
development of an electrification master plan projects, to expenditure associated with the National Solar 
Water Heater Programme, mainly installation of procured units, and prevent an overspending of a main 
division of the vote.

1.4.2.8.1.3 Approval 3: Additional funding to Programme 5: Nuclear Energy for the New Nuclear Build Programme  
		  (NNBP) 

A final virement approval for the 2019/20 financial year was granted by the Accounting Officer on the 20th of 
May 2020 in terms of S43(1) of the PFMA as follows:   

Table 8: Virement Approval 3

From Programme To Programme

Item R’000 Item R’000

Programme 1: Administration, 

Sub-Programme: Office Accommodation, Item: Goods 
and Services (Operating Leases)

5,000 Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Item: Goods and 
Services (Consulting, Business & Advisory Services)

5,000

SUB – TOTAL 5,000 SUB – TOTAL 5,000

The virement sought to align final budget allocations with actual expenditure under Programme 5: Nuclear 
Energy following the payment of the balance owed to a service provider for the 2016/17 procurement of the 
NNBP’s integrated information governance process management system, which was not budgeted for in the 
period under review.		

Following the implementation of all of the above virement approvals requested from both Treasury and the 
Accounting Officer, the final appropriation of Programmes at 31 March 2020 was as reflected on table 9 below:

Table 9: Final Appropriation of Programmes

Programme Name

2019/20

Adjusted 
Appropriation Virement Final Appropriation

R'000 R'000 R'000

1. Administration 306,483 -12,900 293,583

2. Energy Policy and Planning 51,668 -4,100 47,568

3. Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation 90,355 -2,000 88,355

4. Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management 5,281,825 -7,000 5,274,825

5. Nuclear Energy 1,045,143 5,000 1,050,143

6. Clean Energy 408,083 21,000 429,083

Total 7,183,557 - 7,183,557

1.4.2.9 	  2019/20 Roll-Over Funds

The Department’s request to roll unspent funds totalling R54.67 over from the 2018/19 financial year to the 
2019/20 financial year was not approved by National Treasury. Although conditional approval was granted by 
the Minister of Finance during August 2019 for the inclusion of R9.966 million for INEP Non-grid electrification 
projects, the approval was eventually rescinded due to the spending status of the Department, specifically the 
budget underspending of Non-grid Electrification projects.
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1.4.2.10	 Unauthorised Expenditure
During the 2019/20 financial year, the Department did not incur any unauthorised expenditure.  However, 
the Department is carrying a balance of R50.60 million in unauthorised expenditure accumulated from the 
2010/11 and 2016/17 financial years.

At the end of the 2016/17 financial year, Programme 1: Administration (main division) reflected an overspending 
of the allocated budget of R35.74 million. The overspending was recorded across all economic classifications, 
significantly in the goods and services classification (R29.21m) due to increased payments associated with 
the relocation of several regional offices and budget reductions implemented in previous MTEF cycles. This 
unauthorised expenditure was reported and included in the 2016/17 annual report and is in the process of 
being presented for condonation by the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA).

During the 2010/11 financial year, R14.86 million was disbursed from the incorrect vote, leading to unauthorised 
expenditure.  The matter was presented at SCOPA, a complete condonation decision is pending.

1.4.2.11	Supply Chain Management (SCM)
The Department did not have any unsolicited bid proposals for the year under review.

The internal control measures in place are designed to prevent irregular expenditure. As soon as the irregular 
transactions are identified, they are recorded and reported to the Accounting Officer and National Treasury. 
Irregular expenditure transactions are also referred for investigations as and when they occur. 

SCM also ensures compliance with the relevant prescripts to ensure continuous improvement and adherence thereof.

Projects on the procurement plan were not finalised within targeted periods. This challenge was reported to 
the Accounting Officer and consequence management was implemented to Branch Heads.

 
1.4.2.12 	Events after the reporting date

There were no significant events affecting information contained in the Annual Financial Statements that 
happened after 31 March 2020. 

Projects on the procurement plan were not finalised within targeted periods. This challenge was reported to 
the Accounting Officer and consequence management was implemented to Branch Heads. 

In closing this final annual report of the Department of Energy, now known as the Department of Mineral 
Resources and Energy, I would like to express my sincere appreciation to the Minister and the Portfolio 
Committee on Energy for the leadership and support they have given to me and the Department during this 
reporting period.  In addition, I would like to thank Team Energy for their hard work, dedication and sacrifices in 
pursuing the objectives of the Department. I also wish to acknowledge the support and contributions from all 
our stakeholders - your efforts have helped the Department of Energy immensely in delivering energy services 
to the people of South Africa.

Advocate Thabo Mokoena 
Accounting Officer

Date:
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2.1		 Performance Information

The National Development Plan is South Africa’s overarching public policy, including for energy, up to 2030. The 
NDP is operationalised primarily through the Medium-term Strategic Framework, as supported by the Medium-
term Expenditure Framework. The Department of Energy’s 5-year strategic plan provides the main linkage to the 
MTSF and is further refined by DoE’s Annual Performance Plan. This part of the annual report accounts for DoE’s 
pre-determined objectives performance against its 2018/19 Annual Performance Plan (APP).

In carrying out its mandate, DoE formulates energy specific policies, legislation, regulations, programmes, projects, and 
oversees their implementation to ensure energy security, promotion of environmentally friendly energy carriers, and 
access to affordable and reliable energy for all South Africans. DoE executes its mandate by means of six budgetary 
programmes: (1) Administration; (2) Energy Policy and Planning; (3) Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation; (4) 
Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management; (5) Nuclear Energy; and (6) Clean Energy. 

Six state-owned enterprises: National Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA); National Nuclear Regulator (NNR); 
National Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute (NRWDI); Nuclear Energy Corporation of South Africa (NECSA); 
Central Energy Fund (CEF); and South African National Energy Development Institute (SANEDI) contribute to the 
Department’s pre-determined objectives as implementation agents. In addition, the Independent Power Producers 
Office under the direction of the Department of Energy and National Treasury ensures a competitive, open, fair, and 
transparent process in the procurement of renewable and other sources of energy from the private sector.  

2.2		 Auditor General’s Report: Predetermined Objectives

The Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance 
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on 
the performance against pre-determined objectives is included in the report to management, with material 
findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on the Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements section of the Auditor’s Report.

Please refer to the Report of the Auditor-General published in Part E.

2.3		D EPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE IN PRACTICE

“Performance” is comprised of two main elements: financial performance and non-financial performance. 
Other factors impact overall performance, such as international relations and agreements in the energy space, 
SOE performance, number and quality of public-private partnerships, and citizen satisfaction, amongst others. 
By means of DoE’s planning documents, Service Delivery Improvement Plan, M&E, and other mechanisms DoE 
continuously addresses both emerging opportunities, as well as existing challenges.

As the leading Government Department in the energy space, we have always indicated that our objectives are 
premised on improved energy security, the diversification of our energy mix, including Regional Integration, increasing 
access to modern energy carriers, reducing our greenhouse gas Emissions, reducing our water usage, developing the 
skills necessary for job creation, improving our energy efficiency and lowering the cost of energy. The Department of 
Energy of South Africa, like its sister government departments, as well as affiliated state owned entities, operate in a 
dynamic global and African context. South Africa faces the triple threat of poverty, unemployment, and inequity in a 
complex policy environment, and aims to transition to a low-carbon future and a more diverse and inclusive economy.1

 1	NDP, 2012, pp. 75-96, 197-98.
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South Africa is a signatory to the Paris Agreement on Climate Change and has ratified the agreement. In line with 
INDCs (submitted to the UNFCCC in November 2016), South Africa’s emissions are expected to peak, plateau, and 
from year 2025, decline. The energy sector contributes close to 80% towards the country’s total greenhouse gas 
emissions of which 50% are from electricity generation and liquid fuel production. There are several initiatives to 
reduce emissions with investment already in renewable energy, energy efficiency, and public transport.

These challenges are counterbalanced by the promise of the 4th Industrial Revolution. It is the fourth major 
industrial era since the initial Industrial Revolution of the 18th century. It is characterised by a fusion of technologies 
that is blurring the lines between the physical, digital and biological spheres, collectively referred to as cyber-
physical systems. The Honourable President Cyril Ramaphosa recently appointed a panel of eminent scholars and 
business persons to the Presidential Commission on the Fourth Industrial Revolution to demonstrate seriousness 
about our preparedness. The energy sector is at the cusp of this exciting period, reminiscent of the huge changes 
brought about by rapid technological advancement in the mobile telephony industry in recent years. South Africa 
needs to be prepared for the disruptive times that the fourth industrial revolution will bring and adjust in a responsible 
way. Big centralised power generation plants will disappear and be replaced by distributed generation, mini-grids, and 
batteries of various scales. As government we must ensure that our youth will embrace the new technologies and move 
with the changing times. We should grow the investment made in renewable energy to date. The NDP envisages that: 
South Africa must leverage its solar resource and regional hydropower opportunities as competitive advantages, in parallel 
with the responsible exploitation of fossil fuels and minerals.

2.3.1	 Electricity

The NDP envisages that by 2030 South Africa will have an energy sector that provides reliable and efficient energy 
service at competitive rates; that is socially equitable through expanded access to energy at affordable tariffs; and that 
is environmentally sustainable through reduced emissions and pollution. In formulating its vision for the electricity 
sector, the NDP took as a point of departure the Integrated Resource Plan 2010–2030, promulgated in March 2011.

The Integrated Resource Plan of 2019 (IRP 2019) is currently the Department’s preeminent policy for the South African 
electricity sector. Installed capacity for electricity generation by fuel type is as follows: 38 GW from coal, 1.8 GW from 
nuclear, 2.7 GW from pumped storage, 1.7 GW from hydro, 3.8 GW from diesel, and 3.7 GW from renewable energy. The 
electricity generated is transmitted through a network of high-voltage transmission lines that connect the various load 
centres, and Eskom and municipalities further distribute the electricity to end users, including the South African public. 
Eskom also supplies a number of international customers, including some SADC electricity utilities.

South Africa through Eskom participates and trades electricity through the South African Power Pool (SAPP). The 
African continent is rich with primary energy resources, however, there is limited energy trading between the 
African countries. South Africa imports electricity through Eskom from the Cahora Bassa dam in Mozambique. 
South Africa through Eskom also exports electricity to Botswana, eSwatini, Lesotho, Mozambique, Namibia, 
Zambia, and Zimbabwe. Transmission infrastructure is needed to unlock regional energy trading and enable 
further development of electricity generation projects. Increased collaboration and alignment at regional level is 
key to unlocking already identified generation and transmission infrastructure projects.

The IRP as an electricity infrastructure development plan is based on reaching a balance between demand and “least-
cost electricity” supply while taking into account the country’s energy security and the environment (to minimise 
negative emissions and water usage). In total 18 000MW of new generation capacity is allocated as follows:

•	 IPPs have commissioned 1 005 MW from two Open Cycle Gas Turbine (OCGT) peaking plants;

•	 A total of 6 422 MW has been procured by the REIPP Programme, with 3 876 MW made operational and 
available to the grid;

•	 	Eskom has commissioned 1 332 MW from Ingula pumped storage, 1 588 MW from Medupi (coal), 800 MW 
from Kusile (coal), and 100 MW from the Sere Wind Farm.
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The current electricity shortages will ease as Eskom finishes critical maintenance. Bid Window 4 of the renewable 
energy programme has been accelerated while the rapid decline in renewable energy prices will give new impetus 
to the remaining Bid Window 5. South Africa continues to pursue a diversified energy mix that reduces reliance on a 
single or a few primary energy sources. Generation capacity is designed to restore the necessary reserve margin and to 
be ahead of the economic growth curve at the least possible cost. The extent of decommissioning of the existing coal 
fleet due to end-of-design life, could provide space for a completely different energy mix relative to the current mix. In 
the period prior to 2030, the IRP 2019 provides for largely incremental capacity (modular and flexible technology) to 
complement the existing fixed capacity. The restructuring of the electricity sector as a whole is also underway with a 
R230 billion allocation over ten years.

2.3.2		L iquid Fuels
The CEF group is a South African state owned company responsible for finding solutions to meet South Africa’s 
energy needs. Through its subsidiaries, the Petroleum Oil and Gas Corporation of South Africa (PetroSA), Petroleum 
Agency South Africa (PASA), Strategic Fuel Fund (SFF), African Exploration Mining and Finance Corporation 
(AEMFC) and iGas, the group also manages the operations and development of South Africa’s oil and gas assets.

Recently South Africa and South Sudan signed an oil exploration and production sharing agreement which is strategic 
for South Africa as an energy consumer. South Sudan currently produces 160,000 barrels of oil per day. The agreement 
concerns Block B2 which will be operated by South Africa’s state-owned Strategic Fuel Fund (SFF), and the Ministry of 
Petroleum and Nilepet, the national oil company of the Republic of South Sudan. The B2 area includes productive parts 
of the Muglad Basin and is part of the 120,000 square kilometer Block B which was split into three in 2012. 

Under this agreement, which includes a six-year exploration period, the SFF alongside Nilepet will launch 
a comprehensive aerogravity survey exploration campaign, seismic acquisition and drill wells with great 
prospectivity. The SFF will also invest in capacity building initiatives, training of South Sudanese citizens, social 
and community development projects and ensure local content and the empowerment of women. 

Much of South Sudan’s oil and gas blocks are yet to be fully explored and resources assessed. Last year, South Africa’s 
Department of Energy pledged to invest $1 billion into South Sudan’s petroleum industry, with the aim of securing 
affordable energy supplies for South Africa. The countries are in talks to set up a 60,000 barrel per day refinery to supply oil 
products to the local market in South Sudan, as well as to secure exports to Ethiopia and other neighbouring countries.

2.3.3		 Gas
Concerning the recent oil and gas discovery off our shores, as the Honourable President Cyril Rhamaphosa noted 
in last year’s State of the Nation speech:

This could well be a game-changer for our country and will have significant consequences for our country’s 
energy security and the development of this industry. We congratulate Total and its various partners and wish 
them well in their endeavours. Government will continue to develop legislation for the sector so that it is properly 
regulated in the interest of all concerned.

In light of the need to transition to cleaner energy, the SADC Energy Ministers approved in 2018 the development 
of the SADC Regional Gas Master Plan covering evaluation of the available gas resources and existing markets, gas 
utilisation strategy, supply and demand analysis, infrastructure development plans, identification and linkages of value 
chains as well as institutional, regulatory and fiscal frameworks. In Southern Africa we will be able to expand electricity 
generation through the use of gas given the huge potential and opportunity in this regard. Mozambique and Tanzania 
gas resources in particular are well positioned for cross-boundary development of gas pipeline infrastructure. It is 
important that gas demand in the region is serviced from regional gas resources, so as to increase the opportunity for 
intra-African trade and economic collaboration. The planned gas pipeline from Rovuma Basin in Mozambique through 
South Africa and possibly beyond, fits into this strategy. The above are major areas of focus for the region which also 
presents opportunities to investors who have an interest in gas development, renewable energy and energy efficiency 
in the region. Furthermore, the success of the renewable energy sector in South Africa has also led the Southern African 
Development Community (SADC) energy sector to emulate and develop their renewable energy sectors.
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2.3.4		 Additional Considerations
To capitalise more intensively on some of the positive world-wide trends, such as storage technology, the 
Department together with SANEDI, needs to accelerate Research and Development (R&D) given that it underpins 
the growth and sustainability of the energy sector, and, in turn, the broader economy. Among the BRICS countries, 
R&D intensity is above 1% in Brazil, China and the Russian Federation and below 1% in South Africa and India 
(2007 data). In consequence, it has been recommended that at least 1.5% of South Africa’s fiscal appropriation 
be earmarked for R&D with a higher proportion of this going to energy than is currently the case. Intelligent 
use of “matching funding” instruments will also encourage greater private sector co-investment. 2  This requires 
better use of existing resources and more nimble organisations that facilitate innovation and greater cooperation 
between public science and technology institutions and the public sector.3 

In addition, energy data should underpin all major policies, programmes, and projects. The significance and 
cross-cutting nature of the need for home grown energy data to support evidence based policy making was 
highlighted recently as follows:

And to be more relevant for South African policy making in a sustainable manner, government, universities, think tanks, and 
research councils need to get more involved in generating energy security and energy transition relevant methodologies 
and data. Future research may build on existing international data sets for South Africa, but only as adjuncts to home 
grown indicators, baselines and thresholds addressing the following: energy security; energy transition; climate change; 
sustainability; policy and regulatory uncertainty; economic growth; job creation; energy infrastructure; financing availability; 
innovation; the energy-water nexus; energy services; and citizen involvement.4 

Clearly, the Department of Energy operates in a dynamic global and regional environment. This creates both 
great opportunities, as well as challenges. The NDP has perhaps described this best by noting that “it is difficult for 
the Department of Energy, on its own, to deal effectively with cross-cutting issues, which encompass institutional 
capacity, governance, competition, regulation, investment, spatial planning, linkages to transport, water and ICT 
infrastructure and economic, social and environmental impacts” (p. 174). Within this context, the Department 
aims at producing sufficient energy to support industry at competitive prices, ensuring access for poor 
households, and reducing carbon emissions per unit of power in line with government policy. 5

2.4		Strategic  Outcome Oriented Goals 

The medium to long term goals of the Department of Energy are guided by the following NDP objectives:

•	 The proportion of people with access to the electricity grid should rise to at least 90 percent by 2030, with 
non-grid options available for the rest; 

•	 	An additional 29,000MW of electricity capacity should be provided by 2030. About 10,900MW of existing 
capacity should be retired, implying a new build of more than 40,000MW, at least 20,000MW of which should 
come from renewable resources;

•	 An economy-wide carbon price should be embedded by 2030;

•	 Zero emission building standards should come into force by 2030;

•	 Relations among national, provincial and local government should be improved by a more proactive 
approach to managing the intergovernmental system; and 

•	 Clear governance structures and stable leadership should enable state-owned enterprises to achieve their 
developmental potential.

2ASSAf, The State of Energy Research in South Africa, August 2014, p. 76.
3NDP Executive Summary.
4Epaminondas Bellos, Journal of Cleaner Production, 2018, vol. 205, pp. 738-753.
5NDP Executive Summary.
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The NDP is operationalised by the fourteen government outcomes of the Medium-Term Strategic Framework 
(MTSF) as enumerated next.

2.4.1		 Fourteen Priority Government Outcomes, 2014-2019 

1.	 A skilled and capable workforce to support an inclusive growth path; 

2.	 Decent employment through inclusive economic growth; 

3.	 An efficient, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure network;

4.	 Protect and enhance our environment assets and natural resources;

5.	 Comprehensive rural development and land reform; 

6.	 Create a better South Africa, a better Africa and a better World; 

7.	 Sustainable human settlements and improve quality of household life; 

8.	 	Quality basic education; 

9.	 A long and healthy life for all South Africans; 

10.	 An inclusive and responsive social protection system; 

11.	 All people in South Africa are and feel safe; 

12.	 Responsive, accountable, effective and efficient developmental local government; 

13.	 An efficient, effectiveness development oriented public service; and 

14.	 	National Building and social cohesion.

Of these fourteen MTSF Outcomes, the energy sector is primarily guided by Outcomes 6, 7, 9, and 10.

2.4.1.1	 Programme 1 Outcome 6: An efficient, competitive and responsive economic infrastructure network. 

Sub-outcome 1: Regulation, funding and investment improved;

•	 Indicator: Amend the National Energy Regulator Act and the Electricity Regulation Act; and

•	 Indicator: Reviewed Electricity Pricing Policy issued. 

Sub-outcome 2: Reliable generation, transmission and distribution of energy ensured through SIPs 1, 8, 9 and 
10.

•	 	Indicator: Solar Water Heater installations;

•	 	Indicator: Renewable Energy IPP Bid Window 1, 2, 3 and 4;

•	 	Indicator: Review bulk electrical infrastructure required for universal access to electricity, prepare an 
implementation plan, and implement;

•	 	Indicator: Publication of approved IEP;

•	 	Indicator: Refine, update and implement the Integrated Resource Plan and investigate market share (%) 
completed against the plan; 

•	 	Indicator: Publication of approved Gas Infrastructure Master Plan and regulations for economically recoverable 
shale gas reserves;

•	 	Indicator: Resolve infrastructure backlogs and implement Cabinet approved proposals for ring-fencing the 
electricity distribution business of the 12 largest municipalities; 

•	 Indicator: Measured demand savings in MW in line with the National Energy Efficiency Strategy and Action 
Plan; and

•	 Indicator: Approved funding mechanisms implemented for upgrading of existing refineries to ensure they 
meet new fuel-quality standards and decision on expanding oil refining capacity.
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2.4.1.2	 Outcome 7: Vibrant, equitable, sustainable rural communities contributing towards food security for all.

Sub-outcome 5: Increased access to quality infrastructure and functional services, particularly in 
education, healthcare, and public transport in rural areas.

•	 	Indicator: Number of households linked to grid or micro scheme (electricity) and number connected 
with off-grid technology; and

•	 	Indicator: Number of Integrated Energy Centres newly established and operational.

2.4.1.3	 Outcome 9: Responsive, accountable, effective and efficient developmental local government system.

Sub-outcome 1: Members of society have sustainable and reliable access to basic services.

•	 	Indicator: 1.4 million additional households connected to the grid; and

•	 	Indicator: 105,000 additional households with non-grid electricity.

2.4.1.4	 Outcome 10: Protect and enhance our environmental assets and natural resources.

Sub-outcome 2: An effective climate change mitigation and adaptation response.

•	 	Indicator: Percentage of new build that is renewable power generation (to incorporate off-grid 
energy);

•	 	Indicator: Percentage of energy efficiency improvement;

•	 	Indicator: Annual energy balances provided to support compilation of the GHG inventory; and

•	 Indicator: Biennial calorific value for all energy carriers published.

Sub-outcome 5: Sustainable human communities. 

•	 	Indicator: Megawatts of renewable energy deployed off-grid.

2.5		 Key policy developments and legislative changes

As announced by the Minister of Finance it will shortly be possible for municipalities in financially 
good standing to purchase electricity from independent power producers. This represents a change in 
existing policy designed to ease electricity supply constraints and thereby enhance energy security. Most 
municipalities struggle to keep up with the payment for bulk electricity purchases from Eskom, and as at 
March 2018, Eskom’s Chairman indicated that the debt burden stood at over R13.5 billion and continued 
to rise. The fiscal framework for some municipalities (particularly the rural ones) is unviable, posing a serious 
risk to their financial sustainability.

Distributed generation through biomass, biogas and municipal waste hold great potential for 
improving municipal revenues. All municipalities have sites for processing waste; they also have 
sewer outfall sites. Technologies are available for these resources to be added to the generation mix 
at sub-utility scale. Most small scale generation technologies have low capacity factors, meaning 
that typically the power is not generated throughout the day and night. For a balanced and safe 
interconnected power system to be operated sustainably, the intermittent power generators have to 
be integrated and controlled through smart technologies.
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2.6		  Organisational Environment 

In May 2019 the President announced the reconfiguration of Government which resulted in the creation of a new 
Department of Mineral Resources and Energy (DMRE) through a merger between the Department of Mineral 
Resources and the Department of Energy with effect from 01 April 2020. The majority of the 2019/2020 financial year 
was dedicated to managing the merger, transition, development of the start-up structure for DMRE and winding up 
the old Department of Energy through the National Macro Organisation of Government (NMOG) process. 

The review/reconfiguration of the DoE organisational structure so as to be fit for purpose and the implementation 
of employee satisfaction survey recommendations were taken over by the merger of the DoE and DMR into 
DMRE. The Department will review the DMRE start-up organizational structure to align with the DMRE Strategic 
Plan in order to ensure that the Organisational Structure is fit for purpose and implement necessary change 
management interventions accordingly.

The DoE 2019/2020 financial year end resulted in 597 posts with 534 employees and 36 additional employments 
to the establishment until 31 March 2020. A vacancy rate of 10, 6% was observed at the end of the period which is 
6% down from the previous financial year. The turnover rate of 16.1% was significantly higher than previous years 
but was due to the end of contracts which coincided with the merger date of the DMRE. 

Training and Development continued for the year under review with 21 Bursaries issued to employees, 
36 Learnerships, 22 Internships and 225 Skills Programmes being implemented. Training programs were 
implemented in line with the Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) and a set target of 60 was achieved and exceeded to 64. 

Although there was no Employee Health and Wellness (EHW) service provider for the year, Health and Wellness activities 
were hosted during the year including events and wellness clinics. The process of procuring the EHW services was 
stopped because of the impending merger between DoE and DMR to form DMRE. Professional services were procured 
through the Supply Chain Management (SCM) process when required by the officials and their family members. 

Two duly authorised employee unions namely, the National Education, Health and Allied Workers’ Union (NEHAWU) 
and the Public Service Association (PSA) represent workers. NEHAWU organises state, health, education and welfare 
workers. PSA represents public servants, public service pensioners, and employees of quasi-state institutions. 
Additional discussion and descriptive statistics concerning human resources may be found in Part D of this report.

2.7		Ser vice Delivery Improvement Plan

The Department has a service delivery improvement plan.  The next four tables highlight the items of the service 
delivery plan and the achievements in this reporting period.

Table 10: Main Services and Standards

Main Services Beneficiaries Current/Actual Standard of 
Service

Desired Standard of 
Service

Actual Achievement

Petroleum 
Licensing. 

South African citizens

Manufacturers, 
Wholesalers and 
Retailers.

95% compliance rate by the 
Controller on finalising all 
applications within 90 days, 
excluding site & retail NTI 
applications.

90% compliance rate by the 
Controller on finalising site & 
retail NTI applications within 
60 days.

At least 50% of licence 
applications approved have 
a minimum of 50% HDSA 
ownership.

Achieved            

                                                                 
91.85% compliance - 733 
applications with 50% and more 
HDSA involvement out of 798 
applications approved. 

The percentage of participation by 
black Africans in the retail sector 
remains low.
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Main Services Beneficiaries Current/Actual Standard of 
Service

Desired Standard of 
Service

Actual Achievement

Compliance with 
the Petroleum 
Product Act.

South African citizens

Manufacturers, 
Wholesalers and 
Retailers.

100 retail site compliance 
inspections conducted. 

1 080 fuel samples tested.

At least 1,500 retail site 
compliance inspections 
conducted.

At least 1,080 fuel samples 
tested.

Achieved

1367 Retail site inspections were 
conducted.

Achieved

1080 Fuel samples were collected 
and tested.

Fuel stock levels 
and corrective 
actions.

South African citizens Fuels stock levels monitored 
& corrective action taken to 
avoid distribution shortages 
coordinated.

Fuels stock levels monitored 
& corrective action taken to 
avoid distribution shortages 
coordinated.

The Department plays an active 
role in the co-ordination and 
monitoring of fuel supply in 
the Republic to ensure the 
security of supply of petroleum 
products. There are a number of 
factors that affect the supply of 
petroleum products throughout 
the year, internal and external 
to the country. The Department 
continuously monitors stock levels 
of manufacturers, importers/
exporters and distribution of 
petroleum products through 
supply infrastructure to ensure 
security of supply in the Republic.  

Universal access 
to energy.

South African citizens. To electrify 235 000 
households  through grid 
connections.

20 000 households through 
non-grid connections 
throughout the country.

To build 3 new substations 
throughout the country.

To upgrade 4 substations 
throughout the country.

4 Quarterly Reports on 
additional households to 
be electrified with grid 
electrification toward the 
2019/20 target of 195 000. 

4 Quarterly Reports on 
additional households 
electrified with no-grid 
electrification towards the 
2019/20 target of 20 000.

4 Quarterly reports on 
building /upgrading of 
electrification infrastructure 
projects toward the 2019/20 
targets as contracted with 
Eskom and municipalities

Achieved 214 517 additional 
households electrified with grid 
electricity.

4 Quarterly reports were produced.

Not achieved

1 364 households connected 
through non-grid programme 
(roll-over funds).

Achieved 

3  New substations built, 3  
Upgraded substations,  
174,87  MV Power lines 
constructed, 11 existing MV  
power lines upgraded.

Table 10: Main Services and Standards (continued)
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Table 11: Batho Pele Arrangements with Beneficiaries (Consultation Access etc.)

Current/Actual Arrangements Desired Arrangements Actual Achievements

Managers and other employees of the 
department are responding to complaints 
and concerns received from the public.

Citizens should be told what quality 
of service they will receive and this 
should be treated with courtesy 
Regional offices exist to support 
beneficiaries with information, 
resolution of queries & general 
electrification assistance; access to  
the head office is also possible at  
all  times.

All reported cases of alleged, irregular, and/
or fraudulent practices received from the 
Presidential Hotline, members of the public, 
and media during the year under review were 
investigated and resolved. To date, 5 cases 
have been referred, 1 is in progress, and 4 have 
been closed. 

Website management is to be enhanced 
on a regular basis to optimise  the 
correctness and accuracy information.

Managers and other employees of the 
department are responding to complaints 
and concerns received from the public. 

Citizens should be given full, accurate 
information about services they are 
entitled too. Information posted on 
website.

If the promised standard is not 
delivered, citizens should be offered 
apology. 

Achieved

Total of 765 daily Website information updates.

Citizens are told how the Department 
is running its business operations, how 
much they cost and who is in charge. 
Information with regard to our offerings is 
posted on http://www.doe.gov.za.

People’s needs must be  
responded to.

Contact with the Department is 
currently done  via the website 
address email, telephone and / or  
face to face consultation.

Achieved via:

1. info@energy.gov.za - facilitates general 
enquiries. 

2. mediadesk@energy.gov.za - facilitates media 
specific enquiries. 

3. Petroleum Licensing Helpdesk telephonic 
service – facilitates all petroleum related 
enquiries.

4. Full list of Regional Offices supplemented by 
the Petroleum Licensing Regional Contacts Table.

5. Online Contact Form. 

Table 12: Service Delivery Information Tool

Current/Actual Information Tools Desired Information Tools Actual Achievements

Workshops, Izimbozo/Public Participation 
Programmes, Community Engagements.

Workshops, Izimbizo/Public 
Participation Programmes, 
Community Engagements 
Programme Records.

Achieved

14 Izimbizo events were conducted.  

Table 13: Complaints Mechanism

Current/Actual Complaints Mechanism Desired Complaints Mechanism Actual Achievements

Media, Presidential Anti-Corruption 
Hotline, Telephone Enquiries, 
Correspondences, Face to Face Meetings, 
Stakeholder Engagements During 
Izimbizo.

Enquiries received through Media, 
Presidential Anti-Corruption 
Hotline, Telephone Enquiries, 
Correspondence, Face to Face 
meetings,  questions raised during 
stakeholder engagements/Izimbizo 
are responded to accurately and  
timeously. 

Achieved

Media Enquiries serviced

Presidential Hotline enquires handled. 
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2.8		 Performance Information Overview 

The five-year plan of the Department of Energy culminates in the 20 pre-determined objectives enumerated in 
Table 14 below. The specific Programme Performance tables that follow are linked to these strategic objectives.

Table 14: DoE Strategic Objectives, 2015-20 

DoE Strategic Objectives from Revised 2019-20 APP

SO 1.1 To promote sound corporate governance practices within the DoE (unchanged)

SO 1.2 To ensure effective and sound financial resource management

SO 1.3 To ensure effective  corporate resource management

SO 1.4 To provide executive and administrative support services to the Ministry, DG and DDGs (unchanged)

SO. 1.5 To provide strategic support of energy security (unchanged)

SO 2.1 To Improve energy security (unchanged)

SO 2.2 To improve liquid fuels energy security by developing & implementing the 20YLFIRM

SO 2.3 Policy and regulations to ensure security of supply

SO 2.4 To review the bulk electrical infrastructure required for the universal access to electricity

SO 2.5 [sic]*

SO 2.6 To ensure Security of supply through additional power generation capacity

SO 3.1 Compliance Monitoring & Enforcement in the Petroleum Sector

SO 3.2 Promote petroleum licensing

SO 4.1 To ensure access to electricity by households (unchanged)

SO 4.2 To enhance programme and project management (unchanged)

SO 4.3 To monitor energy infrastructure development (unchanged)

SO 5.1 Improved security of energy supply

SO 5.2 To strengthen the control of nuclear material and equipment (unchanged)

SO 6.1 To co-ordinate and monitor the Implementation of energy-related climate change response measures and environmental compliance 
(unchanged)

SO 6.2  Renewable Energy

SO 6.3 Implementation of energy-related climate change response measures & environmental compliance coordinated & monitored

* Missing number in original document.
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2.9		 Performance Information for Fiscal Year 2019/20 

Out of a total of 33 APP targets in 2019/20, the Department achieved 17 (52 %), partially achieved 9 (27 %), 
and did not achieve 7 (21 %) during the 2019/20 fiscal year at the short-term output level. It is also important 
to note that the household electrification target under the Programmes and Projects branch received in 
round numbers 90% of the Department’s budget, with the remaining annual budget of 10% being equally 
distributed between all other achieved targets (50%) and partially achieved and not achieved targets (50%). 
These figures provide an overall view of the funds expended relative to the achievement of targets.

The Department sets its standards and assesses its progress based on the criteria set out in Table 15 below. 
According to DPME, departments should strive for a 100% achievement of the planned targets in the Annual 
Performance Plan (APP). If achievement is lower than 80%, it is indicative of the quality of plans. Furthermore, 
we implement the agreement between National Treasury and the Auditor-General of South Africa concerning 
the partial achievement of targets as outlined in the document titled The Implementation of Strategic and 
Annual Performance Plans, and the Audit Thereof: Resolution on Emerging Issues, dated September, 2013.

Table 15: Standards for Annual Targets

Progress Description Percentage Attained Annual Report Status

Activity not initiated on time or progress slower than planned 0-49% Not Achieved

In-year progress slower than planned 50-79% Partially Achieved

Annual delivery on track to meet medium-term target 80-100% Achieved

According to DPME, departments should strive for a 100% achievement of the planned targets in the Annual 
Performance Plan (APP). If achievement is lower than 80%, it is indicative of the quality of plans the Department 
may have and brings doubt as to whether the department is using the plan to guide implementation. 

In addition to the APP targets, the Department maintained an Institutional Operational Plan (IOP) that addresses 
support services and operational activities. In the period under review, out of 133 targets, the Department 
achieved 82 (62%), partially achieved 20 (15%), and did not achieve 31 (23%).

2.10 	Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

			   The Department will develop an Improvement Plan for all areas of underperformance modelled on the now  
		  abolished MPAT. 

2.11		Changes to planned targets

The Department of Energy tabled and published its 2019/20 Annual Performance Plan in July 2019. Upon an in-year 
review, several targets were found not to be clearly defined and specific in accordance with the SMART principle. 
As a result, the targets identified in Table 16 below in the (1) Electrification and Energy Programme and Projects 
Management, and (2) Energy Policy and Planning programmes were improved accordingly together with their 
associated indicators.
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Table 16: Changed Planned Targets

Original Target* Revised Target**

The Number of Quarterly Reports on vacancy rate of less than or equals to 15% against 
the funded positions Quarter.

4 Quarterly Reports on vacancy rate against the 
funded positions. 

The Negotiations of the off-take agreement with the project developer concluded. Negotiate Off-take agreement with the project 
developer.

4 Quarterly Reports on additional households to be electrified with grid electrification 
towards the target of 195 000 in the National Electrification Plan.

4 Quarterly Reports on the allocation of funding 
and the monitoring of implementation of grid 
electrification of additional households by Eskom 
and Municipalities. 

4 Quarterly Reports on building/upgrading of electrification infrastructure projects 
towards the targets, as contracted with Eskom and municipalities.

2 new bulk substations built; 3 additional substations upgraded; 50 km new MV power 
lines constructed; and 50 km of existing MV power lines upgraded.

4 Quarterly Reports on building/upgrading of 
electrification infrastructure projects toward 
the targets, as contracted with Eskom and 
municipalities.

Draft Renewable Energy Technology Roadmaps (RETRM) drafted and completed. Terms of Reference for the Renewable Energy 
Technology Roadmap (RETRM) completed.

Report on installation roll-out of 87 000 procured SWH baseline systems in 19 municipalities. Reports on the roll out of the NSWH Programme

* Source: 2019-20 Annual Performance Plan; **Source: 2019-20 Revised Annual Performance Plan.

Note: The 2019/20 target concerning outcomes 4,6,7,8, 9, and 10 reporting has been abolished by DPME and hence 
not addressed herein.

2.12 	Performance Information by Programme

2.12.1		 Programme 1

2.12.1.1 	Purpose: To provide strategic leadership, management and support services to the Department.

2.12.1.2	Descriptions:

			   Sub-Programme 1.1: Ministry 

This sub-programme provides executive support to the Minister and Deputy Minister (DM) and provides 
a parliamentary service to the Minister, DM, DoE and Energy Sector. No strategic objectives, performance 
indicators or targets were set for this sub-programme. 

			   Sub-Programme 1.2: Departmental Management 

This sub-programme provides executive support to the Director-General (DG) and Deputy Directors-General 
(DDGs) in carrying out the DoE’s mandate and contributes to critical government programmes. 

			   Sub-Programme 1.3: Governance and Compliance 

This sub-programme provides strategic direction and guidance on strategic planning, risk management, 
report monitoring and evaluation, State Owned Entity (SOE) oversight as well as international co-ordination. 

		   	 Sub-Programme 1.4: Finance Administration 

This sub-programme provides financial management, accounting and supply chain management (SCM) 
services to the DoE. 
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			   Sub-Programme 1.5: Audit Services 

This sub-programme provides an audit and support service to the DoE. 

			   Sub-Programme 1.6: Corporate Services 

This sub-programme provides corporate support to the DoE and ensures good corporate governance and 
compliance by the DoE and state-owned entities (SOEs).

2.12.1.3	The Progress made in achieving Programme 1 Pre-determined Objectives for FY 2019-20 is  
		  summarised next.

Table 17: Programme 1 Progress

Strategic Objective 1.1-1.5 (see Table 14)

Programme 1: Administration

Performance 
Indicators from 
2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 2019/20 
APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on 
Deviations

SOEs Strategic Plans, 
Corporate Plans & 
Shareholder Compacts 
approved.

(Governance & 
Compliance branch

SOEs Strategic Plans, Corporate 
Plans & Shareholder Compacts 
submitted to the Minister.

Partially Achieved 

             

SOEs Strategic Plans, 
Corporate Plans & 
Shareholder Compacts 
with the exception of 
CEF were received and 
approved.

CEF requested extension 
for submission of 
Corporate Plan.

CEF’s request for extension 
was approved by the 
Minister.

Number of foreign 
participants to 
advance energy 
agenda with the rest of 
the world.

(Governance & 
Compliance branch)

18 foreign participants to advance 
energy agenda with the rest of 
the world.

Achieved

24 foreign participants 
to advance energy 
agenda with the rest of 
the world.

+6 6 additional bilateral 
arrangements were 
conducted.                     

Number of foreign 
participants to 
advance the African 
Agenda in the energy 
sector with African 
countries.

(Governance & 
Compliance branch)

10 foreign participants to advance 
the African Agenda in the energy 
sector with African countries.

Achieved

10 foreign participants 
to advance the African 
Agenda in the energy 
sector with African 
countries.

None None
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Strategic Objective 1.1-1.5 (see Table 14)

Programme 1: Administration

Performance 
Indicators from 
2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 2019/20 
APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on 
Deviations

Number of foreign 
participants to 
advance the African 
Agenda in the 
energy sector with 
multilaterals.

(Governance & 
Compliance branch)

12 foreign participants to advance 
the African Agenda in the energy 
sector with multilaterals.

Achieved 

27 foreign participants 
to advance the African 
Agenda in the energy 
sector with multilaterals.

+15 15 additional multilateral 
engagements were held 
with European countries 
to promote energy issues. 

Results of the Annual 
Audit Report.

(Financial 
Management Services 
branch)

Unqualified Audit Report by the 
AG achieved for 2018/19.

Not Achieved Department received a 
qualified audit opinion.  

Accept irregular 
expenditure and 
implement consequence 
management. 

Percentage of 
approved invoices 
from service providers 
paid within 30 days of 
receipt.

(Financial 
Management Services 
branch)

100% approved invoices from 
service providers paid within 30 
days of receipt.

Partially Achieved 

98.98% approved 
invoices were paid 
within 30 days of 
receipt. 

-1.02% of invoices were 
paid outside of 30 days 
mainly due to delays in 
verification processes.

Communication of 
compliance requirements 
with service providers 
needs to be improved.

Number of Quarterly 
Reports on vacancy 
rate of less than or 
equal to 15% against 
the funded positions.

Number of  Quarterly 
Reports on Vacancy 
rate against the funded 
positions (Revised 
indicator).

(Corporate Services 
branch)

4 Quarterly Reports on Vacancy 
rate against the funded positions 
(Revised target).

Achieved

The vacancy rate at the 
end of the quarter was 
10.55%.

4 Quarterly Reports 
on vacancy rate were 
produced.

None None

Number of Izimbizo 
PPPs conducted.

(Corporate Services 
branch)

20 Izimbizo PPPs conducted. Partially Achieved

14 Izimbizo were 
conducted.

-6 Budget constraints limited 
achievement.   

Table 17: Programme 1 Progress (continued)
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2.12.1.4		 Linking Performance with Budgets
Table 18: Sub-Programme Expenditure

Administration

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Ministry 31,684 30,503 1,181 42,424 42,132 292

Departmental Management 80,500 77,007 3,493 79,434 77,907 1,527

Finance Administration 39,367 37,732 1,635 40,539 38,627 1,912

Audit Services 6,567 6,513 54 8,453 7,008 1,445

Corporate Services 93,356 88,585 4,771 85,302 90,904 -5,602

Office Accommodation 42,109 39,043 3,066 49,177 47,438 1,739

Total 293,583 279,383 14,200 305,329 304,017 1,312

2.12.2		 Programme 2 
2.12.2.1	Purpose: To ensure evidence-based planning, policy setting and investment decisions in the energy sector to 
improve the security of energy supply, regulation and competition. 

2.12.2.2	 	Descriptions 

Sub-Programme 2.1: Policy Analysis and Research 
This sub-programme develops key indicators and monitors the impact of energy sector policies, planning and 
interventions; analyses all energy policies and their impact on access to energy and security of energy supply; 
conducts research and analyses policies in relation to other countries; and conducts research and analyses national 
and international trends or developments that impact on the demand and supply of energy. 

Sub-Programme 2.2: Energy Planning 
This sub-programme manages energy data and information; develops and maintains an energy modelling system 
to simulate energy supply and distribution; identifies energy supply and distribution constraints and addresses them 
through the Integrated Energy Plan (IEP); manages the overall collection, collation, validation, integrity and quality of 
energy data; and is responsible for managing the development of energy plans and strategic interventions for the 
generation, refining, distribution and transmission of energy sources for demand and supply optimisation. 

Sub-Programme 2.3: Hydrocarbon Policy 
This sub-programme ensures a secure energy supply, well-managed demand, enhanced access to hydrocarbons 
and a transformed energy sector. It also ensures that energy regulation and competition are improved through 
the development, promulgation and maintenance of a statutory framework for petroleum, petroleum products, 
petroleum infrastructure, coal and gas. 

Sub-Programme 2.4: Electricity, Energy Efficiency and Environmental Policy 
This sub-programme ensures secure energy supply; well-managed demand and a transformed energy sector; and 
energy regulation and competition that is improved through the development, promulgation and maintenance of 
a statutory framework for electricity over the medium term.
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2.12.2.3	The Progress made in Achieving Programme 2 Pre-determined Objectives for FY 2019-20
Table 19: Programme 2 Progress

Strategic Objectives 2.1-2.6  (see Table 14)

Programme: Energy Policy and Planning

Performance 
Indicators from 
2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 2019/20 
APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on 
Deviations

Annual Energy 
Balances Report.

Annual Energy Balance Report 
(2017) published by March 2020. 

Achieved 

Annual Energy Balance 
Report was published 
concerning 2017 data.

None None 

Gas Infrastructure 
Masterplan Report.

Gas Strategy Report submitted to 
the Minister.

Partially Achieved 

Draft produced

Dependent on the 
finalisation of the Gas 
Amendment Bill. 

There are dependencies 
on a number of other 
activities.

Gas Amendment Bill Gas Amendment Bill certified by 
the State Law Advisor.

Partially Achieved 

Draft produced

Consultation took longer 
than expected. 

None 

Biofuels Regulatory 
Framework.

Biofuels Regulatory Framework 
gazetted.

Achieved 

Per Government 
Gazette no. 433003 vol. 
356, 7 February 2020. 

None None 

Proposals regarding 
the “end-state” of the 
electricity sector.

Proposals of the “end-state” of the 
electricity sector.

Not Achieved 

Conclusion of the 
report is dependent on 
external factors.

Delayed by production of 
the overarching electricity 
policy. 

The approval of IRP 2019 
will now enable this target 
to proceed.

National Energy 
Regulator Amendment 
Bill. 

National Energy Regulator 
Amendment Bill certified by State 
Law Advisor. 

Partially Achieved 

The Department has 
gazetted the Amended 
Schedule 2 of the 
Energy Regulation Act 
exempting certain 
categories of power 
plants under 1 MW 
from a requirement to 
hold a licence. 

Cabinet committee 
decision to make the 
Executive Authority “the 
Appeal Authority” needs to 
be resolved.

None

Municipal Asset 
Management 
Programme Rollout 
Framework. 

Municipal Asset Management 
Programme Rollout Framework 
developed 

Not Achieved Capacity constraints. Filling of critical positions 
needs to be prioritised and 
funding secured.

Off-take Agreement on 
the Grand Inga Project.

Negotiate Off-take Agreement 
with the Project Developer 
(Revised target).

Not Achieved Delay in the appointment 
of the Project Developer 
by the Democratic 
Republic of Congo (DRC). 

Dependent on outside 
factors.
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2.12.2.4	Linking Performance with Budgets	

Table 20: Sub-Programme Expenditure

Energy Policy and 
Planning

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Policy Analysis and Research 3,624 2,784 840 2,335 3,351 -1,016

Energy Planning 19,714 18,876 838 19,593 17,250 2,343

Hydrocarbons Policy 14,591 11,783 2,808 14,263 12,551 1,712

Electricity and Alternative 
Energy Policy

9,639 6,502 3,137 9,882 6,913 2,969

Total 47,568 39,945 7,623 46,073 40,066 6,007

2.12.3		 Programme 3
2.12.3.1	Purpose: Regulate the petroleum and petroleum products industry to ensure the optimal and orderly functioning of 
the petroleum industry to achieve government’s developmental goals.

2.12.3.2	 	Descriptions	

Sub-Programme 3.1: Petroleum, Compliance, Monitoring and Enforcement
This sub-programme monitors compliance with the Liquid Fuels Charter and technical, legal and commercial 
licensing conditions. This includes compliance with import and export conditions, as well as the enforcement of the 
submission of data by the industry. The sub programme also processes arbitration requests as well as promotion of 
access to information requests on behalf of the Controller of Petroleum Products.

	Sub-Programme 3.2: Petroleum Licensing and Fuel Supply
This sub-programme manages the adjudication of petroleum licence applications, regulates the permitting of 
the export and import of petroleum products, monitors fuel stock levels, and co-ordinates corrective actions to 
avoid fuel shortages. This entails conducting licence analyses and ensuring permit and charter compliance and fuel 
supply. It also includes adjudication of different licence types in accordance with the Petroleum Products Act, 1977 
(Act No. 120 of 1977), as amended.

Sub-Programme 3.3: Fuel Pricing Regulation
This sub-programme regulates the pricing of petroleum products in accordance with the legislative framework. 
This entails the determination, review, updating and maintenance of fuel levies and margins and the process of 
paying fuel levies. Fuel price administration includes developing, evaluating and monitoring price models, updating 
elements of the Basic Fuel Price (BFP), and ensuring secure audit services for the auditing of fuel prices, to ensure 
internationally competitive pricing of petroleum products, thereby enabling investment in the sector.

Sub-Programme 3.4: Regional Petroleum Regulation Offices
This sub-programme provides advice on integrated energy services, develops appropriate interventions to enhance 
and promote universal access to energy, and ensures economic and technical compliance with relevant legislation. 
In addition, all annual information submitted by licence holders is captured and analysed.



PART B:   
PERFO

RM
AN

CE  IN
FO

RM
ATIO

N

41DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

2.12.3.3	The Progress made in achieving Programme 3 Pre-determined Objectives for FY 2019-20.

Table 21: Programme 3 Progress

Strategic Objectives 3.1-3.2 (see Table 14)

Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation

Performance 
Indicators from 
2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 2019/20 
APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on 
Deviations

Number of retail 
site compliance 
inspections conducted 
per year.

1 500 retail site compliance 
inspections conducted.

Achieved                                                     

1367 Retail site 
inspections were 
conducted.

- 133  Vacant positions of 
inspectors in Kwa-Zulu 
Natal and Northern Cape 
provinces. 

Number of fuel 
samples tested.

 1 080 fuel samples tested. Achieved

1080 Fuel samples were 
collected and tested.

None None

% of licence 
applications  
approved where  
HDSA ownership is at  
least 50%.

At least 50% of licence 
applications approved have 
a minimum of 50% HDSA 
ownership.

Achieved                                                                    

91.85% compliance - 
733 applications with 
50% and more HDSA 
involvement out of 798 
applications approved. 

The percentage of 
participation by black 
Africans in the retail sector 
remains low.

None 

2.12.3.4	Linking Performance with Budgets
Table 22: Sub-Programme Expenditure

Petroleum and Petroleum 
Products Regulation

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Petroleum Compliance, 
Monitoring and 
Enforcement.

17,562 13,807 3,755 14,075 13,573 502

Petroleum Licensing and 
Fuel Supply.

28,344 27,715 629 26,690 26,322 368

Fuel Pricing 6,454 4,837 1,617 6,289 5,689 600

Regional Petroleum 
Regulation Offices.

35,995 34,351 1,644 32,188 31,459 729

Total 88,355 80,710 7,645 79,242 77,044 2,198
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2.12.4	 Programme 4 

2.12.4.1 Purpose: To manage, coordinate and monitor programmes and projects focused on access to energy.

2.12.4.2	Descriptions 

Sub-Programme 4.1: Integrated National Electrification Programme
The Integrated National Electrification Programme (INEP) oversees and manages the finance and implementation 
processes for the electrification programme; manages the annual planning processes, including electrification 
infrastructure plans; and manages and coordinates technical audits for the programme. This sub-programme aims 
to deliver on the Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF 2014-2019) target for electrification of 1.25 million 
households through grid and non-grid technologies. In this fiscal year the annual target of 195 000 newly electrified 
households was exceeded and amounted to a total of 214 517. Furthermore, 1 364 households were connected 
with non-grid electricity in this financial year as part of a roll over from the 2018/19 fiscal year.

Sub-Programme 4.2: Energy Regional Offices
This sub-programme provides advice on integrated energy services, develops appropriate interventions to enhance 
and promote universal access to energy, manages and co-ordinates regional electrification planning, and ensures 
economic and technical compliance with relevant legislation. (Annual targets in the IOP.)

	Sub-Programme 4.3: Programme and Project Management Office
This sub-programme provides specialised assistance to programme and project managers, and management 
in general, to apply management principles, coordinate project information and report on projects. The sub-
programme aims to develop Integrated Energy Centres (IECs) with the support of major oil companies to ensure 
access to various forms of energy in communities where volumes do not justify such but there is a need. 

Sub-Programme 4.4: Electricity Infrastructure/Industry Transformation/ Community Upliftment / 
Programmes and Projects
This sub-programme oversees programmes and projects focused on the development, improvement and 
transformation of the electricity generation, transmission and distribution sector, and independent power producers.

Sub-Programme 4.5: Community Upliftment / Programmes and Projects
This sub-programme implements, manages and coordinates programmes and projects aimed at the empowerment 
of disadvantaged and vulnerable groups and increases public awareness on energy issues.
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2.12.4.3		 The Progress made in achieving Programme 4 Pre-determined Objectives for FY 2019-20
Table 23: Programme 4 Progress

Strategic Objectives 4.1-4.3 (see Table 14)

Programme 4: Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management

Performance Indicators 
from 2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 
2019/20 APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on   
Deviations

Number of Quarterly 
reports of additional 
households to be 
electrified with grid 
electrification towards 
the 2019/20 target of 
195 000 in the National 
Electrification Plan.

Number of Quarterly 
reports on the 
allocation of funding 
and the monitoring of 
implementation of grid 
electrification of additional 
households by Eskom and 
Municipalities.

(Revised indicator)

4 Quarterly Reports on 
additional households to 
be electrified with grid 
electrification towards the 
target of 195 000 in the 
National Electrification 
Plan

4 Quarterly Reports on 
the allocation of funding 
and the monitoring of 
implementation of grid 
electrification of additional 
households by Eskom and 
Municipalities.

(Revised target)

Achieved

4 Quarterly Reports were 
produced on achieving 

214 517 additional 
households with grid 
electricity against the 
target of 195 000 in the 
National Electrification 
Plan

4 Quarterly Reports on 
the allocation of funding 
and the monitoring of 
implementation of grid 
electrification of additional 
households by Eskom 
and Municipalities were 
produced.

+19 517 households 
were connected to the 
electricity grid 

None

None

None

Number of Quarterly 
progress reports on 
building/upgrading of 
electrification infrastructure 
projects towards the 
2019/20 target.

Number of Quarterly 
reports on the funding and 
the monitoring of progress 
towards the
building/upgrading of
bulk electrification 
infrastructure
projects by Eskom and 
Municipalities.

(Revised indicator)

4 Quarterly Reports on 
building/upgrading 
of electrification 
infrastructure projects 
towards the targets, as 
contracted with Eskom 
and municipalities- 2 new 
bulk substations built - 3 
additional substations 
upgraded - 50 km new MV 
power lines constructed- 
50 km of existing MV 
power lines upgraded.

4 Quarterly Reports  
on the funding and the 
monitoring of progress 
towards the

building/upgrading  
of bulk electrification 
infrastructure projects by 
Eskom and Municipalities. 

(Revised target)

Achieved

4 Quarterly Reports on 
building/upgrading 
of electrification 
infrastructure projects as 
follows: 3 new substations 
built; 3  substations 
upgraded; 174,87 km 
new MV power lines 
constructed; and 11 km of 
existing MV power lines 
upgraded.

4 Quarterly Reports on 
on the funding and the 
monitoring of progress 
towards the targets 
contracted with Eskom 
and municipalities were 
produced

+1 new substation

+ 124,87 km of new MV 
power lines

-39 km of existing MV 
power lines were not 
upgraded

None

New substation and new 
MV power line targets 
were exceeded due to 
project planning overruns

Underachievement of

-39km for the upgrading 
of existing power lines 
was due to the late 
appointment of service 
providers by some of the 
municipalities

None
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Strategic Objectives 4.1-4.3 (see Table 14)

Programme 4: Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management

Performance Indicators 
from 2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 
2019/20 APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on   
Deviations

Number of additional 
households electrified with 
non-grid electrification 
towards the 2019/20 target 
of 20 000 in the National 
Electrification Plan.

20 000 additional 
households electrified with 
non-grid electrification 
towards the target in the 
National Electrification 
Plan.

Not Achieved

Zero additional 
households electrified with 
non-grid electrification in 
this fiscal year.

-20 000 Delays were experienced 
with appointment of panel 
of contractors.

Number of quarterly 
reports on progress 
made with regard to 
development of rural IECs.

4 Quarterly Reports 
regarding the 
development of rural IECs.

Achieved

4 Quarterly Reports on the 
development of rural IECs 
were produced.

None None

Number of reports on 
interventions and support 
provided to municipalities 
regarding electricity.

2 Reports on interventions 
and support provided to 
municipalities regarding 
electricity.

Achieved

2 reports on interventions 
and support provided to 
municipalities regarding 
electricity were produced.

None None

2.12.4.4		Linking Performance with Budgets
Table 24:  	Sub-Programme Expenditure

Electrification and Energy 
Programme and Project 
Management

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Integrated National 
Electrification Programme.

5,228,078 5,018,960 209,118 5,337,403 5,320,997 16,406

Energy Regional Office. 20,947 20,901 46 18,153 20,174 -2,021

Programme and Projects 
Management Office.

11,638 11,378 260 12,801 9,665 3,136

Electricity Infrastructure/
Industry Transformation.

8,555 8,019 536 6,913 8,066 -1,153

Community Upliftment 
Programmes and Projects.

5,607 5,070 537 5,321 5,609 -288

Total 5,274,825 5,064,328 210,497 5,380,591 5,364,511 16,080

Table 23: Programme 4 Progress (continued)
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2.12.5	 Programme 5
2.12.5.1 	Purpose: To manage the South African nuclear energy industry and control nuclear material in terms of international  
		  obligations, nuclear legislation and policies to ensure the peaceful use of nuclear energy.

2.12.5.2	Descriptions 

Sub-Programme 5.1: Nuclear Safety and Technology
	This sub-programme manages and implements all matters relating to nuclear safety and technology, as required 
by legislation and international agreements; implements the Nuclear Energy Policy in line with the requirements 
of the Integrated Resource Plan (IRP); and administers all matters relating to nuclear safety, liability and emergency 
management, with the aim of improving the governance of the nuclear sector, specifically in relation to nuclear 
safety and nuclear technology. This sub-programme is responsible for the overall coordination and oversight for 
the new nuclear expansion programme together with the necessary due diligence on the proposed transaction. 
This sub-programme also makes transfers to the South African Nuclear Energy Corporation, the National Nuclear 
Regulator and the National Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute

	Sub-Programme 5.2: Nuclear Non-Proliferation and Radiation Security
This sub-programme manages and implements all matters related to nuclear non-proliferation and radiation 
security as required by legislation and international agreements. This entails accounting for and controlling nuclear 
material through the issuing of nuclear authorisations; ensuring compliance by conducting inspections, and audits; 
and regulating the security of nuclear material and related facilities.

	Sub-Programme 5.3: Nuclear Policy
This sub-programme develops and reviews policies and legislation, as required by international agreements and 
the governance principles of the nuclear energy sector in South Africa; undertakes research and development 
on matters related to nuclear policy and legislation; and reviews and monitors nuclear safety, nuclear technology, 
nuclear non-proliferation and nuclear radiation security policies and legislation, and provides advice accordingly.

2.12.5.3 	The Progress made in Achieving Programme 5 Pre-determined Objectives for FY 2019-20

Table 25: Programme 5 Progress

Strategic Objectives 5.1-5.2 (see Table 14)

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy

Performance Indicators 
from 2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 
2019/20 APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on 
Deviations

Draft Decommissioning 
and Decontamination 
Policy submitted to 
Cabinet.

Draft Decommissioning 
and Decontamination 
Policy submitted to 
Cabinet.

Not achieved

Delays in conducting 
studies for data collection, 
due to establishment 
of a new procurement 
framework.

The drafting of the Policy 
is dependent on data from 
the studies.

None

Percentage of processed 
authorisation applications 
within the 8-week time 
period.

At least 70% of 
authorisation applications 
processed within the 
8-week time period.

Achieved

Authorisation applications 
were processed within 8 
weeks.

None Authorisation report was 
produced.
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Strategic Objectives 5.1-5.2 (see Table 14)

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy

Performance Indicators 
from 2019/20 APP 

Planned Targets from 
2019/20 APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on 
Deviations

National Nuclear Regulator 
Amendment Bill.

National Nuclear 
Regulator Amendment Bill 
submitted to Cabinet.

Partially Achieved

The Draft Bill, Sign Off on 
SEAIS report by DPME and 
Memorandum of Objects 
submitted to the State Law 
Advisor.

Delays due to 
engagements with the 
relevant stakeholders on 
the outstanding issues.

The Department will 
publish the National 
Nuclear Regulator 
Amendment Bill upon its 
conclusion.

Approved Radioactive 
Waste Management  
Fund Bill.

Radioactive Waste 
Management Fund Bill 
Submitted to Cabinet.

Partially Achieved

Draft Bill, Sign-off on 
SEAIS report by DPME, 
Memorandum of Objects, 
responses to comments 
submitted to the State Law 
Advisor.

Delays due to consultation 
with the State Law Advisor.

The Radioactive Waste 
Management Fund Bill will 
be published for public 
comments.

2.12.5.4	Linking Performance with Budgets
Table 26: Sub-Programme Expenditure

Nuclear Energy

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Nuclear Safety and 
Technology

1,030,911 1,021,753 9,158 856,989 857,728 -739

Nuclear Non-Proliferation 
and Radiation Security

10,069 10,048 21 8,647 9,015 -368

Nuclear Policy 9,163 8,106 1,057 9,850 8,542 1,308

Total 1,050,143 1,039,907 10,236 875,486 875,285 201

2.12.6		 Programme 6

2.12.6.1	 Purpose: To manage and facilitate the development and implementation of clean and renewable energy initiatives,  
		  as well as Energy Efficiency and Demand-Side Management (EEDSM) initiatives.

2.12.6.2	 Descriptions

		  Sub-Programme 6.1: Energy Efficiency
This sub-programme advances energy efficiency in South Africa by planning and coordinating initiatives and 
interventions that are focused on developing and improving the energy efficiency market, and ensures the 
integration and coordination of energy efficiency initiatives and interventions with relevant associated institutions.

Table 25: Programme 5 Progress (continued)
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		  Sub-Programme 6.2: Renewable Energy
This sub-programme ensures the integration of renewable energy into South Africa’s mainstream energy supply by 
planning and co-ordinating initiatives and interventions.

Sub-Programme 6.3: Climate Change and Designated National Authority
This sub-programme ensures that the energy sector’s climate change and environment response measures, in terms 
of mitigation and adaptation, are implemented within the energy sector. It also ensures the fulfillment of international 
energy commitments and obligations under the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change pertaining 
to the Kyoto Protocol.

2.12.6.3	 The Progress made in achieving Programme 6 Pre-determined Objectives for FY 2019-20.

Table 27: Programme 6 Progress

Strategic Objectives 6.1-6.3 (see Table 14)

Programme 6: Clean Energy

Performance Indicators 
from 2019/20 APP

Planned Targets from 
2019/20 APP 

Actual Achievement
2019/20

(“achieved”, or “partially 
achieved”, or “not 

achieved”, and narrative 
support)

Deviations from Planned 
Targets to Actual 

Achievement
2019/20

Comments on 
Deviations

Number of energy savings 
realised and verified from 
EEDSM projects.

0.5 TWh energy savings 
realised and verified from 
EEDSM projects.

Achieved

6.3 TWh energy savings 
realised and verified from 
EEDSM projects.

+5.8 TWh Target exceeded and 
verified.

Energy consumption 
baselines developed 
from 15 additional 
municipalities.

Achieved

Energy consumption 
baselines developed from 
additional municipalities.

None None

Energy Technology Roadmap.

Developed the Terms of 
Reference (ToRs) for Energy 
Technology Roadmap. 

(Revised indicator)

Terms of Reference for 
the Renewable Energy 
Technology Roadmap 
(RETRM)  completed 
(Revised target).

Not Achieved

External dependencies 
delayed the project.

Unavailability of funds 
was the main reason 
the project could not 
continue.

Projects will be 
implemented in line 
with the approved IRP 
2019.

Report on roll-out of baseline 
systems in line with budget 
allocation.

Number of reports on roll-out 
of baseline systems in line 
with budget allocation.

(Revised indicator).

Reports on the roll out of 
the NSWH Programme 
(Revised target).

Partially Achieved

The reports on the   
installation of NSWH were 
produced.

Installation was not 
achieved due to under 
delivery of geysers 
to participating 
municipalities, and the 
training of installers.

There were delays in 
the finalisation of the 
Technical Feasibility 
Assessment studies 
in municipalities’ 
designated installation 
areas and the 
procurement of 
installation service 
providers.

Developed Annual 
Compliance Report on the 3rd 
Environmental Management 
Plan Edition

2018/19 Annual 
Compliance Report on 
the 3rd Environmental 
Management Plan Edition 
approved (Revised Target).

Achieved 

2018/19 Annual 
Compliance Report was 
approved.

None None
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2.12.6.4	Linking Performance with Budgets

Table 28: Sub-Programme Expenditure

Clean Energy

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Energy Efficiency 339,006 333,653 5,353 392,348 362,336 30,012

Renewable Energy 80,560 80,079 481 75,796 58,262 17,534

Climate Change and 
Designated National 
Authority

9,517 9,224 293 8,667 8,719 -52

Total 429,083 422,956 6,127 476,811 429,317 47,494 

2.12.7		D epartment of Energy

Table 29: Programme Expenditure

Total for Department of 
Energy

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 293,583 279,383 14,200 305,329 304,017 1,312

Energy Policy and Planning 47,568 39,945 7,623 46,073 40,066 6,007

Petroleum and Petroleum 
Products Regulation

88,355 80,710 7,645 79,242 77,044 2,198

Electrification and Energy 
Programme and Project 
Management

5,274,825 5,064,328 210,497 5,380,591 5,364,511 16,080

Nuclear Energy 1,050,143 1,039,907 10,236 875,486 875,285 201

Clean Energy 429,083 422,956 6,127 476,811 429,317 47,494

Total 7,183,557 6,927,230 256,327 7,163,532 7,090,239 73,293
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2.13 	TRANSFER PAYMENTS

The transfer of payments to municipalities has been made in accordance with the approved annual Division of Revenue Act 
of South Africa (DoRA) transfer requirements.

2.13.1		 Transfers and Subsidies

Table 30: Transfers and Subsidies

Transfer payments

Adjusted 
Budget 2019/20

Year to date 
Transfer Payments 
up to March 2020

Available Balance 
at 31 March 2020

Actual Spending for 
the year as % of Total 

Budget Allocation

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

South African National Energy Development Institute 
(SANEDI)

74,151 74,151 - 100.00%

International Membership Fees 29,478 24,588 4,890 83.41%

EEDSM – Municipalities 227,065 227,065 - 100.00%

South African Nuclear Energy Corporation (Necsa) 890,431 890,431 - 100.00%

National Radio-Active Waste Disposal Institute (NRWDI) 47,499 47,499 - 100.00%

National Nuclear Regulator (NNR) 43,096 43,096 - 100.00%

Integrated National Electrification Programme 
 (INEP) – Eskom

3,124,053 3,124,053 - 100.00%

INEP – Municipalities 1,863,328 1,859,820 3,508 99.81%

INEP – Non-grid 212,941 13,115 199,826 6.16%

Households 5,390 4,787 603 88.81%

SETAs 1,170 1,170 - 100.00%

Total transfer payments 6,518,602 6,309,774 208,828 96.80%

2.13.2		 Transfer Payments to Public Entities 
Table 31: Transfer Payments to Public Entities 

Name of Public Entity Services Rendered by the  
Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to the 

Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity Achievements of the 

Public Entity

R’000 R’000

South African Nuclear 
Energy Corporation (Necsa)

Necsa is responsible for the following 
core functions:

• Undertaking and promoting research 
and the development in the field of 
nuclear science;

• Processing source material, including 
uranium; and 

• Co-operating with other institutions 
on nuclear-related matters.

890,431 Refer to general 
information of public 
entities reporting to 
the Minister
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Name of Public Entity Services Rendered by the  
Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred to the 

Public Entity

Amount Spent by 
the Public Entity Achievements of the 

Public Entity

R’000 R’000

National Nuclear Regulator 
(NNR)

Responsible for:

• Providing for the protection of 
persons, property and the environment 
against nuclear damage;

• Exercising regulatory control related 
to the siting, design, construction, 
operation, manufacture of component 
parts, and decontamination, 
decommissioning and closure of 
nuclear installations;

• Exercising regulatory control over 
the actions, to which the Act applies, 
through the granting of nuclear 
authorisations;

• Providing assurance of compliance 
with the conditions of nuclear 
authorisations through the 
implementation of a system of 
compliance inspections;

• Fulfilling national obligations 
in respect of international legal 
instruments concerning nuclear safety; 
and

• Ensuring that provisions for nuclear 
emergency planning are in place.

43,096 Refer to general 
information of public 
entities reporting to 
the Minister

National Radio-Active Waste 
Disposal Institute (NRWDI)

Responsible for:

• Plan, design, construct, operate, 
manage and monitor radioactive waste 
disposal facilities;

• Design and implement disposal 
solutions for all classes of radioactive 
waste; and

• Maintain a national radioactive waste 
database and publish reports on the 
inventory and location of radioactive 
waste in South Africa.

47,499 Refer to general 
information of public 
entities reporting to 
the Minister

South African National 
Energy Development 
Institute (SANEDI)

SANEDI’s core functions:

• Directing, monitoring and conducting 
energy research and development; and

• Undertaking measures to promote 
energy efficiency throughout the 
economy.

74,151 Refer to general 
information of public 
entities reporting to 
the Minister
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2.13.3		 Transfer Payments to all Organisations other than Public Entities

Table 32: Other Transfer Payments for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Name of Transferee
Purpose for which 

the Funds were 
used

Amount Budgeted 
for Amount Transferred Reasons why Funds were 

Not Transferred
R’000 R’000

Non-grid Service Providers Non-grid electricity 
connections

212,941 13,115 Due to delays in finalizing 
procurement processes for 
the appointment of service 
providers to execute the 
2019/20 implementation 
plan.

Households Leave gratuities and 
retirement benefits, 
pension liabilities 
for early retirement 
benefits, claims 
against government 
(loss of office)

 5,390  4,787 The result of outstanding 
payments in relation 
to early retirement 
applications and pension 
liability payments to the 
GEPF.

SETAs Annual contributions 
to SETAs in 
accordance with 
Circular HRD 1 of 
2013 that was issued 
by the Department 
of Public Service 
and Administration 
(DPSA) in April 2013 

1,170 1,170 N/A

African Petroleum Producers Association 
(APPA)

Membership Fees 3,038 2,554 Exchange rate for foreign 
currency less than 
anticipated

Generation IV International Forum (GIF) Membership Fees 782 631 Exchange rate for foreign 
currency less than 
anticipated

International Atomic Energy Agency 
(IAEA)

Membership Fees 22,756  20,067 Exchange rate for foreign 
currency less than 
anticipated on the main 
payment for affiliation to 
the IAEA as well as to its 
sub-structures, i.e. AFRA 
and Generation IV.

International Energy Forum (IEF) Membership Fees 356  - Due to a delayed 
invoice from the foreign 
organisation.

International Renewable Energy Agency 
(IRENA)

Membership Fees 1,201 1,336 Exchange rate for foreign 
currency more than 
anticipated

International Partnership for Energy 
Efficiency Cooperation (IPEEC) 

Membership Fees 1,345 - The payment is pending 
the finalisation of the 
review / reorganisation 
process of the foreign 
entity.
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2.14 		CONDITIONAL GRANTS

2.14.1		 Conditional Grants and Earmarked Funds Paid.

The tables  below describes each of the conditional grants and earmarked funds paid by the Department.

Table 33: Conditional Grant 1: National Electrification Programme (Municipality Schedule 5b)

Department/ Municipality to whom the grant has been transferred Several municipalities

Purpose of the grant Electricity Connections

Expected outputs of the grant  -

Actual outputs achieved  -

Amount per amended DoRA (R’000) 1,863,328

Amount transferred (R’000) 1,859,820

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred R3.51 million was withheld from JS Moroka municipality due to  
non-compliance.

Amount spent by the Department (R’000)  -

Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity  -

Monitoring mechanism by the transferring Department Technical audits and monthly reports

Table 34: Conditional Grant 2: National Electrification Programme (Eskom)

Department/Municipality to whom the grant has been transferred Eskom Schedule 6b

Purpose of the grant Electricity Connections

Expected outputs of the grant  -

Actual outputs achieved  -

Amount per amended DoRA (R’000) 3,124,053

Amount transferred (R’000) 3,124,053

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred N/A

Amount spent by the Department/municipality (R’000)  -

Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity  -

Monitoring mechanism by the transferring Department Quarterly reports submitted by Eskom, verification reports
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Table 35: Conditional Grant 3: Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management Programme (equitable share)

Department/Municipality to whom the grant has been transferred Several municipalities

Purpose of the grant Implementation of energy efficiency technologies

Expected outputs of the grant  -

Actual outputs achieved  -

Amount per amended DoRA (R’000) 227,065

Amount transferred (R’000) 227,065

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred N/A

Amount spent by the Department/municipality (R’000)  -

Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity -

Monitoring mechanism by the transferring Department The Department developed a monitoring and evaluation tool 
indicating the pay-back period to achieve kWh savings; energy savings 
(kWh) achieved by each municipality; and R (million)/kWh 

2.14.2		 Conditional Grants and Earmarked Funds Received
The Department participates in the following training and development projects and learnership programmes:
•	 In service training programme funded by the Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority (EWSETA) for 

electrical engineers which is aimed at ensuring that opportunities are created and promoted for unemployed students 
who have N6 or N4 qualifications to gain practical experience in the workplace in order to obtain their qualifications;

•	 Several projects and programmes funded by the Chemical Industries Sector Education and Training Authority (CHIETA) 
including a Project Management learnership programme; Public Administration; Internal Audit; Petroleum Engineering 
Programme; and Skills Programme.

•	 During the 2019/20 financial year, a budget of R764 thousand was received by the Department from the Chemical 
Industries Education and Training Authority (CHIETA), an affiliated energy sector education and training authority (SETA), 
to implement learner and training programmes as per agreement with CHIETA. No grants were received from the Energy 
& Water Sector Education Training Authority (EWSETA) during the 2019/20 financial year.

2.15 	DONOR FUNDS

2.15.1		 Donor Funds Received

No donor funds were received by the Department during the 2019/20 financial year.
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3.1 	 Introduction

According to the South African Energy, Risk Report 2019 energy uncertainty is a major risk in the South African 
economy due to its energy intensive nature and low readiness for an energy transition. South Africa has a very 
low readiness for an energy transition so the mitigation of all related risks is required before this systemic risk 
can be addressed. The 2019 risks were identified and prioritised by a group of energy experts for impact and 
likelihood at both a country and an industry level. 

The risk of “price volatility and uncertainty” was identified as one of the top risks at both country and industry 
level due to its downstream impacts on many other sectors and on the vulnerable in our society. Low risk 
readiness compounds this county risk, which at the same time, is beyond South Africa’s control since it is global 
in nature. Similarly, the “changing customer of the future” is also primarily driven by factors out of our control 
due to global technological trends and the declining prices of disruptive technologies In addition, the fiscal 
crisis scored high at both country and industry levels, with low risk readiness at the industry level. A related  
risk concerned the lack of investment in infrastructure, and its resultant breakdown, further exacerbating 
investor confidence. 

Having appropriate energy policies are key if the country and the business sector are to be competitive in the 
context of rapid global change. This risk is likely to have a high impact and likelihood over the next few years, 
and links closely to the risk of parochial interests. Another consequence of not having appropriate policies is 
a rise in activism and civil disobedience. This is an issue that has been rising in importance around the world. 
Energy data unavailability is a barrier to formulating energy policies and business model innovation so that 
decision making is fact based. Looking to the future, greater stakeholder consultation can help to improve 
integration and systemic planning both at an industry and national level. The issue of having policy certainty 
is central as to whether we have appropriate policy frameworks to allow the uptake of new technologies and 
the readiness of our energy sector to transition to a low-carbon future. 

In terms of risk mitigation, some certainty has been achieved with the release of the IRP 2019 and the decisive 
action from government and business in terms of addressing corruption. Overall the country is at risk of not 
being ready for the energy transition and the innovative approaches to policy and business models that will 
be required. The energy sector can be steered toward a more sustainable future by: (i) proactively engaging 
with the interdependencies of the sector with other sectors; (ii) embracing ambiguity that is in better balance 
with reliance on prediction, and by (iii) regularly effecting course corrections in an agile manner.

 

3.2 	 Risk Management at DOE

During the year under review and in line with the requirements of Section 38(i) (a) of the PFMA read together 
with the Public Sector Risk Management Framework, the Department of Energy executed the risk management 
function by way of  implementing the activities listed in the table below: 
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Table 36: Risk Management at DoE

Guiding Risk Management Questions Yes/No Comments

Does the Department have a risk management 
policy and strategy?

Yes The following regulatory frameworks are in place to guide risk management:

•	 Risk Management Policy

•	 Risk Management Strategy

•	 Risk Management Framework

•	 Risk Management Committee Charter

•	 Fraud Prevention Strategy

•	 Fraud Response Action Plan

•	 Combined Assurance Framework  

Does the Department have a Risk 
Management Committee that advises 
management on the overall system of risk 
management, especially the mitigation of 
unacceptable levels of risk?

Yes •	 The Risk Management Committee comprising of two external members  
(i.e.1 X external RMC Chairperson and 1x external RMC Member) and six 
Programme Managers within the Department. 

•	 The Risk Management Committee is convened on a quarterly basis to review 
and oversee the effective implementation of risk mitigation strategies and make 
recommendations for improvement where there are gaps limitations

Does the Audit Committee advise the 
Department on risk management and 
independently monitor the effectiveness of 
the system of risk management?

Yes The Audit Committee is convened on a quarterly basis to consider the results of risk 
management and internal control processes and disclosure thereof. 

Does the Department conduct regular risk 
assessments to determine the effectiveness of 
its risk management strategy and to identify 
new and emerging risks?

Yes Risk Assessments are conducted annually to identify risks that could prevent the 
Department to achieve targets stated in the Annual Performance Plan with a view 
of designing interventions that will respond to risk exposures throughout the 
Department..

Does the Department see progress in the 
management of risks, and has this been 
transmitted into improvements in the 
Department’s performance, and if not, what it 
plans on doing to address

No The Department is partially and gradually moving towards a higher level of risk 
maturity as programme managers have taken the responsibility of managing the 
risks that have material impact on the achievement of their objectives outcomes 
through embedding and inculcating the principles of risk management into their 
operational responsibilities.

3.2.1 	 Progress on Risk Mitigation at DoE

Table 37: Total Number and Average Scores of Inherent and Residual Branch Risks 

Branches/Units Total Number of 
Inherent Risks

Average Score of 
Inherent Risks

(1-25)

Total Number of  
Residual risks

Average Score of 
Residual Risks

(1-25)

Policy and Planning 8  17 8 13

Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation 3 18,6 3 14,6

Nuclear Energy 4 18.75 4 14

Clean Energy 5 18,6 5 13

Programmes and Projects 5 17,6 5 14,2

Corporate Services 6 20 6 15

Financial Management Services 2 14 2 10

Governance and Compliance 3 16 3 12
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Table 38: Key to Levels of Risk

Risk Index Risk Levels Risk Acceptability Proposed Actions

15 – 25 High Risk Unacceptable Immediate implementation of corrective action plans

6 – 12 Medium Risk Acceptable with caution Implementation of improvement opportunities and validation of controls

1 – 5 Low Risk Acceptable Validation and 12 Optimisation of controls

Note: According to the Public Sector Risk Management Framework, “inherent risk” means: the exposure 
arising from risk factors in the absence of deliberate management intervention(s) to exercise control over 
such factors. On the other hand, “residual risk” means: the remaining exposure after the mitigating effects of 
deliberate management intervention(s) to control such exposure.

3.3 	 Fraud and Corruption

The Department has a Fraud Prevention Plan, setting out actions to prevent fraud and corruption. The Fraud 
Prevention Plan sets out the mechanisms to detect fraud and corruption, and to enforce existing systems, 
policies and procedures aimed at deterring and reducing fraud and corruption. These mechanisms includes 
a whistle blowing policy, vetting of officials and service providers, planned and requested internal audits, 
and oversight structures such as the Risk Management Committee, Audit Committees, Auditor-General and 
Executive Management Committee.

Employees and members of the public are encouraged to report allegations of fraudulent and or suspected 
practices of corruption for investigation and resolution.  Cases of fraud and corruption are captured in the 
fraud and corruption case register, which is regularly updated and submitted to Office of the Public Service 
Commission and the Department of Public Service and Administration. All reported cases of alleged, irregular, 
and/or fraudulent practices received from the Presidential Hotline, members of the public, and media during 
the year under review were investigated and resolved. These are summarised in graph format for the period 
2004-2019, below.

Figure 1: NACH Complaints Lodged with Energy from 2004-2019
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3.4 	 Minimising Conflict of Interest

In order to minimise conflict of interest within the Department of Energy, the following mechanisms are in 
place:

•	 Senior managers are required to disclose their financial interest annually as required by the financial 
disclosure framework; and

•	 Sanctions were taken with regard to non-compliance; and

•	 A conflict of interest disclosure form is signed by all attendees in various management structures.

The table below summarises the compliance rate for the period under review as per the categories set out by 
the DPSA:

Table 39: Compliance Rates of Financial Disclosure per Employee Category 

Employee Categories SMS MMS 12 MMS 11 SCM/Finance

Registered employees 89 41 47 42

Employees that disclosed 77 34 37 38

Employees that did not disclose 12  7 10  4

Unregistered employees  2  2  3  0

3.5 	 Code of conduct

A Departmental Code of Conduct is in place to guide employees as to what is expected of them from an 
ethical and moral point of view in their official capacities. Education, training and awareness in relation to the 
code of conduct are conducted during the induction and orientation programme of the Department.

3.6 	 Health, Safety and Environmental Issues

The Department promotes the quality of work life and ensures the Department’s compliance to the 
Occupational Health & Safety Act (OHSA) and the creation of a conducive environment for the Department 
of Energy’s employees, through the Health and Wellness initiatives.  The Employee Health and Wellness 
programme is a comprehensive employee health and wellness promotion program that focuses on the 
most crucial needs of the organisation as a way of improving the overall wellbeing of employees for the 
purposes of curbing absenteeism, improving employees productivity, and the reduction of HIV/AIDS stigma 
in the workplace. Employee Health and Wellness activities were implemented throughout the year, with 
wellness clinics conducted twice per month. DoE staff’s physical and psychological health was maintained  
without disruption.

3.7 	 Portfolio Committees 

In the 2019/20 financial year 15 scheduled meetings were held with Portfolio Committees of Parliament. The 
Department took note of Committee comments and recommendations for purposes of implementation as 
recorded in Table 40 below. 
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Table 40: Date and Subject-matter of Parliamentary Briefings, April 2018- March 2019 

Date Agenda

03 July 19 DMR Briefing to Annual Performance Plan & Budget Vote

09 July 19 Mineral Resources & Energy Briefing on APP 2019/2020

10 Sept 19 Briefing by CEF and its Subsidiaries on the turnaround strategy and current state of entity

10 Sept 19 Joint meeting with DPE at SCOA on the Special Appropriation Bill

08 Oct 19 Briefing by DMRE on Annual Reports 2018/19 

09 Oct 19 Briefing by DMRE (Energy) and their subsidiaries on their Annual Reports 2018/2019

10 Oct 19 Briefing by DMRE (Mineral Resources) on their subsidiaries on their Annual Reports 2018/2019

23 Oct 19 Briefing by DMRE on Non-Grid & Grid Electrification

29 Oct 19 IRP 2019 Presentation to PC on Mineral Resources and Energy

12 Oct 19 Briefing by DMRE Basic Fuel Price

19 Nov 19 Briefing by DMRE on Energy International Agreements

20 Nov 19 Briefing by DMRE on Amount of resources devoted to dealing with ownerless and derelict mines

11 Feb 20 Briefing by DMRE Briefing by Department of Mineral Resources and Energy (DMRE) and Business Rescue Practitioners 
(BRPs) on the investigation conducted following the incident that happened in Lily mine and resulted in three workers 
being trapped underground in a container on 05 February 2016.  

18 Feb 20 Responses by the Department of Mineral Resources and Energy on the Private Members Bill (Independent Electricity 
Management Bill)

19 Feb 20 Briefing by the Department of Mineral Resources and Energy on: Agreement between the Republic of South Africa and 
the European 	Atomic Energy Community (EURATOM) for Co-operation in the Peaceful Uses of Nuclear Energy, tabled in 
terms of section 231(2) of the Constitution, 1996

3.8 	Standing  committee on appropriations 
None

3.9 	 Prior modifications to audit reports 

There are no prior modifications to audit reports in this reporting period. 

3.10 	Internal Control Unit 

The Internal Control and Reporting Unit ensures that internal controls are in place to provide reasonable 
assurance that the Department has accounted for all financial transactions, free of errors and fraud. This unit 
also ensures that the transactions are accurate, valid and complete, as well as being compliant with applicable 
laws and regulations to ensure reliable financial reporting. 

In addition, the Internal Control Sub-directorate ensures that the Department complies with Treasury 
Regulations in terms of reporting, and coordinates audits by AGSA. 
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3.11 	Internal Audit and Audit Committees

The Audit Committee plays an important role in ensuring that an entity functions according to prescribed Good 
Governance, Accounting and Audit Standards.  It also monitors and evaluates the adoption of appropriate risk 
management practices.

3.11.1 	 Internal Audit

The Accounting Officer has, in terms of section 38 of the Public Finance Management Act of 1999, put in place 
a system of Internal Audit under the control and direction of the Audit Committee that complies with and 
operates in accordance with regulations and instructions prescribed in terms of sections 76 and 77 of the PFMA.

The primary objective of Internal Audit is to provide independent, objective assurance and consulting services 
designed to add value and improve the Department’s operations. It helps the Department accomplish its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and suggest improvements regarding 
the effectiveness of risk management, internal controls, and governance processes. A risk based annual audit 
plan for 2019/20 was compiled by Internal Audit and approved by the Audit Committee. A total of 24 audits 
were approved for 2019/20 financial year with only 1 cancellation. The 23 completed audits included Regularity 
Audits, Compliance, ICT and Ad-hoc Audits, with the audit assignments being:

•	 	Review of the Annual Financial Statements Audit of Performance Information quarter one;

•	 Audit of Performance Information quarter two;

•	 Audit of Performance Information quarter three;

•	 	Audit of Performance Information quarter three;

•	 Audit of Supply Chain Management;

•	 Audit of Accounts Payable;

•	 Audit on DoE Wide Projects Management Cycle;

•	 Ad-hoc Audit on Solar Water Heating;

•	 Solar Water Heating Project Implementation;

•	 Audit of Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management (EEDSM);

•	 General Controls Review;

•	 	Information Security Review;

•	 Audit on the Review of Energy Policy Development;

•	 Audit of Integrated National Electrification (INEP);

•	 Audit of Communication Management;

•	 Audit of the Integrated Energy Centres;

•	 Audit on Petroleum Fuel Samples Testing;

•	 Audit of the Integrated Information, Governance and Process Management system implementation; and

•	 Follow up on finding register for the agreed action plans for Quarters One, Two, Three and Four.

Internal Audit continuously follows-up on the audit findings reported, to establish the extent to which 
management resolved the findings raised by both Internal Audit and the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA).  
Internal Audit has evaluated and contributed to the improvement of risk management, control and governance 
systems of the Department through the performance of adequate assurance and consulting activities in  
key areas identified by the risk assessment by conducting audits in areas mandated by the PFMA and  
Treasury Regulations.
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3.11.2 	 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an oversight function on governance, control and risk management processes 
by reviewing financial statements, reports from the Internal and External Auditors, status of internal controls 
and Risk Management.

The Audit Committee reviews, amongst others:

•	 the effectiveness of the internal control system including information communications technology and 
related security controls;

•	 the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function;

•	 the risk areas of the Department’s operations to be covered in the scope of internal audits;

•	 the effectiveness of the monitoring systems pertaining to fraud related risks and the results of management’s 
investigations and follow-up of alleged fraud and related matters;

•	 compliance with legal, statutory and regulatory provisions;

•	 adequacy, completeness and effectiveness of the risk management process;

•	 quality of in-year monitoring reports; 

•	 	completeness, accuracy and reliability of the performance information reports; and

•	 accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of Internal or External audits.

3.11.3 	 Attendance of Audit Committee Meetings by Audit Committee Members

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed below, all of whom are independent of the Department. 
During the year under review, 8 meetings were held.  The table below discloses relevant information on the 
Audit Committee members.

Table 41: Audit Committee Members 

Name Qualifications Internal or  
external member

Date appointed Date 
resigned

No of meetings 
attended

Mr L Saki B Com External 01/11/2016 deceased 0

Ms T Sihlaba BCom; BCompt (Hons); MCom; ACCA; CIA External 01/11/2016 31/03/2020 5

Mr A Amod 
(Chairperson)

CD(SA); B.Com; MBA; CIA; CGAP; CRMA External 01/11/ 2016 31/03/2020 5

Mr G Lourens CA(SA) External 01/11/2016 31/03/2020 5

Mr F Docrat CISM; CISA; CGEIT; MBA; MAP; CRM-Prac COPE, 
CD (SA)

External 01/11/2016 31/03/2020 8

Mr L Mangquku 
(Chairperson)

CA(SA); MBL; BCompt Hons, BCom External 01/04/2020 31/10/2020 3

Ms. Z Monnakgotla Masters in Finance; LLM in Tax; LLB; BCom External 01/04/2020 31/10/2020 3
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3.12 	Audit Committee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year-end 31 March 2020.

3.12.1 	 Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 77 of the Public 
Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13 and 27.1.10.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee 
Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all of its responsibilities as 
contained therein.

3.12.2 	 The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The system of controls within the Department is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are 
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are properly managed in line with the PFMA and the 
protocol on corporate governance. This is achieved by a risk-based internal audit plan, Internal Audit assessing 
the adequacy of controls mitigating the risks and the Audit Committee monitoring implementation of 
corrective actions.

The following were areas of concern:

•	 Inadequate Project Management in the Department;

•	 	Lack of Project Monitoring over the Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management (EESDM) coupled 
with inaccurate reporting; and

•	 Continuing fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the Solar Water Heating Project coupled with risk of 
litigation by service providers.

The Audit Committee also expressed its concern with the slow response by management to audit issues, the 
increasing levels of irregular expenditure and the inadequate consequence management in the Department.  

From our review of the reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and 
the Management Report of the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA), we can conclude that the system of internal 
controls as applied over financial and non-financial matters at the Department is satisfactory, as demonstrated by 
the improved overall audit outcomes, but requires focused and dedicated effort going forward.

The Committee has noted management’s commitment to address the lack of control effectiveness and 
concerns raised.  The Committee will be monitoring management’s progress in resolving these issues on a 
regular basis.

3.12.3 	 Internal Audit

We are satisfied that the Internal Audit function has operated effectively and independently in the year under 
review, that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the department in its audits and has assisted the Department 
with value adding assurance services to ensure that both financial and operational objectives are achieved. 
The areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee with respect to Internal Audit are:

•	 The Management and Reporting of Performance Information;

•	 The High Vacancy rate, and 

•	 	Prolonged Acting Capacity in the vacant positions of Senior Management.
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3.12.4 	 In-Year Management and Monthly Quarterly Report

The Accounting Officer has tabled the In-Year Management (IYM) and monthly quarterly reports to the 
Minister and to the Committee, as required by the Treasury Regulations. The Committee is satisfied with 
the content and quality of the IYM reports.

3.12.5 	 Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:

•	 reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the Annual Report 
with the AGSA and the Accounting Officer;

•	 	reviewed the AGSA’s Management Report and Management’s response thereto;

•	 	reviewed accounting policies and practices as reported in the Annual Financial Statements;

•	 reviewed the Department’s processes for compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

•	 	reviewed the information on predetermined objectives as reported in the Annual Report; 

•	 reviewed adjustments resulting from the audit of the Department; and

•	 reviewed, and where appropriate, recommended changes to the Annual Financial Statements as 
presented by the Department for the year ending 31 March 2020.

3.12.6 	 Report of the Auditor-General South Africa

We have, on a quarterly basis, reviewed the Department’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the prior year. 
Corrective actions on the findings raised by the AGSA will continue to be monitored by the Audit Committee on a 
quarterly basis. 

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on the Annual Financial Statements 
and is of the opinion that the Audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the 
Auditor-General

3.12.7 	 Appreciation

The Audit Committee wishes to acknowledge the dedication and commitment shown by the Accounting 
Officer, Management and Officials of the Department. The Audit Committee wishes to express its appreciation 
to Management, the AGSA and the Internal Audit Unit for the co-operation and information they have 
provided to enable us to discharge our responsibilities.

Mr. Luyanda Mangquku CA (SA)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
29 September 2020
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PART D
HUMAN RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT
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4.1			 Human Resource Management

The information contained in this part of the annual report has been prescribed by the Minister for the Public 
Service and Administration for all departments in the public service.

Within the approved legislative framework established by the Department of Public Service and Administration 
(DPSA), and within a currently constrained financial environment and reorganisation of Government, the 
Department of Energy provided support to its core functions by means of effective management and 
implementation of Human Resource (HR) policies, plans, and interventions.

4.2		 Status of Human Resources in the Department

In May 2019 the President announced the reconfiguration of Government which resulted in the creation of a new 
Department of Mineral Resources and Energy (DMRE) through a merger between the Department of Mineral Resources 
and the Department of Energy (DoE) with effect from 1 April 2020.  The majority of the 2019/2020 financial year was 
dedicated at managing the merger, transition, development of the start-up organisational structure for DMRE and 
winding up the old Department of Energy through the National Macro Organisation of Government (NMOG) process.

The DoE 2019/2020 financial year-end resulted in 597 post (inclusive of 36 Additional posts) and 534 employees 
(inclusive of 36 Additional employees) employed until 31 March 2020. A vacancy rate of 10,6% was observed 
at the end of the period which is 6% down from the previous period. 

The turnover rate was significantly higher than previous years at 16.1% but was due to the end of contracts 
which coincided with the merger date. 

Training and Development continued for the year under review with 21 Bursaries, 36 Learnerships, 22 
Internships and 225 Skills Programmes being implemented. Training programmes were implemented in line 
with the Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) and a set target of 60 was achieved and exceeded to 64.

4.3		 HR Priorities and Results

The DoE had 16 KRA’s in the HR Plan and the following were achieved:

•	 Systems & Information Capacity – Developed and implemented the HR Management Information System 
(MIS) Report (dashboard approach);

•	 	Implementation of the HRD Strategy for the DoE;

•	 Public Service Health and Wellness Framework implemented for the DoE;

•	 Developed a Job evaluation plan aligned to the new Public Service Regulation (PSR); 

•	 Reviewed and implemented the Performance Management and Development System (PMDS) process; 

•	 	Achievement of the EE targets for women in total for DoE and EEA2 and 4 reports submitted to the 
Department of Labour;

•	 HR policies, processes and procedures were developed and implemented;

•	 Filling of all funded vacancies, reduction of the vacancy rate; and

•	 	The retention strategy was monitored and the review process commenced.
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The following two KRAs are viewed as achieved because the review reconfiguration of the DoE Organisational 
Structure to be fit for purpose was completed through the NMOG process. Also the implementation of 
employee satisfaction survey recommendations is viewed as achieved as the change management initiative was 
implemented during the merger process from DoE and DMR into DMRE. The achievements are:

•	 The Organisational Structure for the DMRE was considered and a start-up structure was developed 	and approved. 
•	 Change Management plan was developed and implemented. 

4.4 	 Workforce Planning

The General Elections in May 2019 and the appointment of the 6th Administration at the end of the same month 
brought with it a re-organisation of Government which has impacted strategy and structures. An HR Plan for 2018/21 
was developed with such scenario in mind to help ensure the maintenance and operation of HR until such time 
that the reorganisation of the state has been finalised. The approved plan was implemented with 11 KRA’s being 
achieved and the other 5 being re-prioritised with resources being directed toward the NMOG process.

4.5 	 Employee Performance management

The 2018/2019 performance cycle was successfully completed and performance rewards prescriptively 
implemented in the 2019/2020 financial year. A 92% compliance rate was achieved with the submission of 
Performance Agreements for the 2019/2020 performance cycle. 

4.6		 Employee wellness programmes

			   The Wellness Calendar was approved and implemented within budget and adherence to austerity measures. 

The appointment of EAP (Employee Assistance Programme) Service Provider was however put on hold pending the 
finalisation of the merger process. Although there was no Employee Health and Wellness (EHW) service provider for the 
year, professional services were procured through the SCM process when required for officials and their family members.

4.7 	 Achievements, challenges, and future plans

The year under review commenced with necessity to redirect efforts towards the re-organisation of Government. 
The DoE in partnership with the Department of Mineral Resources dedicated their efforts toward the preparation for 
the merger of the two departments into the new Department of Mineral Resources and Energy. The latter process 
resulted in the establishment of the Departmental NMOG structures and an approved DMRE start-up structure.

This however meant that some HR processes could not be finalised as planned, they were:
•	 The achievement of the EE targets for women in SMS and the employment of persons with 	disabilities 

which was only partially achieved. The figure remained fairly stable throughout the year. 	The target was 
difficult to achieve, since filling of posts were halted and the planning for the merger commenced; 

•	 Some HR Policies implementation was stifled by having to go through a Departmental Bargaining 	
Council process with a new focus on the merger process;

•	 Effective Employee Relations Management within the prescribed timeframes was also affected;
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•	 Implementation of the Framework for Occupations. This process is subject to an approved structure and 
was affected by the NMOG process; and

•	 The development of a career development/paths framework and policy. Same as above.

Since the DoE ceases to exist in its capacity as a stand-alone Department with effect from 1 April 2020, the 
need for their inclusion in a HR Plan will be reviewed with the development of a new HR Plan for the DMRE.

4.8		 Human Resources Oversight Statistics

The Department provided the following key information on its human resources.

4.8.1 Personnel Costs by Programme

The following tables summarises the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme and by salary 
bands. In particular, it provides an indication of the following:

•	 Amount spent on Personnel

•	 	Amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances and medical aid.

Table 42: Personnel Costs by Programme

Programme Total Expenditure 
((R’000))

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure 

as a % of Total 
Expenditure

Average Personnel 
Cost per Employee 

(R’000)

DoE: Administration  279 383.00  164 477.00  2 729.00   58.90   543.00

DoE: Clean Energy  422 956.00  19 672.00   0.00   4.70   855.00

DoE: Electricity and Energy Program 
and Project Management

5 064 328.00  51 916.00   0.00   1.00   658.00

DoE: Energy Policy and Planning  39 945.00  34 784.00   0.00   87.10   791.00

DoE: Nuclear Energy 1 039 907.00  23 916.00   0.00   2.30   854.00

DoE: Petroleum and Petroleum 
Product Regulation

 80 710.00  61 673.00   0.00   76.40   605.00

Total as on Financial Systems (BAS) 6 927 229.00  356 438.00  2 729.00   5.10   616.00
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Table 43: Personnel costs by Salary Band

Salary Band
Personnel Expenditure 

including Transfers 
(R’000)

% of Total Personnel 
Cost

Average Personnel Cost 
per Employee (R) Number of Employees

02 Skilled (Levels 3-5)  24 696.00   6.70  287 163.00   86.00

03 Highly Skilled Production 
(Levels 6-8)

 58 724.00   15.90  438 239.00   134.00

04 Highly Skilled Supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

 161 286.00   43.80  764 389.00   211.00

05 Senior Management  
(Levels >= 13)

 97 464.00   26.50 1 249 538.00   78.00

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)  1 558.00   0.40  103 867.00   15.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)   509.00   0.10  169 667.00   3.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)  1 072.00   0.30 1 072 000.00   1.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)  4 769.00   1.30 1 589 667.00   3.00

14 Contract (Levels >= 13)  8 634.00   2.30 2 878 000.00   3.00

19 Periodical Remuneration   450.00   0.10  112 500.00   4.00

20 Abnormal Appointment  1 263.00   0.30  30 805.00   41.00

TOTAL  360 425.00   97.80  622 496.00   579.00

Table 44: Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Programme

Programme Salaries (R’000)
Salaries as a % 
of Personnel 

Costs

Overtime 
(R’000) HOA (R’000) HOA as a % of 

Personnel Costs

Medical Aid 
as a % of 

Personnel Costs

DoE: Administration  109 892.00   66.80   475.00  4 317.00   2.60   3.70

DoE: Clean Energy  13 392.00   68.10   112.00   436.00   2.20   1.90

DoE: Electricity and Energy 
Program and Project 
Management

 36 917.00   71.10   0.00  1 185.00   2.30   3.60

DoE: Energy Policy and 
Planning

 23 942.00   68.80   14.00   828.00   2.40   2.60

DoE: Nuclear Energy  16 327.00   68.30   0.00  1 092.00   4.60   1.50

DoE: Petroleum and 
Petroleum Product 
Regulation

 42 025.00   68.10   12.00  2 249.00   3.60   5.10

TOTAL  242 495.00   68.00   612.00  10 107.00   2.80   3.60



70

PART D
:   

H
U

M
AN

  RESO
U

RCE  M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

Table 45: Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Salary Band

Salary Bands Salaries (R’000)
Salaries as a % 
of Personnel 

Costs

Overtime 
(R’000) HOA (R’000) HOA as a % of 

Personnel Costs

Medical Aid 
as a % of 

Personnel Costs

02 Skilled (Levels 3-5)  18 248.00   73.00   99.00  1 273.00   5.10   10.70

03 Highly Skilled Production 
(Levels 6-8)

 46 485.00   78.40   185.00  2 108.00   3.60   7.00

04 Highly Skilled 
Supervision (Levels 9-12)

 135 317.00   81.60   326.00  4 576.00   2.80   3.00

05 Senior Management 
(Levels >= 13)

 86 283.00   86.40   0.00  2 129.00   2.10   0.80

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)  1 542.00   96.30   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)   419.00   82.20   0.00   4.00   0.80   0.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)   851.00   78.50   0.00   12.00   1.10   0.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)  4 184.00   87.20   0.00   25.00   0.50   0.40

14 Contract (Levels >= 13)  7 933.00   90.80   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.10

19 Periodical Remuneration   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

20 Abnormal Appointment  1 263.00   93.60   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL  302 526.00   82.10   612.00  10 126.00   2.70   3.40

4.8.2      	Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies.

The following tables summarise the number of posts in the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, 
and whether there are any staff that are additional to the establishment.

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:

•	 programme

•	 salary band

•	 critical occupations
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Table 46: Employment and Vacancies by Programme at end of Period

Programme
Number of Posts 

on Approved 
Establishment

Number of Posts 
Filled

Vacancy Rate 
(Includes Frozen 

Posts)

Number of 
Employees 

Additional to the 
Establishment

DoE: Administration   284.00   258.00   9.20   18.00

DoE: Clean Energy   28.00   23.00   17.90   1.00

DoE: Electricity and Energy Program and Project 
Management

  84.00   79.00   6.00   12.00

DoE: Energy Policy and Planning   53.00   44.00   17.00   2.00

DoE: Nuclear Energy   32.00   28.00   12.50   1.00

DoE: Petroleum and Petroleum Product 
Regulation

  116.00   102.00   12.10   2.00

TOTAL   597.00   534.00   10.60   36.00

Table 47: Employment and Vacancies by Salary Band at end of Period

Salary Bands
Number of Posts 

on Approved 
Establishment

Number of Posts 
Filled

Vacancy Rate 
(Includes Frozen 

Posts)

Number of 
Employees 

Additional to the 
Establishment

02 Skilled (Levels 3-5)   90.00   86.00   4.40   6.00

03 Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8)   147.00   134.00   8.80   5.00

04 Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12)   239.00   211.00   11.70   7.00

05 Senior Management  (Levels >= 13)   96.00   78.00   18.80   2.00

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)   15.00   15.00   0.00   15.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)   3.00   3.00   0.00   0.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)   1.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)   3.00   3.00   0.00   0.00

14 Contract (Levels >= 13)   3.00   3.00   0.00   1.00

TOTAL   597.00   534.00   10.60   36.00

Table 48: Employment and Vacancies by Critical Occupation at end of Period

Critical Occupation
Number of Posts 

on Approved 
Establishment

Number of Posts 
Filled

Vacancy Rate 
(Includes Frozen 

Posts)

Number of 
Employees 

Additional to the 
Establishment

Administrative Related   103.00   89.00   13.60   9.00

Client Inform Clerks (Switchboard Receptionist Inform 
Clerks)

  17.00   17.00   0.00   0.00

Communication and Information Related   13.00   9.00   30.80   1.00

Community Development Workers   1.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

Economists   4.00   2.00   50.00   0.00

Finance and Economics Related   9.00   8.00   11.10   0.00

Financial And Related Professionals   21.00   19.00   9.50   0.00
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Critical Occupation
Number of Posts 

on Approved 
Establishment

Number of Posts 
Filled

Vacancy Rate 
(Includes Frozen 

Posts)

Number of 
Employees 

Additional to the 
Establishment

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers   18.00   17.00   5.60   0.00

Food Services Aids and Waiters   1.00   0.00   100.00   0.00

Head Of Department Chief Executive Officer   1.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

Historians and Political Scientists   1.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

Housekeepers Laundry and Related Workers   2.00   2.00   0.00   0.00

Human Resources and Organisational Development 
and Relate Professionals

  23.00   20.00   13.00   0.00

Human Resources Clerks   8.00   8.00   0.00   1.00

Human Resources Related   5.00   5.00   0.00   0.00

Information Technology Related   1.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other 
Communication

  4.00   3.00   25.00   1.00

Legal Related   5.00   4.00   20.00   0.00

Library Mail and Related Clerks   5.00   5.00   0.00   1.00

Logistical Support Personnel   6.00   6.00   0.00   0.00

Material-Recording and Transport Clerks   14.00   13.00   7.10   2.00

Messengers, Porters and Delivery People   3.00   2.00   33.30   0.00

Meteorologists   2.00   2.00   0.00   0.00

Motor Vehicle Drivers   1.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

Natural Sciences Related   66.00   57.00   13.60   0.00

Nature Conservation and Oceanographic Related, 
Technical

  2.00   1.00   50.00   0.00

Other Administration and Related Clerks and Organisers   9.00   9.00   0.00   3.00

Other Administrative Policy And Related Officers   33.00   30.00   9.10   0.00

Other Information Technology Personnel   9.00   9.00   0.00   0.00

Other Occupations   1.00   0.00   100.00   0.00

Risk Management and Security Services   13.00   12.00   7.70   0.00

Interns   15.00   15.00   0.00   15.00

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating Clerks   47.00   44.00   6.40   0.00

Security Officers   36.00   36.00   0.00   0.00

Senior Managers   82.00   69.00   15.90   2.00

Social Sciences Related   3.00   3.00   0.00   0.00

Statisticians and Related Professionals   7.00   7.00   0.00   1.00

Trade/Industry Advisers and Other Related Profession   5.00   5.00   0.00   0.00

Youth Workers   1.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   597.00   534.00   10.60   36.00
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4.8.3		 Job Evaluation

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his 
or her organisation. In terms of the regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated 
before they are filled. The following table summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year 
under review. The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

Table 49: Job Evaluations

Salary Band

Number of 
Posts on 

Approved
Establishment

Number 
of Jobs 

Evaluated

% of Posts 
Evaluated by 
Salary Bands

Number 
of Posts 

Upgraded

% of 
Upgraded 

Posts 
Evaluated

Number of 
Posts

Downgraded

% of
Downgraded

Posts
Evaluated

02 Skilled

(Levels 3-5)

  90.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

03 Highly Skilled Production 

(Levels 6-8)

  147.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

04 Highly Skilled 
Supervision (Levels 9-12)

  239.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

05 Senior Management 
Service Band A

  66.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

06 Senior Management 
Service Band B

  20.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

07 Senior Management 
Service Band C

  9.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

08 Senior Management 
Service Band D

  1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)   15.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

14 Contract Band A   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

17 Contract Band D   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   597.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00
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Table 50: Profile of Employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

Male   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

Employees with a Disability   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Table 51: Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation [I.t.o Psr 1.V.c.3]

Occupation Number of 
Employees

Job Evaluation 
Level

Remuneration 
Level

Reason for 
Deviation

No of Employees 
in Department

None

Table 52: Profile of Employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation [I.t.o. Psr 1.V.c.3]

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

None

4.8.4		 Turnover

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide 
an indication of trends in the employment profile of the Department. The following tables provide a summary 
of turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 53: Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Band

Salary Band Number of Employees 
at Beginning of Period Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

02 Skilled (Levels 3-5)    90.00   0.00   2.00   2.20

03 Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8)    137.00   1.00   7.00   5.10

04 Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12)    215.00   1.00   4.00   1.90

05 Senior Management Service Band A   54.00   1.00   1.00   1.90

06 Senior Management Service Band B   16.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

07 Senior Management Service Band C   7.00   0.00   1.00   14.30

08 Senior Management Service Band D   1.00   1.00   2.00   200.00

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)    22.00   0.00   22.00   100.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)    1.00   7.00   8.00   800.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)    5.00   8.00   13.00   260.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)    7.00   10.00   17.00   242.90

14 Contract Band A   6.00   6.00   10.00   166.70

15 Contract Band B   1.00   0.00   1.00   100.00

16 Contract Band C   1.00   0.00   1.00   100.00

17 Contract Band D   2.00   1.00   2.00   100.00

TOTAL   565.00   36.00   91.00   16.10
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Table 54: Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation

Critical Occupation
Number of 

Employees at 
Beginning of Period

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Administrative Related   92.00   4.00   8.00   8.70

Client Inform Clerks   16.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

Communication and Information Related   14.00   5.00   11.00   78.60

Community Development Workers   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Economists   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Finance and Economics Related   8.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Financial And Related Professionals   20.00   0.00   1.00   5.00

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers   18.00   0.00   1.00   5.60

Food Services Aids and Waiters   1.00   1.00   2.00   200.00

Head Of Department Chief Executive Officer   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Human Resources and Organisational 
Development and Relate Professionals

  21.00   0.00   1.00   4.80

Human Resources Clerks   10.00   1.00   2.00   20.00

Human Resources Related   4.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Information Technology Related   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other 
Communication 

  3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Legal Related   4.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Library Mail and Related Clerks   7.00   2.00   3.00   42.90

Logistical Support Personnel   6.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Material-Recording and Transport Clerks.   14.00   0.00   1.00   7.10

Messengers Porters and Delivery People   3.00   4.00   6.00   200.00

Meteorologists   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Motor Vehicle Drivers.   2.00   0.00   1.00   50.00

Natural Sciences Related   60.00   0.00   3.00   5.00

Nature Conservation and Oceanographical Related 
and Technical

  1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Other Administration and Related Clerks and 
Organisers

  9.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Other Administrative Policy And Related Officers   32.00   0.00   2.00   6.30

Other Information Technology Personnel   8.00   1.00   0.00   0.00

Other Occupations   1.00   1.00   2.00   200.00

Risk Management and Security Services   12.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Interns   22.00   0.00   22.00   100.00

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating Clerks   44.00   3.00   6.00   13.60

Security Officers   36.00   0.00   0.00   0.00
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Critical Occupation
Number of 

Employees at 
Beginning of Period

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Senior Managers   74.00   7.00   13.00   17.60

Social Sciences Related   2.00   2.00   2.00   100.00

Statisticians and Related Professionals   7.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Trade/Industry Advisers and Other Related 
Profession

  5.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Youth Workers   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   565.00   36.00   91.00   16.10

Table 55: Reasons Why Staff are Leaving the Department

Termination Type Number % of Total Resignations

01 Death   3.00   3.30

02 Resignation   14.00   15.40

03 Expiry of contract   65.00   71.40

07 Dismissal-misconduct   1.00   1.10

09 Retirement   8.00   8.80

TOTAL   91.00   100.00

Table 56: Granting of Employee Initiated Severance Packages

Category
No of 

Applications 
Received

No of 
Applications 

Referred to the 
MPSA

No of Applications 
Supported by MPSA

No of Packages 
Approved by 
Department

02 Skilled (Levels 3-5)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

03 Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

04 Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

05 Senior Management Service Band A   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

06 Senior Management Service Band B   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

07 Senior Management Service Band C   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

08 Senior Management Service Band D   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

14 Contract Band A   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

17 Contract Band D   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Table 54: Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation (continues)
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4.8.5		 Promotions
Table 57: Promotions by Critical Occupation

Occupation

Number of 
Employees at 
Beginning of 

Period

Promotions to 
another Salary 

Level

Salary Level 
Promotions 

as a % of 
Employees by 

Occupation

Progressions to 
another Notch 
within a Salary 

Level

Notch 
Progression 

as a % of 
Employees by 

Occupation

Administrative Related   92.00   0.00   0.00   65.00   70.70

Client Inform Clerks   16.00   0.00   0.00   16.00   100.00

Communication and Information Related   14.00   0.00   0.00   8.00   57.10

Community Development Workers   1.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   100.00

Economists   2.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   50.00

Finance and Economics Related   8.00   0.00   0.00   4.00   50.00

Financial and Related Professionals   20.00   0.00   0.00   14.00   70.00

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers   18.00   0.00   0.00   14.00   77.80

Food Services Aids and Waiters   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Head Of Department Chief Executive Officer   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Human Resources and Organisational 
Development and Relate Professionals

  21.00   0.00   0.00   17.00   81.00

Human Resources Clerks   10.00   0.00   0.00   4.00   40.00

Human Resources Related   4.00   1.00   25.00   3.00   75.00

Information Technology Related   2.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   50.00

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other 
Communication

  3.00   0.00   0.00   3.00   100.00

Legal Related   4.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Library Mail and Related Clerks   7.00   1.00   14.30   4.00   57.10

Logistical Support Personnel   6.00   0.00   0.00   5.00   83.30

Material-Recording and Transport Clerks   14.00   0.00   0.00   9.00   64.30

Messengers Porters and Deliverers   3.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   33.30

Meteorologists   2.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   100.00

Motor Vehicle Drivery People   2.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   50.00

Natural Sciences Related   60.00   0.00   0.00   41.00   68.30

Nature Conservation and Oceanographical 
Related, Technical

  1.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   100.00

Other Administration and Related Clerks and 
Organisers

  9.00   0.00   0.00   7.00   77.80

Other Administrative Policy and Related 
Officers

  32.00   0.00   0.00   29.00   90.60

Other Information Technology Personnel   8.00   1.00   12.50   5.00   62.50

Other Occupations   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Risk Management and Security Services   12.00   0.00   0.00   10.00   83.30

Interns   22.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00
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Occupation

Number of 
Employees at 
Beginning of 

Period

Promotions to 
another Salary 

Level

Salary Level 
Promotions 

as a % of 
Employees by 

Occupation

Progressions to 
another Notch 
within a Salary 

Level

Notch 
Progression 

as a % of 
Employees by 

Occupation

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating 
Clerks

  44.00   2.00   4.50   34.00   77.30

Security Officers   36.00   0.00   0.00   34.00   94.40

Senior Managers   74.00   0.00   0.00   36.00   48.60

Social Sciences Related   2.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   100.00

Statisticians and Related Professionals   7.00   0.00   0.00   5.00   71.40

Trade/Industry Advisers and Other Related 
Professions

  5.00   0.00   0.00   5.00  100.00

Youth Workers   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   565.00   5.00   0.90   382.00   67.60

Table 58: Promotions by Salary Band

Salary Band

Number of 
Employees at 
Beginning of 

Period

Promotions to 
another Salary 

Level

Salary Level 
Promotions 

as a % of 
Employees by 

Salary Band

Progressions to 
another Notch 
within a Salary 

Level

Notch 
Progression 

as a % of 
Employees by 

Salary Band

02 Skilled (Levels 3-5)   90.00   0.00   0.00   77.00   85.60

03 Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8)   137.00   4.00   2.90   104.00   75.90

04 Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12)   215.00   1.00   0.50   156.00   72.60

05 Senior Management (Levels >= 13)   78.00   0.00   0.00   45.00   57.70

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)   22.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)   5.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)   7.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

14 Contract (Levels >= 13)   10.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   565.00   5.00   0.90   382.00   67.60

Table 57: Promotions by Critical Occupation (continues)
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4.8.6		 Number of Employees 
Table 59: Total Number of Employees (incl. Employees with disabilities) per Occupational Category (SASCO)

Occupational Category Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

01 - Senior Officials and Managers   37.00   1.00   1.00   2.00   25.00   0.00   2.00   2.00   70.00

02 - Professionals   43.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   50.00   0.00   2.00   3.00   100.00

03 - Technicians And Associate 
Professionals

  83.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   114.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   198.00

04 - Clerks   31.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   76.00   2.00   0.00   3.00   113.00

05 - Service Shop and Market Sales 
Workers

  39.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   11.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   50.00

08 - Plant And Machine Operators 
And Assemblers

  1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

09 - Labourers and Related Workers   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   2.00

TOTAL   235.00   2.00   2.00   4.00   277.00   2.00   4.00   8.00   534.00

Table 60: Total Number of Employees with Disabilities

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

Employees with disabilities   1.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   6.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   9.00

Table 61: Total Number of Employees (incl. Employees with disabilities) per Occupational Bands

Occupational Band Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

01 Top Management   4.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   7.00

02 Senior Management,   39.00   0.00   2.00   2.00   24.00   0.00   1.00   3.00   71.00

03 Professionally Qualified and 
Experienced Specialists and  
Mid-management

  95.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   111.00   0.00   2.00   1.00   211.00

04 Skilled Technical and 
Academically Qqualified Workers, 
Junior Management, Supervisors, 
Foremen 

  38.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   91.00   1.00   0.00   3.00   134.00

05 Semi-skilled and Discretionary 
Decision Making

  51.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   33.00   1.00   0.00   1.00   86.00

08 Contract (Top Management)   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

09 Contract (Senior Management)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   2.00

10 Contract (Professionally 
Qualified)

  1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   3.00

11 Contract (Skilled Technical)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

12 Contract (Semi-Skilled)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   3.00

13 Contract (Unskilled)   6.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   9.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   15.00

TOTAL   235.00   2.00   2.00   4.00   277.00   2.00   4.00   8.00   534.00
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4.8.7		 Recruitment, Promotions and Terminations 
Table 62: Recruitment

Occupational Band Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Inadian

Female, 
White Total

01 Top Management   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

02 Senior Management   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

03 Professionally Qualified and 
Experienced Specialists and  
Mid-management

  1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

04 Skilled Technical and 
Academically Qualified Workers, 
Junior Management, Supervisors, 
foremen

  0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

08 Contract (Top Management)   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

09 Contract (Senior Management)   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   5.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   6.00

10 Contract (Professionally qualified)   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   8.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   10.00

11 Contract (Skilled Technical)   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   5.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   8.00

12 Contract (Semi-skilled)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   7.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   7.00

TOTAL   9.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   27.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   36.00

Table 63: Recruitment (Employees With Disabilities)

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 64: Promotions

Occupational Band Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

02 Senior Management   19.00   0.00   1.00   2.00   19.00   0.00   1.00   3.00   45.00

03 Professionally Qualified and 
Experienced Specialists and  
Mid-management

  62.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   92.00   0.00   2.00   1.00   157.00

04 Skilled technical and 
Academically Qualified Workers, 
Junior Management, Supervisors, 
Foremen

  36.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   69.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   107.00

05 Semi-skilled and Discretionary 
Decision Making

  45.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   31.00   1.00   0.00   1.00   78.00

TOTAL   162.00   0.00   1.00   2.00   211.00   1.00   3.00   7.00   387.00

Table 65: Promotions (Employees with disabilities)

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

Employees with Disabilities   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   4.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   6.00
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Table 66: Terminations

Occupational Band Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Inadian

Female, 
White Total

01 Top Management   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   3.00

02 Senior Management   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

03 Professionally Qualified and 
Experienced Specialists and  
Mid-management

  3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   4.00

04 Skilled technical and 
Academically Qualified Workers, 
Junior Management, Supervisors, 
Foremen

  2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   3.00   0.00   0.00   2.00   7.00

05 Semi-skilled and Discretionary 
Decision Making

  2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   2.00

08 Contract (Top Management)   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   3.00

09 Contract (Senior Management)   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   8.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   11.00

10 Contract (Professionally qualified)   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   15.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   17.00

11 Contract (Skilled technical)   6.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   7.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   13.00

12 Contract (Semi-skilled)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   8.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   8.00

13 Contract (Unskilled)   9.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   12.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   22.00

TOTAL   33.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   55.00   0.00   1.00   2.00   91.00

Table 67: Terminations (Employees with Disabilities)

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

Employees with Disabilities   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   1.00

Table 68: Disciplinary Action

Disciplinary Action Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Inadian

Female, 
White Total

 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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4.8.8		 Skills Development 
Table 69: Skills Development

Occupational Category Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
White Total

Legislators, Senior Officials and 
Managers

10 0 0 1 10 0 0 3 24

Professionals 19 0 0 1 20 1 1 1 43

Technicians and Associate 
Professionals

46 0 0 0 48 0 0 0 94

Clerks 39 0 0 0 73 1 1 0 114

Service and Sales Workers 21 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 25

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery 
Workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related Trades Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and Machine Operators and 
Assemblers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary Occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 1 4

TOTAL 135 0 0 2 158 2 2 5 304

4.8.9		 Performance 

To encourage good performance, the Department has granted the following performance rewards during the year 
under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations.

Table 70: Performance Rewards by Race, Gender and Disability

Race and Gender Number of 
Beneficiaries

Number of 
Employees

% of Total within 
Group Total Cost (R'000) Average Cost per 

Employee (R)

African, Female   99.00   271.00   36.50  2 997.48  30 278.00

African, Male   65.00   234.00   27.80  2 063.02  31 739.00

Asian, Female   1.00   4.00   25.00   31.44  31 443.00

Asian, Male   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Coloured, Female   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Coloured, Male   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Total Blacks, Female   100.00   277.00   36.10  3 028.92  30 289.00

Total Blacks, Male   65.00   238.00   27.70  2 127.91  32 241.00

White, Female   3.00   7.00   42.90   82.06  27 353.00

White, Male   1.00   3.00   33.30   80.68  80 682.00

Employees with a disability   4.00   9.00   44.40   105.08  26 271.00

TOTAL   173.00   534.00   32.40  5 359.76  30 981.00



83 DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

Table 71:  Performance Rewards by Salary Band for Personnel below Senior Management Service

Salary Band Number of 
Beneficiaries

Number of 
Employees

% of Total within 
Salary Band Total Cost (R'000) Average Cost per 

Employee (R)

02 Skilled (Levels 3-5)   33.00   86.00   38.40   471.36  14 284.00

03 Highly Skilled Production  
(Levels 6-8)

  66.00   134.00   49.30  1 522.27  23 065.00

04 Highly Skilled Supervision  
(Levels 9-12)

  74.00   211.00   35.10  3 366.13  45 488.00

10 Contract (Levels 1-2)   0.00   15.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

11 Contract (Levels 3-5)   0.00   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

12 Contract (Levels 6-8)   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

13 Contract (Levels 9-12)   0.00   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   173.00   534.00   32.40  5 359.76  30 981.00

Table 72: Performance Rewards by Critical Occupation

Critical Occupation Number of 
Beneficiaries

Number Of 
Employees

% Of Total 
Within 

Occupation

Total Cost 
(R'000)

Average Cost 
Per Employee 

(R)

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers   7.00   17.00   41.20   110.69  15 813.00

Human Resources Clerks   4.00   8.00   50.00   86.95  21 736.00

Security Officers   10.00   36.00   27.80   145.91  14 591.00

Human Resources and Organisational 
Development & Relate Professionals

  19.00   20.00   95.00   658.26  34 645.00

Messengers Porters and Deliverers   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Risk Management and Security Services   6.00   12.00   50.00   140.61  23 435.00

Meteorologists   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Interns   0.00   15.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Social Sciences Related   0.00   3.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Finance and Economics Related   4.00   8.00   50.00   265.69  66 423.00

Logistical Support Personnel   2.00   6.00   33.30   55.59  27 797.00

Natural Sciences Related   21.00   57.00   36.80   925.72  44 082.00

Other Administration and Related Clerks and 
Organisers

  6.00   9.00   66.70   88.68  14 780.00

Housekeepers Laundry and Related Workers   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Legal Related   1.00   4.00   25.00   80.68  80 680.00

Nature Conservation and Oceanographical 
Related, Technical

  0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Financial and Related Professionals   10.00   19.00   52.60   352.27  35 227.00

Administrative Related   19.00   89.00   21.30   697.46  36 708.00

Communication and Information Related   1.00   9.00   11.10   25.68  25 676.00

Historians and Political Scientists   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating 
Clerks

  22.00   44.00   50.00   484.59  22 027.00
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Critical Occupation Number of 
Beneficiaries

Number of 
Employees

% Of Total 
Within 

Occupation

Total Cost 
(R'000)

Average Cost 
Per Employee 

(R)

Library Mail and Related Clerks   3.00   5.00   60.00   61.35  20 452.00

Human Resources Related   3.00   5.00   60.00   106.26  35 420.00

Trade/Industry Advisers & Other Related 
Profession

  2.00   5.00   40.00   105.27  52 635.00

Head Of Department Chief Executive Officer   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other 
Communication

  1.00   3.00   33.30   33.87  33 873.00

Material-Recording and Transport Clerks   7.00   13.00   53.80   101.62  14 516.00

Youth Workers   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Other Administrative Policy and Related 
Officers

  16.00   30.00   53.30   573.12  35 820.00

Statisticians and Related Professionals   4.00   7.00   57.10   188.37  47 093.00

Senior Managers   0.00   69.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Client Inform Clerks   5.00   17.00   29.40   71.12  14 225.00

Economists   0.00   2.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Other Information Technology Personnel   0.00   9.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Motor Vehicle Drivers   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Community Development Workers   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Information Technology Related   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   173.00   534.00   32.40  5 359.76  30 981.00

Table 73: Performance Related Rewards (Cash Bonus) by Salary Band for Senior Management Service

Salary Band Number of 
Beneficiaries

Number of 
Employees

% Of Total 
Within Salary 

Band

Total Cost 
(R'000)

Average Cost 
Per Employee 

(R)

Total Cost As A 
% Of The Total 

Personnel 
Expenditure

Band A   0.00   57.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Band B   0.00   16.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Band C   0.00   7.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Band D   0.00   1.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   0.00   81.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

4.8.10    Performance Agreement Compliance

	All  members  of  the  SMS  must  conclude  and  sign  Performance  Agreements  within  specific  timeframes. 
Information regarding the signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying 
within the prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken, is presented here.

Table 72: Performance Rewards by Critical Occupation (continued)
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Table 74: Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2019

SMS Level
Total Number of 

Funded SMS Posts  
1 April 2019

Total Number of 
SMS Members  

1 April 2019

Total Number 
of Signed 

Performance 
Agreements

Signed 
Performance 

Agreements as 
% of Total SMS 

Members

Director-General / Head of Department 1 1 0 0%

Salary Level 16 3 2 0 0%

Salary Level 15 9 8 6 75%

Salary Level 14 22 17 16 94%

Salary Level 13 71 60 49 82%

TOTAL 106 88 66 75%

Table 75: Reasons for not having concluded Performance Agreements for all SMS members as on 31 May 2019

Reasons

Non-compliance 

Table 76: Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance Agreements as on  
31 May 2019

Reasons

Non-Compliance letter 

4.8.11	 Foreign Workers 

Table 77: Foreign Workers by Salary Band

The tables below summarise the employment of Foreign Nationals in the Department in terms of Salary Band and 
Major Occupation.
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Senior 

Management 

(Levels 13-16)

  1.00   100.00   1.00   100.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   1.00   0.00

TOTAL   1.00   100.00   1.00   100.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   1.00   0.00
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Table 78: Foreign Workers by Major Occupation

Major 
Occupation
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Professionals 
and Managers

  1.00   100.00   1.00   100.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   1.00   0.00

TOTAL   1.00   100.00   1.00   100.00   0.00   0.00   1.00   1.00   0.00

4.8.12	L eave 

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The 
following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of 
the leave is also provided.

Table 79: Sick Leave for January 2019 to December 2019

Salary Band Total Days
% Days with 

Medical 
Certification

Number of 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

% of Total 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

Average 
Days per 

Employee

Estimated 
Cost (R'000)

Total 
Number of 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

Total 
Number of 
Days with 
Medical 

Certification

Contract 
(Levels 1-2)

  50.00   34.00   9.00   2.00   6.00   23.00   457.00   17.00

Contract 
(Levels 13-16)

  14.00   64.30   3.00   0.70   5.00   63.00   457.00   9.00

Contract 
(Levels 6-8)

  6.00   100.00   3.00   0.70   2.00   8.00   457.00   6.00

Contract 
(Levels 9-12)

  12.00   50.00   4.00   0.90   3.00   39.00   457.00   6.00

Highly Skilled 
Production 
(Levels 6-8)

  971.00   73.40   127.00   27.80   8.00  1 490.00   457.00   713.00

Highly Skilled 
Supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

 1 366.00   76.40   178.00   38.90   8.00  3 782.00   457.00  1 044.00

Senior 
Management 
(Levels 13-16)

  449.00   79.70   58.00   12.70   8.00  2 087.00   457.00   358.00

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5)

  698.00   82.40   75.00   16.40   9.00   663.00   457.00   575.00

TOTAL  3 566.00   76.50   457.00   100.00   8.00  8 155.00   457.00  2 728.00
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Table 80: Disability Leave (Temporary and ) for January 2019 to December 2019

Salary Band Total 
Days

% Days with 
Medical 

Certification

Number of 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

% of Total 
Employees 
using Sick 

Leave

Average 
Days per 

Employee

Estimated 
Cost 

(R'000)

Total Number 
of Employees 

using Sick 
Leave

Total Number 
of Days with 

Medical 
Certification

Highly Skilled 
Supervision (Levels 9-12)

  63.00   100.00   4.00   57.10   16.00   181.00   63.00   7.00

Senior Management 
(Levels 13-16)

  49.00   100.00   2.00   28.60   25.00   261.00   49.00   7.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5)  213.00   100.00   1.00   14.30   213.00   219.00   213.00   7.00

TOTAL 325.00   100.00   7.00   100.00   46.00   661.00   325.00   7.00

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The Wage Agreement concluded with trade unions in the  
PSCBC in 2000 requires management of Annual Leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of 
termination of service.

Table 81: Annual Leave for January 2019 to December 2019

Salary Band Total Days Taken Average per Employee Number of Employees using Annual Leave

Contract (Levels 1-2)   336.00   15.00   22.00

Contract (Levels 13-16)   146.00   13.00   11.00

Contract (Levels 3-5)   23.00   6.00   4.00

Contract (Levels 6-8)   54.00   8.00   7.00

Contract (Levels 9-12)   50.00   6.00   8.00

Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8)  3 381.00   24.00   142.00

Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12)  5 367.00   25.00   219.00

Senior Management (Levels 13-16)  1 987.00   25.00   79.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5)  2 127.00   23.00   91.00

TOTAL  13 471.00   23.00   583.00

Table 82: Capped Leave for January 2019 to December 2019

Salary Band
Total Days 
of Capped 

Leave Taken

Average 
Number of 
Days Taken 

per Employee

Average 
Capped Leave 
per Employee 

as at End of 
Period

Number of 
Employees 

using Capped 
Leave

Total Number 
of Capped 

Leave 
Available at 

End of Period

Number of 
Employees 
as at End of 

Period

Contract (Levels 1-2)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Contract (Levels 13-16)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Contract (Levels 3-5)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Contract (Levels 6-8)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Contract (Levels 9-12)   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00   0.00

Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8)   0.00   0.00   14.00   0.00   154.32   11.00

Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12)   0.00   0.00   25.00   0.00   417.41   17.00

Senior Management (Levels 13-16)   19.00   6.00   54.00   3.00   594.27   11.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5)   0.00   0.00   24.00   0.00   23.90   1.00

TOTAL   19.00   6.00   30.00   3.00  1 189.90   40.00
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The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 83: Leave Payouts

Reason Total Estimated 
Amount (R'000)

Number of 
Employees

Estimated Average 
per Employee (R)

Annual - Discounting With Resignation (Work Days)   522.00   21.00  24 857.00

Annual - Discounting: Unused Vacation Credits (Work Days)   142.00   10.00  14 200.00

Annual - Gratuity: Death/Retirement/Medical Retirement (Work days)   272.00   9.00  30 222.00

Capped - Gratuity: Death/Retirement/Medical Retirement (Work days)   235.00   5.00  47 000.00

TOTAL  1 171.00 - -

4.8.13	 Health and Wellness
Table 84: Steps Taken to Reduce the Risk of Occupational Exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of contracting HIV 
& related diseases (if any)

Key Steps taken to Reduce the Risk

Male Employees Who Have Sex With Men awareness

Transgender Employees awareness

Employees Who Inject Drugs and Abuse Alcohol awareness

Table 85: Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1. Has the Department designated a member of the 
SMS to implement the provisions contained in Part VI E 
of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If 
so, provide her/his name and position.

Yes Mr Thabane Zulu, Director-General

2. Does the Department have a dedicated unit or have 
you designated specific staff members to promote 
health and well-being of your employees? If so, indicate 
the number of employees who are involved in this task 
and the annual budget that is available.

Yes The Department has a sub-directorate: Employment 
Relations & Wellness Management consisting of the DD: ER 
(1), ASD: EHW (0), Practitioner: OHSA (1), Clerk (0). The annual 
budget available for 2019/2020 is R200 000.

3. Has the Department introduced an Employee 
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for your 
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services of 
the programme.

Yes The Department has a Wellness Programme that addresses 
the four (4) wellness pillars in line with the National Wellness 
Strategic Framework by the DPSA.

4. Has the Department established (a) committee(s) 
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the 
Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide 
the names of the members of the committee and the 
stakeholder(s) that they represent.

Yes The Department has a Peer Educators Committee which 
addresses awareness and education on HIV/AIDs including 
other sexually transmitted diseases. The names of the 
committee members are Tiselani Mdhluli, Benny Makhura, 
Vusi Ndlovu, Ramotaung Tlaka, Lesego Mosadi, Annah 
Sefolo, Gaugelo Mphela, Veronica Mohai, Margaret Thaba, 
Lister Mbowane, Matshediso Mahlaku, Nolusindiso Njengele, 
Nomaphosi Ngomane, Patrick Nojila, Nthabiseng Mahlaku 
and Lerato Mashamaite. 

5. Has the Department reviewed the employment 
policies and practices of your department to ensure 
that these do not unfairly discriminate against 
employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the 
employment policies/practices so reviewed.

Yes The Departmental HIV/AIDS Policy



89 DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

Question Yes No Details, if yes

6. Has the Department introduced measures to protect 
HIV-positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-
positive from discrimination? If so, list the key elements 
of these measures.

Yes The Department conducts HIV/AIDS and Sexually 
Transmitted Infections awareness Campaigns i.e. STIs 
condom week campaigns, Candlelight Memorials, and World 
AIDS Day.

7. Does the Department encourage its employees to 
undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list 
the results that you have achieved.

Yes The Department conducts monthly on-site clinics, including 
HIV/AIDS Counselling and Testing services (HTC) and also 
runs Condom Week campaigns. The target for 2019/20 was to 
increase the number of employees testing for HIV, particularly 
our male employees, however, the growth has decreased. Our 
male employees are less likely to test for HIV and to utilise on-site 
clinic services than female counterparts. The programme has 
however seen growth in the number of condoms distributed 
and collected by employees. This is an indication that it is an 
important intervention that enabled improvement in awareness 
and prevention among DoE employees, even though it did not 
increase the number of tests.

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to 
monitor & evaluate the impact of your health promotion 
programme? If so, list these measures/indicators.

Yes Employee Health and Wellness Reports (Monthly, Quarterly, 
Bi-Annual and Annual Analysis Reports).

4.8.14		 Disciplinary Issues

Table 86: Collective Agreements

Collective Agreements Dates

None

Table 87: Misconduct and Discipline Hearings Finalised

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of Total Total

None

Table 88: Types of Misconduct Addressed and Disciplinary Hearings

Type of misconduct Number % of Total Total

None

Table 89: Grievances Lodged

Number of grievances addressed Number % of Total Total

Not resolved   9.00 3.87   9.00

Resolved   34.00   96.00   34.00

TOTAL   43.00   96.00   43.00

Table 90: Disputes Lodged

Disputes lodged % of Total Total

Disputes lodged   9.00   9.00

TOTAL    9.00   100.00

Table 85: Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (continues)
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Table 91: Strike Actions

Strike Action Number Percentage of Total

None 

Table 92: Precautionary Suspensions

Precautionary Suspensions Number

None

4.8.15		 Skills Development 

This section highlights the efforts of the Department with regard to skills development. 

Table 93: Training Needs identified

Occupational Category Gender

Number of 
Employees at 
Beginning of 

Period

Learnerships

Skills 
Programmes 
& other Short 

Courses

Other Forms 
of Training Total

Legislators, Senior Officials and Managers Female 31 0 22 0 22

Legislators, Senior Officials and Managers Male 45 0 16 0 16

Professionals Female 58 0 51 3 54

Professionals Male 46 0 35 1 36

Technicians and Associate Professionals Female 123 0 68 0 68

Technicians and Associate Professionals Male 90 0 53 3 56

Clerks Female 83 38 60 4 102

Clerks Male 35 20 28 3 51

Service and Sales Workers Female 9 0 5 1 6

Service and Sales Workers Male 39 0 26 6 32

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery Workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery Workers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and Related Trades Workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related Trades Workers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and Machine Operators and 
Assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and Machine Operators and 
Assemblers

Male 2 0 2 0 2

Elementary Occupations Female 1 0 0 0 0

Elementary Occupations Male 3 0 0 0 0

Gender Sub-totals Female 305 38 206 8 252

Gender Sub-totals Male 260 20 160 13 193

TOTAL 565 58 366 21 445
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Table 94: Training Provided

TABLE 12.2 - Training Provided Gender

Number of 
Employees at 
Beginning of 

Period

Learnerships

Skills 
Programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other forms 
of training Total

Legislators, Senior Officials and 
managers

Female 31 0 13 0 13

Legislators, Senior Officials and 
Managers

Male 45 0 11 0 11

Professionals Female 58 0 20 3 23

Professionals Male 46 0 19 1 20

Technicians and Associate 
professionals

Female 123 0 48 0 48

Technicians and Associate 
professionals

Male 90 0 43 3 46

Clerks Female 83 38 37 4 79

Clerks Male 35 20 16 3 39

Service and Sales Workers Female 9 0 3 1 4

Service and Sales Workers Male 39 0 15 6 21

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery 
Workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery 
Workers

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and Related Trades Workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and Related Trades Workers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and Machine Operators and 
Assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine Operators and 
assemblers

Male 2 0 0 0 0

Elementary Occupations Female 1 0 0 0 0

Elementary Occupations Male 3 0 0 0 0

Gender Sub-totals Female 305 38 121 8 167

Gender Sub-totals Male 260 20 104 13 137

TOTAL 565 58 225 21 304

4.8.16		I njury on Duty 
Table 95: Injury on Duty

Nature of Injury on Duty Number % of Total

Required basic Medical Attention Only   0.00   0.00

Temporary Total Disablement   0.00   0.00

 Disablement   0.00   0.00

Fatal   0.00   0.00

TOTAL   0.00 -
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4.8.17	  Consultant Appointments 
The following tables relates information on the utilisation of consultants in the department.

In terms of the Public Service Regulations “consultant’ means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who 
or which provides in terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional services 
to a department against remuneration received from any source:

(a)       	 The rendering of expert advice;

(b)       	 The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and

(c)         	The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an  
              employee of a department.

Table 96: Report on Consultant Appointments Using Appropriated Funds

No: Project Title
Total Number Of 
Consultants That 

Worked On The Project

Duration: 
Work days Contract value in Rand

1 Appointment of a service provider for the procurement 
of petroleum products licensing system phase 4 
development, maintenance and support services from 
Magix for a period of three (3) years.

1 12 months R1,698,688.00 (Year 1) 

Appointment of empanelled service providers to conduct 
Technical Feasibility Assessment (TFA) for the Department 
of Energy (DoE) under the National Solar Water Heater 
Programme  for a period of three months under the 
2018/19 financial year.

2

3 months 

R 2 146 076.03 

3 R2,136,189.65

3 R1,868,080.00

2 Appointment of a service provider to review a discussion paper 
on de-commissioning policy, for a period of four (4) weeks. 2 4 weeks R367, 505.50

3 Appointment of a service provider for the production of the 
2018-2019 or the Department of Energy Annual Report. 4 1 month R121, 325.18

4 Appointment of a service provider for Technical Audits 
and Measurement and Verification (M&V) of energy 
savings achieved from the implementation of the 
2019/20 Municipal Energy Efficiency and Demand Side 
Management (EEDSM) projects and selected government 
buildings for a period of twelve (12) months.

3

12 months

R922,200.00

4 R1,680,970.00

3 R1,100,000.00

5 Appointment of a service provider for 2019/20 Internal 
Audit Plan (Co-Sourcing Audits).

2 1 month R355,409.34

6 Appointment of a service provider to facilitate a strategic 
planning session for the Department of Mineral Resources 
and Energy for a period of twenty (20) days.

1 20 days R494 500.00

7 Appointment of a service provider to do verification 
(professional / agency) that will assess the Department 
of Energy and issue a Broad Based Black Economic 
Empowerment (B-BBEE) Compliance Report for the 
Department for a period of four (4) weeks.

1 4 weeks R 86 250,00

8 Renewal of the Microsoft Enterprise software licensing 
agreement by a period of 3 years (2019-2021).

1 1 year R3,575,886.16 (Year 1)

TOTAL NUMBER OF PROJECTS TOTAL INDIVIDUAL 
CONSULTANTS

TOTAL 
DURATION: 

WORK DAYS

TOTAL CONTRACT VALUE 
IN RAND

8 30 44 months R15 041 079.92
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Table 97: Analysis of Consultant Appointments using Appropriated Funds, i.t.o. BBBEEs 

Project Title BBBEE Status
Number of Consultants from 
BBBEE groups that work on 

the Project

1 Appointment of a service provider for the procurement of 
petroleum products licensing system phase 4 development, 
maintenance and support services from Magix for a period of three 
(3) years.

Company 1 = L-0 0

Appointment of empanelled service providers to conduct Technical 
Feasibility Assessment (TFA) for the Department of Energy (DoE) 
under the National Solar Water Heater Programme for a period of 
three months under the 2018/19 financial year.

Company 1 = L-1 8

2 Appointment of a service provider to review a discussion paper on 
de-commissioning policy, for a period of four (4) weeks.

Company 1 = L-1 2

3 Appointment of a service provider for the production of the 2018-
2019 Department of Energy Annual Report.

Company 1 = L-1 4

4 Appointment of a service provider for Technical Audits and 
Measurement and Verification (M&V) of energy savings achieved 
from the implementation of the 2019/20 Municipal Energy 
Efficiency and Demand Side Management (EEDSM) projects and 
selected government buildings for a period of twelve (12) months.

Company 1 = L-1 10

5 Appointment of a service provider for 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan 
(Co-Sourcing Audits).

Company 1 = L-1 2

6 Appointment of a service provider to facilitate a strategic planning 
session for the Department of Mineral Resources and Energy for a 
period of twenty (20) days.

Company 1 = L-1 1

7 Appointment of a service provider to do verification professional/ 
agency that will assess the Department of Energy and issue a Broad 
Based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE) Compliance Report 
for the Department for a period of four (4) weeks.

Company 1 = L-1 1

8 Renewal of the Microsoft Enterprise software licensing agreement 
by a period of 3 years (2019-2021).

Company 1  = L-0 1

Table 98: Report on Consultant Appointments using Donor Funds

Project Title Total Number of Consultants that 
worked on the Project Duration: Work days Donor and Contract 

Value in Rand
None

Table 99: Analysis of Consultant Appointments using Donor funds, i.t.o. HDIs

Project Title Percentage Ownership by HDI groups Percentage Management 
by HDI groups

Number of Consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the Project

None



PART E:   
FIN

AN
CIAL  IN

FO
RM

ATIO
N

94DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020



95 DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

PART E
FINANCIAL 

INFORMATION



PART E:   
FIN

AN
CIAL  IN

FO
RM

ATIO
N

96DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on vote no 26: Department  
of Energy 	

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
1.	 I have audited the financial statements of the Department of Energy set out on pages 101 to 208, which comprise the 

appropriation statement, statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, statement of financial performance, statement 
of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2.	 In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Department 
of Energy as at 31 March 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with Modified Cash Standard (MCS) prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). 

Basis for opinion
3.	 I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this 
auditor’s report. 

4.	 I am independent of the department in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the Code of ethics for professional accountants 
and parts 1 and 3 of the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence 
Standards) of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
IESBA codes.

5.	 I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters
6.	 I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
Restatement of corresponding figures  
7.	 As disclosed in notes 5.8.56.3 and 5.8.63 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2019 were 

restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the department at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2020. 
Irregular expenditure
8.	 As disclosed in note 5.8.56 to the financial statements, the department incurred irregular expenditure of R8 555 000, as it did 

not follow a proper procurement process. 
Significant subsequent events
9.	 I draw attention to note 5.8.60 in the financial statements, which deals with subsequent events and specifically the possible 

effects of future implications of Covid-19 on department’s future prospects, performance and cash flows. Management have 
also described how they plan to deal with these events and circumstances. From 01 April 2020 the Department of Mineral 
Resources merged with Department of Energy and Department of Mineral Resources and Energy was formed. My opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter. 

Independent Power Producers Office
10.	 As disclosed in the related party note 5.8.58 to the financial statements, the department disclosed the Independent 

Power Producer’s (IPP) Office as a related party which is established to facilitate the IPP procurement programmes and 
interventions in accordance with government policy and the Electricity Regulation Act which falls under the mandate and 
scope of the Minister’s portfolio.  The IPP Office is not a legal entity of the department; however, it is included as a related 
party to achieve fair presentation of the financial statements.
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Other matter
11.	 I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Unaudited supplementary schedules 
12.	 The supplementary information set out on pages 209 to 219 does not form part of the financial statements and is presented 

as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion on them.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements
13.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 

MCS and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

14.	 In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the department’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
15.	 My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

16.	 A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s 
report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

Introduction and scope
17.	 In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in 

terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 
against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. I performed 
procedures to identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

18.	 My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information, which must be based on the 
approved performance planning documents of the department. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness 
of the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the actions taken 
by the department enabled service delivery. My procedures also do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to 
planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported 
performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

19.	 I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria developed 
from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected 
programme presented in the annual performance report of the department for the year ended 31 March 2020:

Programmes Pages in the annual performance report

Programme 4– Electrification and Energy Programme  and Project Management 42 - 44

20.	 I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and whether 
performance  was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to 
determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the 
reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete. 

21.	 I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for this 
programme:

Programme 4– Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management 



PART E:   
FIN

AN
CIAL  IN

FO
RM

ATIO
N

98DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

Other matters 

22.	 I draw attention to the matters below. 
Achievement of planned targets
23.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 43 to 44 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year 

and explanations provided for the under/overachievement of a significant number of targets. 
Adjustment of material misstatements
24.	 I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material misstatements 

were on the reported performance information of Programme 4 – Electrification and Energy Programme and Project 
Management. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not raise any material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information.

Report on the audit of the compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope
25.	 In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings 

on the department’s compliance with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance.

26.	 The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
Financial statements, performance reports and annual reports
27.	 The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting 

framework as required by section 40(1)(b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors 
in the submitted financial statements were corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified opinion.

Expenditure management
28.	 Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R90 118 000, as disclosed in note 

5.8.57 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. The 
majority of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused by additional storage cost for solar water heater geysers that 
were manufactured but not installed.

29.	 Payments were made to suppliers before the services were rendered and received, in contravention of treasury regulation 
15.10.1.2(c).

Consequence management 
30.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that disciplinary steps were taken against officials who had 

incurred unauthorised, irregular as well fruitless and wasteful expenditure as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA.
31.	 I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that investigations were conducted into all allegations of financial 

misconduct committed by officials, as required by treasury regulation 4.1.1.

Other Information
 

32.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the annual report. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in the auditor’s report.  

33.	 My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with legislation 
do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

34.	 In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

35.	 If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other information, I am 
required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Internal control deficiencies
 

36.	 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and 
compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters 
reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted findings on compliance with legislation 
included in this report.

37.	 Management did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility regarding compliance and related internal controls as there 
were material findings on expenditure management and consequence management.

38.	 Management did not prepare accurate and complete financial statements that were in accordance with the requirements of 
the financial reporting framework as there were material adjustments to the financial statements. 

Other reports
 

39.	 I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties which had, or could have, an impact on the 
matters reported in the department’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable 
legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings 
on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

40.	 The Public Protector is conducting an investigation into alleged maladministration and improper conduct by the department 
in reneging on the appointment of a service provider as well as an investigation into the procurement of the Integrated 
Information Governance Process Management System.

Pretoria
30 September 2020
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Annexure – auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
 

1.	 As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed on reported performance information for 
selected programmes and on the department’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial Statements 

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also:  
 
	 •	 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error; design  
		  and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to  
		  provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for  
		  one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the  
		  override of internal control. 
	 •  	 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 	
		  in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department’s internal  
		  control
	 •  	 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related  
		  disclosures made by the accounting officer
	 •	 conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the  
		  preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material  
		  uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Department of  
		  Energy to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in  
		  my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such  
		  disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the  
		  information available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a  
		  department to cease operating as a going concern
	 •	 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and  
		  determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves  
		  fair presentation
 
Communication with those charged with governance

3.	 I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 	  
	 significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 
4.	 I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and  
	 communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and,  
	 where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
. 
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5.3		 NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT  
		for   the year ended 31 March 2020

5.3.1			  Detail of Transfers and Subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and 
Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

5.3.2		  Detail of Specifically and Exclusively Appropriated Amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 5.8.31 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial 
Statements.

5.3.3		  Detail on Payments for Financial Assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to 
the Annual Financial Statements.

5.3.4	 	 Explanations of Material Variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

5.3.4.1		  Per programme

Programme 1 Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance  R’000 Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

Administration  293,583  279,383  14,200 4,84%

Explanation of variance: The Programme spent R279.38 million from the projected spending of R293.58 million 
resulting in a net budget underspending of R14.2 million or 4.84% mainly due to the underspending in:

•	 Compensation of Employees:  R3.66 million underspending due to the moratorium on filling vacancies 
pending the merger. 

•	 Operating Leases: R2.63 million budget underspending due to payments for Head Office accommodation 
paid lower than budgeted for, as a result of an agreement reached by the Department and DPW pending 
the finalisation of DPW’s assessment of the Forensic Audit Report presented by the Department.

•	 Households: the underspending of R603 thousand is as a result of outstanding payments in relation to 
early retirement applications and pension liability payments to the GEPF.

•	 Payments for Capital Assets: R2.27 million budget underspending due to requests lower than anticipated 
for office furniture and computer equipment attributable to the merger of DoE and DMR.

Programme 2 Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure

Variance 
R’000

Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

Energy Policy and Planning  47,568  39,945  7,623 16,03%

Explanation of Variance: The Programme spent R39.95 million from the projected spending of R47.57 million, 
resulting in a net budget underspending of R7.62 million or 16.03%. The underspending is mainly due to 
vacant positions which led to a budget underspending of R6.34 million in compensation of employees as well 
as savings achieved in the Travel and Subsistence item due to less official trips undertaken than projected.
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Programme 3 Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure

Variance 
R’000

Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation  88,355  80,710  7,645 8,65%

Explanation of Variance: The Programme spent R80.71 million from the projected spending of R88.36 million, 
resulting in a net underspending of R7.65 million or 8.65%. The contributors to the overall underspending were 
mainly due to underspending in compensation of employees, R3.58 million, as a result of vacant positions, 
Consultants Business and Advisory Services for R2.99 million relating to Fuel Sampling and testing project, 
delayed procurement processes for LPG Audit in the Petroleum and Liquid Fuel Industry project as well as the 
B-BBEE Monitoring Evaluation and Reporting System project. The delayed projects will be carried over to the 
2020/21 financial year.  Budget savings were achieved in other non-critical items such as Venues and facilities 
due to the utilisation of government facilities for hosting events.  

Programme 4 Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure

Variance 
R’000

Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

Electrification and Energy Programme and Project 
Management

 5,274,825  5,064,328  210,497 3,99%

Explanation of Variance: A net budget underspending of R210.5 million or 3.99% due to the following:

•	 Compensation of employees: R2.54 million underspending mainly as a result of vacant positions

•	 Goods and services: R4.62 million underspending mainly due to the underspending in Consultants: 
Business and Advisory Services attributable to the delayed commencement of procurement processes for 
the Non-Grid M&V and the Electrification Master Plan projects.

•	 INEP Non-Grid Households: R199.83 million underspending due to delays in the procurement processes 
for the 2019/20 implementation plan.

•	 	INEP Municipalities: R3.51 million underspending due to the withholding of a payment to JS Moroka 
municipality in the Mpumalanga province.

			 

Programme 5 Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure

Variance 
R’000

Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

Nuclear Energy  1,050,143  1,039,907  10,236 0,97%

Explanation of Variance: The Programme spent R1.04 billion of the projected spending of R1.05 billion, 
resulting in a net budget underspending of R10.24 million or 0.97% mainly due to the following.

•	 Compensation of employees:  R965 thousand as a result of vacant positions.

•	 	Consultants: Business and Advisory Services:  R5.34 million underspending due to the delayed project to 
stress-test the NECSA Turnaround Strategy.

•	 	International Membership fees:  R2.84 million underspending as a result of delayed invoices for subscription 
fees to the IAEA. 

•	 Budget savings were achieved in items such as Travel and Subsistence and Venues and Facilities due to 
cost containment initiatives.

Programme 6 Final  
Appropriation

Actual  
Expenditure

Variance 
R’000

Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

Clean Energy  429,083  422,956  6,127 1,43%

Explanation of Variance: The Programme spent R422.96 million from the projected spending of R429.08 
million resulting in the net budget underspending of R6.13 million or 1.43% mainly due to vacant positions 
and the delayed installation of procured SWH units. 
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5.3.4.2	 	Per economic classification

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current Payments

Compensation of employees  375 454  356 438  19 016 5,06%

Goods and services  284 986  258 770  26 216 9,20%

Interest and rent on land  -    -    -   0,00%

Transfers and Subsidies

Provinces and municipalities  2 090 393  2 086 885  3 508 0,17%

Departmental agencies and accounts  165 916  165 916  - 0,00%

Public corporations and private enterprises  4 227 425  4 027 599  199 826 4,73%

Foreign governments and international organisations  29 478  24 588  4 890 16,59%

Households  5 390  4 787  603 11,19%

Payments for Capital Assets

Machinery and equipment  4 504  2 237  2 267 50,34%

Payments for Financial Assets  11  11  0 1,64%

Explanation of Variance: 

The Department’s adjusted budget for the 2019/20 financial year was R7.18 billion. Expenditure at year-end 
amounted to R6.93 billion or 96.43% of the total 2019/20 budget leading to a budget balance of R256.33 million. 
The reasons for this balance are as follows:  Compensation of employees – R19.02 million or 5.06% budget 
underspending attributable to vacant priority positions which were put on hold pending the finalisation of the 
merger with the DMR.

Goods and services 

Actual spent was R258.77 million against projected spending of R284.99 million resulting in a net budget 
underspending of R26.22 million or 9.2% due to:

Delayed commencement and finalisation of planned projects which included the following:

•	 	LPG Audit in the Petroleum and Liquid Fuel Industry project.

•	 	B-BBEE Monitoring project.

•	 	Non-grid Monitoring and Evaluation (M&V).

•	 	The Electrification Master Plan Development project.

•	 	Stress-testing the NECSA Turnaround Strategy.

•	 	SWHP’s installation of procured units.

There was also underspending in the Operating Leases item for Office Accommodation at Head Office, as 
payments to DPW were lower than budgeted for pending the resolution of a dispute with DPW.
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Transfer Payments 

Net budget underspending of R208.83 million or 3.2% due to:

•	 	INEP Non-Grid Households: R199.83 million underspending due to procurement process which could not 
be finalised by year-end. 

•	 	International Membership fees: R4.89 million underspending mainly as a result of delayed invoices for 
subscription fees to multilateral international organisations. 

•	 	Households: R603 thousand underspending as a result of outstanding payments relating to early 
retirement applications and pension liability payable to the GEPF

•	 	INEP Municipal Grant: R3.51 million underspending due to the withholding of a payment to JS Moroka in 
Mpumalanga due to underspending by the municipality.

Payments for Capital Assets

The net budget underspending of R2.27 million is due to fewer requests than anticipated for office furniture 
and computer equipment attributable to the merger of DoE and DMR.
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5.4		  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  
			   FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 5.8.31 7,183,557  7,163,532 

Departmental revenue 5.8.32 5,030  54,680 

Aid assistance 5.8.33 -  12,034 

TOTAL REVENUE 7,188,587 7,230,246

EXPENDITURE

Current Expenditure

Compensation of employees 5.8.34  356,438  346,731 

Goods and services 5.8.35  258,770  331,433 

Interest and rent on land 5.8.36 -  1 

Total current expenditure - 615,208 678,165

Transfers and Subsidies

Transfers and subsidies 5.8.38 6,309,774  6,359,491 

Aid assistance 5.8.33 - 2,684 

Total Transfers and Subsidies 6,309,774 6,362,175

Expenditure for Capital Assets

Tangible assets 5.8.39 2,237 6,141 

Intangible assets 5.8.39 - 46,439  

Total Expenditure for Capital Assets 2,237 52 580

Payments for Financial Assets 5.8.37 11 3

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 6,927,230 7,092,923

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  FOR THE YEAR 261,357 137,323

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

Voted funds --- 256,327 73,293

Annual appropriation --- 256,327 73,293

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 5.8.46 5,030 54,680 

Aid assistance 5.8.33 -  9,350 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 261,357 137,323 
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5.5		  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
			   AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

ASSETS 

Current Assets 256,611  122,200 

Unauthorised expenditure 5.8.40 50,604  50,604 

Cash and cash equivalents 5.8.41 139,327  3,472 

Prepayments and advances 5.8.42 66,475  66,654 

Receivables 5.8.43 205  1,470 

Non-current Assets 2236 2235

Investments 5.8.44 2,205  2,205 

Receivables 5.8.43 31  30 

TOTAL ASSETS 258,847 124,435

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 256,582 122,172

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 5.8.45 256,327  73,293 

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue 
Fund

5.8.46 207  48,770 

Payables 5.8.47 48  109 

Non-current Liabilities

Payables - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 256,582 122,172

NET ASSETS 2,265 2,263

Represented by:

Capitalisation reserve - 2,205  2,205 

Recoverable revenue - 60 58 

TOTAL 2,265 2,263
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5.6		  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
			   FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

ASSETS 

Capitalisation Reserves

Opening balance - 2 205 2 205

Closing balance - 2,205 2,205

Recoverable Revenue

Opening balance - 58 85

Transfers: - 2 (27)

Debts revised - (1)  3 

Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) - (37)  (96)

Debts raised - 40  66 

Closing balance - 60 58

TOTAL 2,265 2,263
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5.7		  CASH FLOW STATEMENT  
			   FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts   7,188,587 7,230,246

Annual appropriated funds received 5.8.31  7,183,557 7,163,532  

Departmental revenue received 5.8.32 5,027 54,668

Interest received 5.8.32.2 3 12 

Aid assistance received 5.8.33 - 12,034            

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital - 1,383   (67,348)

Surrendered to Revenue Fund - (126,886)  (208,037)

Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor - -  (9,350)

Current payments - (615,208)   (678,164)

Interest paid - -  (1)

Payments for financial assets - (11)  (3)

Transfers and subsidies paid (6,309,774) (6,362,175)

Net Cash Flow available from Operating Activities 5.8.48 138,091 (94 832)  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 5.8.39 (2,237) (52,580)

(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables - (1)

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (2,238) (52,580)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(decrease) in net assets - 2 (27)

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 2 (27)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 135,855 (147,439)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period - 3,472 150,911

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 5.8.41 139,327 3,472
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5.8		  NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
			   FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been 
applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the 
financial statements present fairly the Department’s primary and secondary information.  

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has used 
assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on the best 
information available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of 
the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management 
Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the 
PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act. 

5.8.1		  Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.   

5.8.2		  Going Concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

5.8.3		  Representation Currency
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional 
currency of the Department. 

5.8.4		  Rounding 
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5.8.5		  Foreign Currency Translation
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the spot 
exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

5.8.6		  Comparative Information  
5.8.6.1	 Prior Period Comparative Information 

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.  Where 
necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the 
format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial 
statements.

5.8.6.2	 Current Year Comparison with Budget
A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic 
classification is included in the appropriation statement.  
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5.8.7		  Revenue
5.8.7.1	 Appropriated Funds 

Appropriated funds comprises of Departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund 
(i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date the appropriation 
becomes effective.  Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the 
statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is 
recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.   

5.8.7.2	 Departmental Revenue 
Departmental revenue is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when received and is 
subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the 
statement of financial position. 

5.8.7.3	 Accrued Departmental Revenue 

Accruals in respect of Departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the Financial 
Statements when:

•	 	it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
the Department; and

•	 	the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting 
agents.

Write-offs are made according to the Department’s debt write-off policy.

5.8.8		  Expenditure
5.8.8.1	 Compensation of Employees
5.8.8.1.1Salaries and Wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.    
5.8.8.1.2Social Contributions

Social contributions made by the Department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement 
of financial performance on the date of payment.  

Social contributions made by the Department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to 
households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

5.8.8.2 	 Other Expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.  The expense is classified as a 
capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.    

5.8.8.3	 Accruals and Payables not Recognised 

Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost at the 
reporting date.
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5.8.8.4	 Leases
5.8.8.4.1 Operating Leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the 
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

5.8.8.4.2 Finance Leases 
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the 
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements and are not apportioned 
between the capital and interest portions.  

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of: 

•	 	cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

•	 	the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership at 
the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

5.8.9		  Aid Assistance
5.8.9.1	  Aid Assistance Received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when received.   
In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements on the date of receipt and is 
measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are 
required to be refunded to the donor  are recognised as a payable in the Statement of Financial Position.

5.8.9.2	  Aid Assistance Paid
Aid assistance paid is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment. Aid 
assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the statement of 
Financial Position.

5.8.10	 Cash and Cash Equivalent  

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the Statement of Financial Position.  

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the Statement of Financial Position as a current liability.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits 
held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

5.8.11	 Prepayments and Advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Department 
receives or disburses the cash.  

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.
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5.8.12	 Loans and  Receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus accrued interest, 
where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-offs are made according to the 
Department’s write-off policy.

5.8.13	 Investments
Investments are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

5.8.14	 Financial Assets
5.8.14.1		 Financial Assets (Not Covered Elsewhere)

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already settled or 
written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued interest, 
where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

5.8.14.2		 Impairment of Financial Assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the recorded 
carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be 
received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements.

5.8.15	 Payables
Payables recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are recognised at cost.

5.8.16	 Capital Assets
5.8.16.1	 Immovable Capital Assets

Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the Department are recorded in the notes to the Financial 
Statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable assets acquired 
in a non-exchange transaction are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition.  Immovable assets are 
subsequently carried in the asset register at cost and are not currently subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the notes to 
financial statements.

5.8.16.2	 Movable Capital Assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost.  Movable capital 
assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are 
measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready  
for use.
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5.8.16.3	 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements at cost.  Intangible assets 
acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements when the 
Department commences the development phase of the project.  

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are measured 
at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use. 

5.8.16.4	 Project Costs: Work-in-Progress

Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance at cost when 
paid. 

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and accumulated in work-
in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use.  Once ready for use, the total accumulated payments are 
recorded in an asset register.  Subsequent payments to complete the project are added to the capital asset in 
the asset register. 

Where the Department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred to the 
custodian subsequent to completion.

5.8.17	 Provisions and Contingents
5.8.17.1	 Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements when there is a present legal or constructive 
obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds 
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

5.8.17.2	 Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation 
that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Department or when there is a present 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

5.8.17.3	 Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements when a possible asset arises from past 
events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not within the control of the Department.

5.8.17.4	 Commitments 
Commitments (other than for transfers and subsidies) are recorded at cost in the notes to the Financial 
Statements when there is a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a 
valid expectation that the Department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future expenditure 
that will result in the outflow of cash.   



PART E:   
FIN

AN
CIAL  IN

FO
RM

ATIO
N

172DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Annual Report 2019|2020

5.8.18	 Unauthorised Expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position until such time as the 
expenditure is either:

•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or

•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the 
appropriation in the Statement of Financial Performance; or

•	 	transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure..

5.8.19	 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements when confirmed.  The 
amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the Financial Statements when it is resolved 
or transferred to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable 
and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

5.8.20	 Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements when confirmed.  The amount 
recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in 
which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.  

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority, transferred 
to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.   

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-
recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

5.8.21	 Changes in Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors
Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in 
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-
specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy. In such instances the Department shall 
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective 
restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with 
MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or 
the cumulative effect of the error.  In such cases the Department shall restate the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

5.8.22	 Events after the Reporting Date
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the Financial 
Statements.  The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting 
date have been disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements.    
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5.8.23	 Principal-Agent Arrangements
The Department is party to a principal-agent arrangement. In terms of the arrangement the Department is 
the [principal / agent] and is responsible for [include details here].  All related revenues, expenditures, assets 
and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the relevant policies listed herein.  Additional 
disclosures have been provided in the notes to the Financial Statements where appropriate.  

5.8.24	 Departures from the MCS Requirements
	That management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the Department’s primary and 
secondary information; that the Department complied with the Standard except that it has departed from 
a particular requirement to achieve fair presentation; and the requirement from which the Department has 
departed, the nature of the departure and the reason for departure

5.8.25	 Capitalisation Reserve
The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period 
but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting 
period.  Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are 
transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related 
funds are received.

5.8.26	 Recoverable Revenue
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes 
recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts are either transferred to the National/
Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the Statement of Financial Performance when 
written-off.

5.8.27	 Related Party Transactions
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and 
a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the 
Financial Statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length.

Included in Related Party is the IPP Office (IPPO) which is established to facilitate the IPP Procurement 
Programmes and Interventions in accordance with government policy and the Electricity Regulation Act 
which falls under the mandate of the Minister’s portfolio. The IPP Office is not an entity of the Department and 
is also not a listed entity in terms of the PFMA; however, the Department has influence over the work of the 
IPPO due to the nature of services of the IPPO which are derived from the mandate of the Department. 

The operations of IPPO have a significant impact on the mandate of the Department and as such, it is included 
in the Annual Financial Statements of the Department as a related party to achieve fair presentation of the 
Financial Statements.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the Department. The number of individuals and their full compensation is 
recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements.
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5.8.28	 Inventories
At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are measured at fair 
value as at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where intended for 
distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a nominal charge, the lower of 
cost and current replacement value.

The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.

5.8.29	 Public-Private Partnerships
Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and / or the substance of the partnership. 
The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and the date of 
commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees received, the unitary 
fees paid, rights and obligations of the Department are recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements.

5.8.30	 Employee Benefits
The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised and provisions) 
is disclosed in the Employee Benefits Note.
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PART B:  EXPLANATORY NOTES

5.8.31	 Annual Appropriation 
5.8.31.1	 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) 
for National Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments:

2019/20 2018/19

Final 
Appropriation

Actual Funds 
Received

Funds not 
requested/not 

received

Final 
Appropriation

Appropriation 
received

Funds not 
requested/not 

received

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration  293,583  306,483  (12,900 )  305,329  288,888  16 441 

Energy Policy and 
Planning

 47,568  51,668  (4,100)  46,073  47,178  (1 105)

Petroleum and Petroleum Products 
Regulation 

 88,355  90,355  (2,000)  79,242  83,532  (4 290) 

Electrification and Energy 
Programme and Project

 5,274,825  5,281,825  (7,000)  5,380,591  5,383,641  (3 050 )

Nuclear Energy  1,050,143  1,045,143  5,000  875,486  875,586  (100) 

Clean Energy  429,083  408,083  21,000  476,811  484,707  (7 896)

Total  7,183,557  7,183,557  -  7,163,532  7,163,532 -

*All the requested funds for 2019/20 were received in full.

5.8.32	 Departmental Revenue

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 5.8.32.1 4,121 4,409

Interest, dividends and rent on land 5.8.32.2 3  12 

*Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 5.8.32.3 142 48,642

Transfer received 5.8.32.4 764 1,617

Total revenue collected - 5,030 54,680

Departmental revenue collected - 5,030 54,680

*The significant decrease in revenue is as a result of R48,5 million refund to the Department by Eskom in 
2018/19 representing  unspent funds from its tenure as the implementing agent of the National Solar Water 
Heater Programme (NSWHP).
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5.8.32.1	 Sales of Goods and Services other than Capital Assets

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Sales of goods and services produced by the Department - 4,116   4,407  

Sales by market establishment -  135  138 

Administrative fees  -  3,835  4,134 

Other sales -  146  135 

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods - 5 2 

TOTAL - 4,121  4,409 

5.8.32.2	 Interest, Dividends and Rent on Land 

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Interest - 3  12 

TOTAL - 3 12

5.8.32.3	 Transactions in Financial Assets and Liabilities

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Receivables - 31 87 

*Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue - 111 * 48,555 

TOTAL - 142 48,642

* Included in the 2018/19 amount for Other Receipts was  a once off receipt from Eskom representing unspent 
funds from its tenure as the implementing agent of the national Solar Water Heater Programme (NSWHP).

5.8.32.4	  Transfers Received

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Other governmental units - 764 1,617 

TOTAL - 764 1,617
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5.8.33	 Aid Assistance
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Opening balance - - -

Revenue - - 12,034

Expenditure - - (2,684)

Transferred from statement of financial performance - - 9350

Paid during the year - - (9,350)

Closing Balance - - -

5.8.33.1	 Aid Assistance Expenditure per Economic Classification 

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Transfer and subsidies - 2.684

Total Aid Assistance Expenditure - 2.684

5.8.34	 Compensation of Employees

5.8.34.1	 Salaries and Wages
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Basic salary -  242,494  235,104 

Performance award -  5,535  5,583 

Service based -  264  536 

Compensative/circumstantial -  5,740  6,584 

Other non-pensionable allowances - 58,463    57,121 

TOTAL - 312,496 304,928

5.8.34.2	 Social Contributions

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Employer contributions -  -  - 

Pension -  31,194  30,228 

Medical -  12,696  11,527 

Bargaining council - 52 48

TOTAL 43,942 41,803

TOTAL Compensation of Employees 356,438 346,731

Average number of employees - 534 565
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5.8.35	 Goods and Services 
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Administrative fees -  2,676  2,270 

Advertising -  3,164  3,067 

Minor assets 5.8.35.1  395  354 

Bursaries (employees) -  881  870 

Catering -  1,804  1,539 

Communication -  6,975 9,373

Computer services 5.8.35.2  13,531  11,401 

Consultants: Business and advisory services -  22,188 51,150

Legal services -  4,658  10,345 

Contractors -  2,348  4,051 

Agency and support / outsourced services -  23  882 

Entertainment - -  - 

Audit cost – external 5.8.35.3  5,301  5,016 

Fleet services -  1,380  2,091 

Consumables 5.8.35.4 2,537  3,801

Operating leases -  36,479  47,916 

Property payments 5.8.35.5  8,143  7,609 

Rental and hiring -  243  31 

Transport provided as part of the Departmental activities -  92  41 

Travel and subsistence 5.8.35.6  44,495  46,035

Venues and facilities -  5,833   6,150

Training and development -  2,729 4,250  

Other operating expenditure 5.8.35.7 92,895 113,191 

TOTAL - 258,770 331,433

5.8.35.1	 Minor Assets
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Tangible assets - 395 354

Machinery and equipment - 395 354

Intangible Assets - - -

TOTAL - 395 354
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5.8.35.2	 Computer Services
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

SITA computer services - 6,089  6,108 

External computer service providers - 7,442  5,293 

TOTAL - 13,531 11,401

5.8.35.3	 Audit Cost – External 

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Regularity audits - 4,912 4,846

*Investigations - - 170

Computer audits - 389 273 

TOTAL - 5,301 5,016

5.8.35.4	  Consumables

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Consumable supplies - 644   916 

Uniform and clothing -  43  9 

Household supplies -  467  523 

Building material and supplies -  26  173 

Communication accessories -  3  1 

IT consumables -  26  151 

*Other consumables -  79  59 

Stationery, printing and office supplies - 1,893 2,885

TOTAL -  2,537 3,801 

5.8.35.5	  Property Payments

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Municipal services -  3,154  3,742 

Property management fees -  7 2

Property maintenance and repairs -  11  - 

*Other -  4,971 3,865

TOTAL - 8,143 7,609 

*Other property payments includes safeguard, security and cleaning Services.
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5.8.35.6	  Travel and Subsistence

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Local -  37,723  33,594 

Foreign -  6,772  12,441 

TOTAL -  44,495 46,035

5.8.35.7	 Other Operating Expenditure

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees -  645  664 

Resettlement costs -  133  16 

*Other -  92,117 112,511

TOTAL -  92,895 113,191 

* Other operating expenditure includes storage services, printing and publication services etc.

5.8.36	 Interest and Rent on Land 
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Interest paid -  - 1 

Rent on land -  - -

TOTAL - - 1

5.8.37	  Payments for Financial Assets
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Debts written off 5.8.37.1  11  3 

TOTAL - 11 3

5.8.37.1	 Debts Written Off

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Nature of Debts Written off -  -  - 

Staff debt -  11  3 

TOTAL - 11 3
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5.8.38	 Transfers and Subsidies
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Provinces and municipalities* 5.8.64  2,086,885 2,119,501

Departmental agencies and accounts** Annex 1B  165,916 133,391

Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1D  24,587 26,412

Public corporations and private enterprises** Annex 1C  4,027,599 4,079,300

Households Annex 1E 4,787 887

TOTAL - 6,309,774  6,359,491

**The Department exercised its oversight role of confirming that funds transferred to municipalities and 
Eskom are utilised for the intended purposes, except for the funds transferred in March 2020 that exercise is 
in progress. Department ensured that there is compliance with DORA requirements before and after funds 
are transferred.  

5.8.39    Expenditure for Capital Assets 
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Tangible Assets - 2,237 6,141

Buildings and other fixed structures - - -

Heritage assets - - -

Machinery and equipment 5.8.39.1 2,237 6,141

Biological assets - - -

Intangible Assets - - 46,439

*Software 5.8.39.2 - 46,439

TOTAL - 2,237 52 580

5.8.39.1	 Analysis of Funds utilised to acquire Capital Assets – 2019/20

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R'000 R'000 R'000

Tangible Assets 2,237 - 2,237

Buildings and other fixed structures - - -

Machinery and equipment 2,237 - 2,237

Intangible Assets - -

*Software - - -

TOTAL 2,237 - 2,237
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5.8.39.2	 Analysis of Funds utilised to acquire Capital Assets – 2018/19

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R'000 R'000 R'000

Tangible Assets 6,141 - 6,141

Buildings and other fixed structures - - -

Heritage assets - - -

Machinery and equipment 6,141 - 6,141

Biological assets - -

Intangible assets 46,439 - 46,439

*Software 46,439 - 46,439

TOTAL 52 580 - 52 580

5.8.40	 Unauthorised Expenditure

5.8.40.1    Reconciliation of Unauthorised Expenditure

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Opening balance - 50,604 50,604

Prior period error - - -

As restated - 50,604 50,604

Unauthorised expenditure – discovered in current year - - -

Closing Balance - 50,604 50,604

Analysis of Closing Balance -

Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation 50,604 50,604

TOTAL - 50,604 50,604

5.8.40.2	 Analysis of Unauthorised Expenditure awaiting Authorisation per Economic Classification

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Current - 34,740 34,740

Capital - (461) (461)

Transfers and subsidies - 16,325 16,325

TOTAL - 50,604 50,604
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5.8.40.3	  Analysis of Unauthorised Expenditure awaiting Authorisation per Type

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Unauthorised expenditure relating to overspending of the a main division –
Programme 1- Administration within a vote in the 2016/17 financial year

- 35,744 35,744

**Unauthorised expenditure incurred not in accordance with the purpose of the 
vote or main division in the 2010/11 financial year

- 14,860 14,860

TOTAL - 50,604 50,604

*The unauthorised expenditure incurred in 2016/17 for R35, 744 million relates to overspending in the main 
division of the vote in Programme 1 – Administration.

The Department is currently putting the necessary mechanisms in place for the commencement of the 
required investigation/s, following which, an application for condonation will be submitted to Treasury.

**Unauthorised expenditure incurred in 2010/11 for R14, 860 million relates to overspending of the vote or 
main division of the vote.

Although the matter was presented to SCOPA during the 2014/15 financial year, an outcome is still pending.  

5.8.41 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account - 139,274  3,380 

Cash on hand - 46  46 

Investments (Domestic) - 7  46 

Total - 139,327  3,472 

5.8.42   Prepayments and Advances

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

Travel and subsistence -  82  65 

Prepayments (Not expensed) 5.8.42.2  65,789  65 204 

Advances paid (Not expensed) 5.8.42.1  604  1 385 

Total - 66,475  66 654 
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5.8.42.1   Advances Paid (Not Expensed)

Note Balance as at  
1 April 2019

Less: Amount 
Expensed in 
Current Year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year Advances

Balance as at 
31 March 2020

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments - 1,385  (2,484) -  1,703 604

Total - 1,385  (2,484) -  1,703 604

Note Balance as at  
1 April 2018

Less: Amount 
Expensed in 
Current Year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year Advances

Balance as at 
31 March 2019

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National departments    528   (5,134)  -  5,991 1,385

Total 528  (5,134)  -  5,991 1,385

5.8.42.2   Prepayments (Not Expensed)

Note Balance as at  
1 April 2018

Less: Amount 
Expensed in 
Current Year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year Advances

Balance as at 
31 March 2019

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services - 7 (379) - 372 -

Transfers and  subsidies - 65,197 - - 592 65,789

Total - 65,204 (379) - 964 65,789

*Included in prepayments is R 65,789 million for Solar Water Heaters, the 9% payments was based on invoking 
clause 4.2.1.3.2 of the supply agreement and the 1% payment was as per negotiation with suppliers to address 
the litigation matters.

Note Balance as at  
1 April 2018

Less: Amount 
Expensed in 
Current Year

Add or Less: 
Other

Add: Current 
Year Advances

Balance as at 
31 March 2019

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services - - - - 7 7

Transfers and subsidies - - - - 65,197 65,197

Capital Assets - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -

Total - - - - 65,204 65,204
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5.8.43   Receivables

2019/20 2018/19

Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims recoverable 5.8.43.1 59 - 59  1,297 - 1,297

Recoverable expenditure - - -  -  - - -

Staff debt 5.8.43.2 146  31 177 173 30 203

Total - 205 31 236 1,470 30 1,500

5.8.43.1   Claims Recoverable

  Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

National departments - - 1,238

Private enterprises - 59 59

Total - 59 1,297

5.8.43.2   Staff Debt

  Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Sal. Pension - 177 203

Total - 177 203

5.8.43.3   	Impairment of Receivables

  Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Estimate of impairment of receivables - 121 -

Total - 121 -

The impairment includes receivables which might not be recoverable. The amounts will be considered for 
write off once all due processes are complete.
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5.8.44   Investments

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Non-Current - - -

Shares and other equity - - -

Nuclear Energy Corporation of South Africa Annex 2A 2,205 2,205

Total 2,205 2,205

Securities other than Shares - - -

(List investments at cost) - - -

Total - - -

Total Non-Current - 2,205 2,205

2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Analysis of Non-Current Investments -

Opening balance - 2,205 2,205

Additions in cash - - -

Disposals for cash - - -

Closing Balance - 2,205 2,205

The Department holds 2 205 000 shares in its entity, the South African Nuclear Corporation Limited (NECSA). 
Investments are recorded at cost in terms of the accounting policy. Refer to Annexure 2A for the net assets value 
as at 31 March 2020.

5.8.44.1   	Impairment of Investments

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Estimate of impairment of impairment - - -

Closing Balance - - -

NECSA investment has remained unchanged over the reporting period.

5.8.45   Voted Funds to be Surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Opening balance - 73,293  200,775 

As restated - 73,293  200,775 

Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated) - 256,327  73,293 

Paid during the year - (73,293)  (200,775)

Closing Balance - 256,327  73,293 
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5.8.46        Departmental Revenue and NRF Receipts to be Surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Opening balance - 48 770 1,352

Prior period error - - -

As restated - 48 770 1,352

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) - 5 030  54,680 

Paid during the year - (53 593)  (7,262)

Closing Balance - 207 48,770

5.8.47   Payables – Current

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Clearing accounts 5.8.47.1  4 68 

Other payables 5.8.47.2  44  41 

TOTAL - 48 109

5.8.47.1   Clearing Accounts

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Sal: Pension Fund -  - 3

Sal: Income tax -  3 43

Sal: Reversal			   -  1 22

Total - 4 68

**Clearing accounts include, salary reversal related transactions reversed from officials for clearing in the 
subsequent month. Salary Income tax is deductions payable to SARS and were not paid over in March due to 
system interface and cut-off date. The amounts were paid over in the subsequent month.

5.8.47.2   Other Payables

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Licence fee received - 44 41

Total - 44 41
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5.8.48     Net Cash Flow Available from Operating Activities

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance -  261,357  137,323 

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities -  (123,266)  (232,155)

(Increase)/decrease in receivables -  1,265  (1,256)

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances -  179  (66,111)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets - -  - 

Increase/(decrease) in payables – current - (61)  19 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - -

Proceeds from sale of investments - - -

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets -  -  - 

Expenditure on capital assets -  2 237  52,580 

Surrenders to Revenue Fund -  (126,886)  (208,037)

Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor - -  (9,350)

Voted funds not requested/not received - - -

Own revenue included in appropriation -  - -

Other non-cash items - - -

Net Cash Flow Generated by Operating Activities - 138,091  (94,832)

5.8.49     Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents for Cash Flow Purposes

2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account 139,274 3,380

Cash on hand 46  46 

Cash with commercial banks (Local) 7  46 

Total 139,327 3,472

5.8.50     Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
5.8.50.1     Contingent Liabilities

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Liable to Nature

Other guarantees Annex 3A  20,000   20,000 

Claims against the Department* Annex 3B  130,510 124,717

Total - 150,510 144,717

*The amount is an aggregation of several separate claims against the Department, wherein legal proceedings 
have been initiated and instituted against the Department, the Department has disputed liability.
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5.8.50.2    Contingent Assets

2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Nature of Contingent Asset - -

*Possible rental overpayments for Matimba Building 12,662 12,372

**SWH units - missing components 36,499 - 

Total 49,161 12,372 

*The possible overpayments for Matimba building was revealed in a forensic investigation report which was 
concluded during the year 2019 and subsequently, the report was submitted to Department of Public Works 
and Infrastructure (DPWI) for confirmation of the findings. The Department is disputing the current square 
meters of Matimba building. During the engagements, DPWI advised that The Department should not pay 
the full lease amount but only pay square meters indicated in the forensic report which is in line with the “trite 
law”, pay for services utilised. The Department implemented the recommendations as outlined in the forensic 
report. Subsequent payments were made in line with the square meters deemed to be correct as reported in 
the Forensic Report. Engagements with DPWI are continuing to establish an amicable solution in this regard.

**This matter is currently under investigation and the Department is litigating for the replacement of the 
missing components, to make up the complete units ready for installation.

5.8.51.2    Capital Commitments

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Current Expenditure - - -

Approved and contracted - 87 46

Total Commitments - **87 *46

*Prior year balances were restated as per the new reporting requirement.

** Capital commitments for 2019/20 comprises of computer laptops.

5.8.52      Accruals and Payables not Recognised
5.8.52.1   Accruals

2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Listed by Economic Classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 13,301 13,583 26,884 *15,726

Transfers and subsidies - - - 3,202

Total 13,301 13,583 26,884 18,928
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2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Programme 1:  Administration  4,038  4,445 

Programme 2:  Energy Policy and Planning  - 436

Programme 3:  Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation 144 495

Programme 4:  Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management  643  3,928 

Programme 5:  Nuclear Energy  4 8,683

Programme 6:  Clean Energy 22,055 941

TOTAL 26,884 18,928

*2018/19 figures were restated with an amount of R 8 550 000

5.8.52.2     Payables Not Recognised

2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Listed by Economic Classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services - 7,743 7,743 86

Transfers and subsidies -          - -          9,432

TOTAL -         7,743 7,743 9,519

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level - 7,743 29

Programme 1:  Administration - - 39

Programme 2:  Energy Policy and Planning	 - - -

Programme 3:  Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation - - -

Programme 4:  Electrification and Energy Programme and Project Management - - 9,451

Programme 5:  Nuclear Energy                                                                                   - - -

Programme 6:  Clean Energy - - -

Total -         7,743 9,519

Included in the above totals are the following:

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 5 339 963

Confirmed balances with other government entities Annex 5 - 1

Total - 339 964
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5.8.53     Employee Benefits

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

*Leave entitlement -  15,663  14,737 

Service bonus -  8,845  8,482 

**Performance awards -  2,816  5,401 

Capped leave commitments -  2,694  2,823 

Other -  124  51 

Total -  30,142  31,495 

The leave entitlement does not include the leaves with credit balances. The leave with credit balances 
amounts to R 289 332,16

**The performance awards amount is based on the allowed percentage of 0.75% of the total * Compensation 
of employees’’ budget. 

5.8.54     Lease  Commitments
5.8.54.1     Operating Leases 

2019/20 Specialised 
military 

equipment
R’000

Land
R’000

Buildings and 
other fixed 
structures

R’000

Machinery and 
equipment

R’000

Total
R’000

Not later than 1 year - -  42,854 3,367  46 221 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -  59,622 1,512  61 134 

Later than 5 years - -  - -  - 

Total Lease Commitments - - 102,476 4,880 107,355

2018/19 Specialised 
military 

equipment
R’000

Land
R’000

Buildings and 
other fixed 
structures

R’000

Machinery and 
equipment

R’000

Total
R’000

Not later than 1 year - - 39,442 3,222 42,664

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 97,720 2,173 99,893

Later than 5 years - - 950 - 950

Total Lease Commitments - - 138,112 5,395 143,507

The Lease Commitment for Building and Other Fixed Structures include a lease contract for Head Office 
building that the Department is disputing the square meterage. The varying meterage could result in a 
recovery of overpayments. The forensic report was sent to Department of Public Works for confirmation of 
the findings. 

*Commitments for building and other fixed structures will be adjusted accordingly once the over payment 
is agreed to. Pending the confirmation by DPW the amount has been recorded in the secondary information 
as Contingent Assets under note 20.
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5.8.55      Accrued Departmental Revenue

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets - 5,903 4,580

Total - 5,903 4,580

5.8.55.1  Analysis of Accrued Departmental Revenue

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Opening balance -  4,580 3,750

Less:  amounts received -  2,892 3,052

Add:  amounts recorded - 4,215 3,882

Closing Balance - 5,903 4,580

5.8.56     	 Irregular Expenditure
5.8.56.1  	 Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Opening balance - 264,044 89,170

Prior period error 5.8.56.3 - 98,380

As restated - 264,044 187,550

Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 5.8.56.2 8,555 76,494

Closing Balance - 272,599 264,044

Analysis of Closing Balance -

Current year 5.8.56.2 8,555 76,494

Prior years - 264,044 187,550

Total - 272,599 264,044

*The irregular expenditure relating to prior year on NNBP was accepted and is subject to investigation.

5.8.56.2   Details of Current and Prior Year Irregular Expenditure – Added Current Year (Under Determination  
                 and Investigation)

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 2019/20

R’000

Procurement processes not followed The transactions will be referred for investigation disciplinary 
action will follow pending investigation outcome. 

5

Procurement processes not followed The transactions will be referred for investigation. 8,550

Total - 8,555
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5.8.56.3    Prior Period Error

2018/19

R’000

Nature of Prior Period Error

Relating to 2017/18 (Affecting the Opening Balance) 98,380

Prior period error was due to the dispute between AG and the Department regarding non adherence to provisions of 
TR 16A6.6 in the procurement of the NNBP’s integrated information governance process management. The Department 
accepted the Irregular Expenditure in 2019/20 financial year

98,380

Relating to 2018/19 64,070

Prior period error was due to the dispute between AG and the Department regarding non adherence to provisions of 
TR 16A6.6 in the procurement of the NNBP’s integrated information governance process management. The Department 
accepted the Irregular Expenditure in 2019/20 financial year

64,070

Total 162,450

5.8.57     Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
5.8.57.1   Reconciliation of Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 

Note 2019/20 2018/19

R’000 R’000

Opening balance - 199,290 89,143

As restated - 199,290 89,143

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year 5.8.57.2 90 118 110,151

Less: Amounts recoverable - - (4)

Closing Balance - 289,408 199,290

5.8.57.2   Details of Current and Prior Year Irregular Expenditure – Added Current Year 	(Under Determination  
                 and Investigation)

2019/20

R’000

Other -  **Storage Services for SWH units National Treasury has been mandated to investigate 
the storage costs incurred for Solar Water Heater 
(SWH) program.

 90,116 

No Shows -  2 

Total - 90,118

** Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure is as a result of storage fees for SWH geysers stored at manufacturers 
premises pending installation. As at 31 March 2020 there were 55 059 geyser units still in the custody of 
the manufacturers. (Refer Annexure 6) Delivery of the geyser units to storage premises identified by the 
Department is in progress. Thus, storage costs will continue to be incurred in the Financial year 2020/21 as 
storage fees will still be paid for SWH geysers in the custody of manufacturers. Investigations are underway to 
determine liability and implement consequence management where applicable.
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5.8.58 	 Related Party Transactions

Note 2019/20

R’000

2018/19

R’000

Guarantees issued/received - - -

Guarantees issued – NECSA - 20,000 20,000

Total - 20,000 20,000

Entity/Departments Relationship

CEF-State Owned Entity of Depart of Energy State Owned Entity (SOE) of  Department

Necsa-State Owned Entity of Depart of Energy SOE of Department

NERSA-State Owned Entity of Depart of Energy SOE of Department

NNR-State Owned Entity of Depart of Energy SOE of Department

NRWDI-State Owned Entity of Depart of Energy SOE of Department

SANEDI-State Owned Entity of Depart of Energy SOE of Department

Independent Power Producers Office (IPPO) Joint Affiliation

Council for Geoscience An entity under control of Minister

Mintek An entity under control of Minister

South African Diamond and Metals Regulator An entity under control of Minister

Mine Health and Safety Council An entity under control of Minister

State Diamond Trader An entity under control of Minister

SFF, NECSA and PetroSA offered services to the Department for storage of solar water geyser units. At year-end 
and at the time of reporting there were no payments to the entities for the services.

There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) between Department of Energy, the National Treasury and the 
Development of Southern Africa Limited (DBSA) for co-ordinated support, management and facilitation of the 
implementation of the Independent Power Programmes (IPP) Procurement Programmes and interventions 
through the IPP office, within the context of their respective statutory mandates, policy objectives, powers, 
functions, duties and accountability.

The Department influences the operations of the IPP Office due to the nature of service of the IPP Office 
which is derived from the mandate of the Department and its operations have a significant impact on the 
said mandate. However, there are no financial transactions between the Department and the IPP Office. The 
IPP Office financial statements will be consolidated in the national consolidation for entities, and subject to its 
own independent audit.

During 2018/19 Joint Implementation Committee resolved that the Scope of Work for the Institutionalisation 
of the IPP Office be approved. Further, JIC mandated the Development Bank of Southern Africa to proceed to 
procure services of external advisors in accordance with the approved Scope of Work.

The JIC resolved to appoint a service provider to do a business case for the institutionalisation of the IPP 
office as a juristic entity. The service provider made recommendations which the JIC accepted that the IPP be 
established in terms of Schedule 3 of the PFMA .This process will take approximately 36 months. In view of the 
length of time it will take, it was resolved that the IPP AFS will be appended as an Annexure to the DOE Annual 
report until such time that the institutionalisation process is completed.  
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5.8.59  Key Management Personnel

Number of 
Personnel

2019/20

R’000

2018/19

R’000

*Political office bearers 2 1,040 3,974

Officials: - - -

Level 15 & 16 11 16,359 16,835

Total - 17,399 20,809

*Key Management Personnel are officials having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Department.

5.8.60  	 Non-adjusting Events After Reporting Date

2019/20

R’000

Nature of Event -

Total -

*On 15 March 2020, the President of South Africa declared a National State of Disaster in terms of the Disaster 
Management Act, 2002 after COVID-19 was declared a world pandemic by the World Health Organisation. 
The National Treasury subsequently published the 2020 Special Adjustment Budget guidelines to give effect 
to the R130 billion baseline reprioritisation included in the President’s COVID-19 response package. The 
Department of Mineral Resources and Energy contribution towards COVID-19 response package is R1, 574 
billion – R41, 701 million from goods and services and R1, 532 billion from transfer payments. The budget 
cuts will necessitate adjustments to performance targets of the Department.

From 1 April 2020 the Department of Department of Energy merged with Mineral Resources and Department 
of Mineral Resources and Energy was formed. The closing balances for Department of Energy will form part 
of the opening balances of the Department of Mineral Resources and Energy.

The Director-General of Mineral Resources was appointed the Director-General of Mineral Resources and 
Energy.
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5.8.61       Movable Tangible Capital Assets

Movement in Movable Tangible Capital Assets per Asset Register for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Opening 
Balance

Value 
Adjustments

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Heritage Assets  222  -  -  -  222 

Heritage assets  222  -  -  -  222 
 -  -  -  -  -

Machinery and Equipment  67,125 7  2 402  4 528  65,006 

Transport assets  6,229  -  -  6,229 
Computer equipment  41,366  1,860  3,788  39,438 
Furniture and office equipment  13,258  335  740  12,853 
Other machinery and equipment  6,272 7  207  -  6,486 

Total Movable Tangible Capital Assets  67,347  7  2,402  4,528 65,228

Movable Tangible Capital Assets Under Investigation

Number Value 

R’000

Included in the above total of the movable tangible capital assets per the asset register are 
assets that are under investigation:

- -

Heritage assets - -

*Machinery and equipment 10 167

Specialised military assets - -

Biological assets - -

	* The above mentioned capital assets were reported missing and under investigations. The matter was  
	reported to the Accounting Officer, the SAPS and the SSA. The investigations are still in progress.

5.8.61.1    Additions

Additions to Movable Tangible Capital Assets per Asset Register for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Cash Non-cash (Capital Work 
in Progress 

Current 
Costs and 

Finance Lease 
Payments)

Received 
Current, not 

Paid (Paid 
Current Year, 

Received Prior 
Year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Machinery and Equipment  2,237  166  -  - 2,402

Transport assets - - - - -

Computer equipment  1,860 - - -  1,860 

Furniture and office equipment  335 - - -  335 

Other machinery and equipment  41  166 - -  207 

Total Additions to Movable Tangible Capital Assets 2,237 166 - - 2,402
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5.8.61.2  Disposals

Disposals of Movable Tangible Capital Assets per Asset Register for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Sold for  
Cash

Non-cash 
Disposal

Total  
Disposals

Cash Received 
Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

- - - -

Machinery and Equipment - 4,528 4,528 -

Transport assets - - - -

Computer equipment  - 3,788  3,788 -

Furniture and office equipment  - 740  740 -

Other machinery and equipment - - - -

Total Disposal of Movable Tangible Capital Assets - 4,528 4,528 -

5.8.61.3   Movement for 2018/19

Movement in Tangible Capital Assets per Asset Register for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Opening 
Balance

Prior period 
Error

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Heritage Assets 222 -  -  - 222

Heritage assets 222  -  -  - 222

Machinery and Equipment 60,381 7,676 932 67,125

Transport assets  4,005 -  2,224  -  6,229 

Computer equipment  37,785 -  3,747  166  41,366 

Furniture and office equipment  13,574 -  437  754  13,258 

Other machinery and equipment  5,017 -  1,269  13  6,272 

Total Movable Tangible Capital Assets 60,603 -  7,676 932 67,347

5.8.61.4   Minor Assets

Movement in Minor Assets per the Asset Register for the Year Ended as at 31 March 2020

Specialised 
Military Assets

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage 
Assets

Machinery and 
Equipment

Biological 
Assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - - 185 8,021 - 8,206

Value adjustments - - - - -  - 

Additions - - -  395 -  395 

Disposals - - -  690 -  690 

Total Minor Assets - - 185 7,726 -  7,911 
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Specialised 
Military assets

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage 
Assets

Machinery and 
Equipment

Biological 
Assets

Total

Number of R1 minor assets - - -  69 -  69 

Number of minor  assets at cost - - 83  4 612 -  4 695 

Total Number of Minor Assets - - 83 4 681 - 4,764

Minor Capital Assets Under Investigation

Number Value 

R’000

Included in the above total of the minor capital assets per the asset register are assets that are 
under investigation:

- -

Intangible assets - -

Heritage assets - -

*Machinery and equipment 2 1

	* The above mentioned Capital Assets were reported missing and under investigations. The matter  
was reported to the Accounting Officer, the SAPS and the SSA. The investigations are still in progress. 

Movement in Minor Assets per the Asset Register for the Year Ended as at 31 March 2019

Specialised 
Military assets

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage 
Assets

Machinery and 
Equipment

Biological 
Assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - - 185 7,742 - 7,927

Additions - - - 397 - 397

Disposals - - - 118 - 118

Total Minor Assets - - 185 8,021 - 8,206

Movement in Minor Assets per The Asset Register for the Year Ended as at 31 March 2019

Specialised 
Military 
Assets

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage 
Assets

Machinery 
and 

Equipment

Biological 
Assets

Total

Number of minor assets - - - 74 - 74

Number of minor  assets at cost - - 83 4,836 - 4,919

Total Number of Minor Assets - - 83 4,910 - 4,993
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5.8.61.5   Movable Assets Written Off

Movable Assets Written off for the Year Ended as at 31 March 2020

Specialised 
Military 
Assets

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage 
Assets

Machinery 
and 

Equipment

Biological 
Assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets written off - - - 78 - 78

Total Movable Assets Written off - - - 78 - 78

Movable Assets Written off for the Year Ended as at 31 March 2019

Specialised 
Military 
Assets

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage 
Assets

Machinery 
and 

Equipment

Biological 
Assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets written off - - - 173 - 173

Total Movable Assets Written off - - 173 - 173

5.8.62      Intangible Capital Assets
Movement in Intangible Capital Assets per Asset Register for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Opening 
Balance

Value 
Adjustments

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

*SOFTWARE 137,371 - - - 137,371

Total Intangible Capital Assets 137,371 - - - 137,371

*Intangible assets includes the amount for the NNBP systems also reported under Irregular Expenditure, a process is 
underway to assess use of the system in other functions within the DMRE  other than sole use for Nuclear Branch as 
initially intended.

5.8.62.1   Movement for 2018/19

Movement in Intangible Capital Assets Per Asset Register for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Opening 
Balance

Prior Period 
Error

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

SOFTWARE 90,932 - 46,439 - 137,371

Total Intangible Capital Assets 90,932 - 46,439 - 137,371

5.8.63   Prior Period Errors

Note Amount Before 
Error Correction

Prior Period 
Error 

Restated

Accruals (2018/19 figure restated, refer to note 22.1) - - 8,550 8,550

- - 8,550 8,550

2018/19 Accrual figures were restated refer to note 5.8.52.1
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NOTES



Follow Eskom instructions to reduce energy usage during peak times.

Remember to keep the lid on the pot when you cook to conserve heat and energy.

Use energy-saving light bulbs.

Use the kettle to boil water. It is energy wasting to use the stove to boil water compared to a kettle.

• Change to highest gear rather than driving in lowest gear.

• Service your car regularly.

• Don’t over rev your car.

• Check your tyre pressure if it’s correct.

• Fill your tank in the morning.

• Only fill up when it’s half tank rather than quarter tank.

• Obey speed limit

• Travel at a regular speed (i.e. don’t repeatedly accelerate and then slow down); use cruise control if   
  you have one.

Close the windows and doors when the air conditioner or heater is on and save money!

Close the door every time you take things out of the fridge and also check that it seals properly.

ENERGY SAVING TIPS
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